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METIS NATION — SASKATCHEWAN 
PROVINCIAL METIS COUNCIL 

Summary of June 2015 - December 2016 Meetings 
Summary of Provincial Métis Council (PMC) meeting discussions and decisions 

NOT the official minutes of the business conducted by the PMC 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 
Business Arising from the Minutes 
December 2, 2016 
The meeting discussed the allocation of 
economic development funding to each of the 
Métis National Council (MNC) Governing 
Members. 
Legal advice was received, which confirmed that 
the Provincial Métis Council (PMC) was not 
required to take a leave of absence prior to the 
pending election. 

Report from Lorne Gibson 
Lorne Gibson, Election Consultant, reviewed the 
resignation received from Fred Payton, Chief 
Electoral Officer. The meeting discussed: 

Postponing the February 4, 2017 Métis 
Nation — Saskatchewan (MN-S) Election, and 
setting a new election date 
Calling a Métis Nation Legislative Assembly 
(MNLA) and General Assembly on 
February 18 and 19, 2017 in Saskatoon, at 
which a new Chief Electoral Officer will be 
appointed. 

Appointment of an Interim Chief Electoral 
Officer] Deputy Chief Electoral Officer 
The following resolution was passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC appoints the following, 
pending ratification at the 2017 Métis National 
Legislative Assembly: Loretta Metzger as 
interim Chief Electoral Officer and Lorne Gibson 
as Electoral Consultant, to follow the progress in 
the election preparations.” 

Ms. Metzger introduced herself to the meeting 
and reviewed her professional experience. 

General Discussion — Election 
The meeting discussed mechanisms to prevent 
voters from fraudulently casting multiple ballots, 
noting that there should be serious 
consequences for doing so. 
Mr. Gibson agreed to draft revisions to the 
Saskatchewan Métis Elections Act, for 
consideration by the Elections Committee and 
approval at the MNLA. 
The following resolution was passed: 
“That the next MN-S General Election be held 
May 27, 2017.” 

Métis Nation Legislative Assembly (MNLA) 
The following resolutions were passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC directs that the Métis 
Nation Legislative Assembly and General 
Assembly be held February 18 and 19, 2017 at 
TCU Place in Saskatoon, Saskatchewan." 
“That the MN-S PMC directs that: 
- Regional representatives will register 

delegates from their respective regions to 
attend the 2017 MNLA and General 
Assembly; 
The President of Les Filles de Madeleine will 
register delegates from Les Filles de 
Madeleine to attend the MNLA and General 
Assembly; 
The President of the Youth Council will 

register delegates from the Youth Council to 
attend the MNLA and General Assembly; 
and 
Only registered delegates will be reimbursed 
for expenses incurred by attending the 
MNLA and General Assembly. " 
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Delegates will be reimbursed for their expenses 
at the end of the MNLA. 
Regional representatives were reminded to 
submit names, addresses and phone numbers 
of their respective Presidents to the CEO and 
EY by January 10, 2017. 

Report from Ernst & Young: Event Planning 
The following resolution was passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC authorizes the release of 
the “News Release" reviewed by the PMC on 
December 30, 2016, with the following 
revisions: 
° Change the subtitle to “Métis Nation 

Legislative Assembly and General Assembly 
set for February 18-19, 201 7",‘ and 

0 Replace the text under “For further 
information” with: "Please contact Métis 
Nation — Saskatchewan Vice President 
Gerald Morin at 306-220-0071, your 
respective Regional Representative, or visit 
the official website at: 
http:///metisnationsk.com/” 

Updates from EY, Finance Committee, Chief 
Executive Officer 
The following resolutions were passed: 
"That the MN-S PMC directs that MN-S 
Vice President Gerald Morin attend all MNC 
Board of Governors meetings (including the 
January 30, 2017 MNC Summit with the Pn'me 
Minister) on behalf of the MN-S, until the 
May 27, 2017 election." 
“That the MN-S PMC supports the MNC 
ho/ding: 
- A Special Sitting of the MNC General 

Assembly in Saskatchewan in March 2017 
- The Regular Sitting of the MNC General 

Assembly and Election in Ottawa, Ontario in 
June 2017.” 

The meeting reviewed the “Métis Nation — 
Saskatchewan Secretariat |nc., Statement of 
Receipts and Disbursements for the period from 
February 18, 2016 to December 31,2016". 

Update from the Federal Government 
The meeting discussed the budget for the MN-S. 

The following resolution was passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC directs that given the 
postponement of the MN-S General Election, 
Vice President Mor1'n’s cell phone continue to 
remain active.” 

Gratitude was extended to the CEO and 
representatives from Federal Government, EY 
and Raincoast Ventures Ltd. for their continued 
support during the MN-S’ progression. 

Economic Development Funding 
The meeting directed the MN-S Economic 
Deve|opment Committee to promptly discuss the 
MN-S’ allocation of economic development 
funding (particularly the first year's allocation) by 
teleconference with Federal Government 
representatives. 

DECEMBER 2, 2016 
Economic Development 
John Weinstein, MNC, led the meeting in a 
discussion on the allocation of economic 
development funding, noting that: 
- The MNC Board initially suggested the funds 

flow through Métis financial institutions 
- INAC suggested the funds flow through 

capital corporations or Aboriginal financial 
institutions (AFls) 

- Each Governing Member would receive an 
allocation of economic development funding 
over the next five years 

0 Given the MN-S’ current pre-election phase: 
0 Economic development funds for the 

current year, could go through a capital 
corporation or an AFI (i.e. SMEDCO) 

o The newly elected MN-S leadership could 
negotiate how to allocate funds for the 
subsequent four years of funding. 

Greg Fofonoff, SMEDCO, reviewed SMEDCO’s 
ability to help more businesses with the first year 
of the MN-S’ economic development funding. 
A resolution was passed directing that a letter be 
sent to the Prime Minister expressing concerns 
on the allocation of the economic development 
funding. A resolution passed January 14, 2017 
directed that the resolution not be acted on. 
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Legal Update 
Jay Watson, Legal Counsel, noted the Court's 
support for MN-S’ order, which requested each 
of the MN—S affiliates provide specific 
documentation (i.e. minute books, financial 
statements, etc.) to the MN-S. 

Elections Committee — Complaints Officer 
The following resolution was passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC endorse the 
recommendation of the MN-S Election 
Committee, to retain Gordon Kirkby as 
Complaints Officer for the 2017 MN-S Election. " 

Ernst & Young, Finance Committee, CEO 
Mr. Shoforost confirmed the conclusion of 
financial arrangements related to the MN-S’ 
office equipment. He also confirmed the 
outstanding debt to the RBC had been repaid. 
Additional comments were offered on: 
0 Funding under the Urban Aboriginal Strategy 
° An anticipated GST return 
° Funds received for participating in reviews 

related to: the Canadian Environmental 
Assessment Act, Fisheries Act, National 
Energy Board Modernization and Navigation 
Protection Act. 

The following resolution was passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC authorize Ernst & Young 
(E Y) to refer anyone contacting EY for financial 
or other information related to the MN-S, to their 
respective Area Representative or a PMC 
member.” 

Canadian Environmental Assessment Act 
(CEAA) 
The PMC participated in a December 3, 2016 
discussion on the CEAA, facilitated by 
Kyle Vermette. 

Health Consultation 
The PMC was scheduled to participate in a 
December 10, 2016 Canadian Partnership 
Against Cancer engagement session on barriers 
and facilitators to participating in cancer 
screening for Métis people. 

ASETS Meetings 
Chester Herman provided updates on the 
following ASETS meetings he attended: 
° October 26 and 27, 2016 (in Ottawa) and 
0 November 23 and 24, 2016 (in Vancouver). 

Resolutions 
The following resolutions were passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC directs the Chief Executive 
Officer to cancel Vice President Gerald Morin ’s 
cell phone, effective December 31 2016.” 
“WHEREAS the MN-S PMC has been informed 
and received details of all duties performed and 
expenditures made by Ernst & Young on behalf 
of the MN-S since February 17, 2016; 
BE IT RESOLVED that the PMC approves all 
duties performed and expenditures made by 
Ernst & Young on behalf of the MN-S, from 
February 17, 2016 to December 1, 2016; and 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the PMC also 
approves the budget and all anticipated duties to 
be performed and expenditures to be incurred 
up to March 31, 2017, as reviewed with the PMC 
on December 2, 2016. ” 

OCTOBER 22 and 23, 2016 
Western Region IIA (WRIIA) 
The PMC was informed that Penny Hurton was 
no longer the Area Representative for WR11A. 
The following resolutions were passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC accepts Shannon Unrau 
as Interim Area Director for Western Region IIA, 
for a tem concluding December 31, 2016, 
consistent with the conclusion of the terms of all 
PMC members.” 
“That the MN-S PMC accepts as presented, the 
Western Region lIA’s appointment of 
Penny Hurfon to the Gabriel Dumont Institute 
Board of Directors. ” 

“That the MN-S PMC supports Mavis Taylor, 
MN-S Officer and CEO, requesting from INAC, 
Access to Information and Privacy Unit, a copy 
of correspondence John Robert Lafontaine sent 
to Minister Carolyn Bennett on July 28, 2016, on 
a number of issues related to the MN-S, 
referenced in a September 7, 2016 letter to 
John Robert Lafontaine signed by Paul Thoppil, 
Chief Financial Officer (File: T8132). ” 

Urban Aboriginal Strategy (UAS) Project 
Ms. Taylor confirmed that an application was 
submitted to INAC for Urban Aboriginal Strategy 
(UAS) project funding of $150,000. 
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The following resolution was passed: 
“That the MN—S PMC accept as presented, the 
Agreement between the MN-S Secretariat Inc. 
and Gabriel Dumont College (GDI), guiding the 
GDI to: professionally manage research aimed 
at providing the membership of the MN-S with a 
voice on the effectiveness of the Urban 
Aboriginal Strategy (UAS); and, examine and 
review the effectiveness of the UAS in providing 
programs and services to Métis communities, on 
the following basis: 
- GDI has been contracted to undertake the 

project, as the MN-S currently does not have 
the capacity to do so 

- The facilitated consultations (as listed in the 
initial funding proposal) will involve Area 
Directors, Regional Councils, and Local 
Regional Representatives in all 12 MN-S 
regions and 19 UAS communities 

- After concluding the processes outlined in the 
Agreement, GDI will compile and submit a 
report to the PMC for approval, and 
subsequent submission to the Federal 
Government. ” 

Legal Updates 
Jay Watson, Legal Counsel, provided updates 
on the Batoche lands and on the continued 
efforts to obtain documents from MN-S affiliates. 
The following decision was reached: 
“By consensus, it was agreed that the coun‘ 
application referenced by Jay Watson, Legal 
Counsel, at the October 22, 2016 MN-S PMC 
Meeting be filed on October 28, 2016, and that 
any entities listed on the application that submit 
the previously requested information prior to the 
October 28, 2016 deadline, be removed from the 
coun‘ application prior to it being filed.” 

Ernst & Young, Finance Committee, Chief 
Executive Officer 
The meeting was informed that the PMC had 
received a complete list of registered MN—S 
citizens, and that the MN-S had been invited to 
attend a number of upcoming meetings. 
The following resolution was passed: 
“That the MN—S PMC supports Métis National 
Council President Chartier communicating with 
Saskatchewan Premier Brad Wall to seek 
funding for the 2017 MN-S’ Election process, 
and operating costs up to March 31, 2017. ” 

Resolutions were passed directing that: 
° Vice President Gerald Morin attend the 

December 8 — 9, 2016 Métis National Council 
Board of Governors’ meeting 

0 Chester Hennan attend the October 26, 2016 
MHRDA Working Group Meeting and 
October 27, 2016 Métis ASE TS Forum 

- Lennard Mon'n lay a wreath at the 
November 11, 2016 Remembrance Day 
Ceremonies in Saskatoon. 

The following additional resolution was passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC directs that Ernst & Young 
and the MN-S Chief Executive Officer continue 
to manage MN-S affairs during the period 
preceding the February 4, 2017 PMC election. 
Clarence Campeau Development Fund 
The following resolution was passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC directs that: 
- The Clarence Campeau Development Fund 

(CCDF) Board of Directors (Board) be 
informed that the MN-S PMC will submit 
appointments to the CCDF Board after the 
February 4, 2017 MN-S Election, and that in 
the interim, the positions NOT be filled by the 
CCDF’s Selection Committee or otherwise; 

- That the next MN-S PMC Meeting review the 
following: 
o The December 19, 2002 agreement 
between the Province of Saskatchewan 
and the Métis Nation — Saskatchewan 
Secretariat Inc. 

0 The MN-S’ current (and potentially 
revised) relationship with CCDF 

o CCDF’s policies and procedures; and 
- A letter will be drafted (collaboratively by the 

MN-S Chief Executive Officer and EY 
representatives) for Vice President Morin’s 
signature, to the appropriate Provincial 
Minister acknowledging the MN-S PMC’s 
consideration of the relationship with CCDF.” 

Canadian Environmental Assessment Act 
Kyle Vermette, Métis Legal Research and 
Education Foundation, reviewed the opportunity 
to provide input on federal environmental 
assessment processes. 
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The following resolution was passed: 
"That the MN—S PMC directs that the MN-S 
Secretariat lnc.: 
- Retain Kyle Vermette as a Consultant to 

represent the MN-S on the CEAA project, in 
conjunction with MN~S Environment Minister 
Lennard Morin, Ernst & Young, and the MN-S 
Chief Executive Officer; and 

- Approve the proposal and budgets for the 
CEAA, as presented to the MN-S PMC by 
Mr. Vermette on October 22, 2016. 

Update from the Federal Government 
Richard Quintal, Negotiator and Manager of 
Métis Relations, INAC, offered comments on: 
- Funding from Federal Government for the 
MNC and its governing members 

- The sale of the MN-S library to the GDI, and 
the opportunity to apply the proceeds of the 
sale to pay off some of the MN-S’ debt 

- The success of Back to Batoche 2016, which 
enabled taxes owed on Batoche to be paid 

- The importance of paying off the MN-S’ 
outstanding debt to RBC. 

Direction for EY to Pay RBC 
The following resolution was passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC authorizes Ernst & Young 
LLP (E Y) to pay off the MN-S’ outstanding debt 
to the Royal Bank of Canada (RBC), up to the 
reduced amount offered by the RBC ($293,910), 
or less if a further reduced amount can be 
negotiated by E Y. 

Provincial Youth Council 
Regional Directors were requested to submit to 
Jaycee Bell, Provincial Youth Council 
Representative, the name of a Youth 
Representative from their respective region, to 
participate on the Provincial Youth Council. 
Billy Kennedy, Jaycee Bell and a youth 
representative from La Loche, agreed to attend 
the upcoming Youth Suicide Prevention 
Conference in Vancouver, with expenses 
provided by the MNC. The youth representatives 
will submit a report to the PMC on the event. 
Les Filles de Madeleine (Women’s Council) 
Challenges in scheduling the 2016 Women's 
Conference, which Les Filles de Madeline had 
offered to host in Saskatoon, were discussed. 

Election Update 
Fred Payton, Chief Electoral Officer, provided an 
update on preparations for the MN-S Election. 

Other Business 
The following resolution was passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC allows the MN-S 
Chief Executive Officer to conduct MN-S 
business from her home office until 
March 31, 2017.” 

Elections Committee 
The following resolution was passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC approves the following 
recommendation of the MN-S Elections 
Committee: That Michael No/an be appointed 
Adjudicator for the 2017 MN-S Election 
(Mr. Nolan has consented to the appointment) 

Northern Teacher Education Program 
The following resolution was passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC directs that a letter from 
the MN-S Vice President be written, confirming 
the MN-S PMC’s support of the Northern 
Teacher Education Program's process for 
determining a post-secondary provider.” 

Canadian Partnership Against Cancer 
By consensus, the PMC agreed to: 
Accept the opportunity outlined by Canadian 
Partnership Against Cancer (CPAC) in their 
October 11, 2016 correspondence, to participate 
in a one-day engagement session to discuss 
barriers and facilitators to panicipating in cancer 
screening for Métis people (with travel costs, 
expenses and a venue provided), and that 
Darlene McKay and/or Mavis Taylor, Chief 
Executive Officer coordinate next steps with 
CPAC. 

Members asked that a PMC meeting be 
scheduled to coincide with the CPAC 
engagement session in November 2016, and 
that potential dates for the engagement session 
and PMC meeting, be considered. 
Local 39 (La Loche) 
Concerns were expressed that La Loche was 
not being consulted on industry's activities. The 
MN-S “Duty to Consult and Accommodate 
Policy" could be sent to industry with a letter 
providing authority for the local to speak on the 
community’s behalf. 
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SEPTEMBER 10 and 11, 2016 
Provincial Youth Council Representative 
The PMC accepted Jaycee Bell as the MN-S 
Provincial Youth Council representative. 

Swearing In of the Chief Electoral Officer 
Senator Clayton Ward officiated in the 
administration of the Oath of Office and the 
swearing-in of Chief Electoral Officer, 
Fred Payton. 

Economic Development 
John Weinstein, Métis National Council (MNC), 
reviewed the MNC Board of Governors’ decision 
regarding the division of economic development 
funding amongst the five Governing Members. 
Greg Fofonoff, SMEDCO, welcomed the 
opportunity to be designated as a Métis 
Aboriginal financial institution for the MN~S. 
The following resolution was passed: 
"That the MN-S PMC directs: 
a) That an Economic Development Committee 

be established to facilitate communications 
between the CEO and representatives from 
the Federal Government, the MNC, and 
SMEDCO, on the allocation of the economic 
development funds; and 

b) That the following PMC members be 
appointed to the Economic Development 
Committee: Earl Cook, Helene Johnson, 
Derek Langan, Dadene McKay and 
Gerald Morin. " 

Update from the PMC Election Committee 
and the Chief Electoral Officer 
The Chief Electoral Officer led the meeting in a 
discussion on the 2017 MN-S Elections Process 
and the Elections Act. 
The following resolutions were passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC directs Ernst & Young LLP 
to compile and distribute as soon as possible to 
Regional Representatives and Métis Local 
Presidents, a list of all members registered in the 
MN-S Registry (inclusive of their name, address, 
and the Métis local in which the member is 
registered). ” 

“That the MN-S PMC: 
- Supports scheduling an Electoral Workshop 

to discuss the Saskatchewan Métis Elections 
Act with regional representatives; and 

- Authorizes the CEO and Ernst & Young LLP 
to communicate with INAC regarding funding 
required to hold the workshop.” 

“That the MN-S PMC directs Ernst & Young LLP 
to administer all funds received, pertaining to the 
2017 MN-S Election process.” 

Approval of Election Budget 
The following resolution was passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC approves the “Election 
Budget", as presented.” 
Chief E|ectora| Officer Payton confirmed that 
nominations for the 2017 MN-S Election would 
open at 9:00 a.m. on December 31, 2016 and 
close on January 5,2017 at 2:00 p.m. 

Update from the MN-S Chief Executive 
Officer 
Ms. Taylor explained that a proposal was 
submitted on September 9, 2016 on behalf of 
the MN-S, to participate in an environmental 
assessment process. 
The following resolutions were passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC: 
a) Authorizes Mavis Taylor, Chief Executive 

Officer, to enter into a Contribution 
Agreement with the Government of 
Canada’s federal departments or 
organizations, in relation to any type of 
consultation and/or engagement, in relation 
to any impacts of Métis rights; 

b) Designates MN-S Vice President Gerald 
Morin as duly authorized signatory on behalf 
of the Métis Nation — Saskatchewan 
Secretariat lnc., for the purposes of signing 
the Contribution Agreement, the application 
for funding, or any other documents required 
under the Contribution Agreement; and 

c) Authorizes Ernst & Young LLP, as Expen? 
Advisor to the Métis Nation — Saskatchewan 
Secretariat lnc., to manage any related 
funds and/or expense claim processes and 
to receive any payments in relation to the 
Contribution Agreement.” 

"That the MN-S PMC directs that the following 
15 delegates attend the October 13 — 15, 2016 
Métis National Council (MNC) Assembly in 
Vancouver, and requests that the MNC office be 
notified to make the appropriate arrangements 
for their attendance: Lela Arnold, Jaycee Be/I, 
Michael Bell, Earl Cook, Chester Herman, 
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Helene Johnson, Shelly Kape/I, Billy Kennedy, 
Derek Langan, Glen McCalIum, Dar1ene McKay, 
Tammy Mah, Gerald Morin, Lennard Morin and 
Gale Pelletier.” 
“That the MN-S PMC directs that the MNC office 
be requested to make the appropriate travel 
arrangements for Darlene McKay and 
Derek Langan to attend a October 7, 2016 
meeting in Ottawa, regarding the National 
Housing Strategy.” 

Update from the Expert Advisor — Ernst & 
Young LLP 
EY representatives provided an update on the 
organization’s financial position, and reported 
that a payment was received from GDI towards 
the MN—S library assets. 

Direction for EY to Repay RBC and Other 
Secured Creditors 
The following resolution was passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC directs Ernst & Young LLP 
to pay the outstanding balance of $17,821.75 
plus all prior invoices since 2013 owed to 
Cuelenaere, Kendall, Katzman & Watson LLP 
(MN-S Legal Counsel), using the proceeds from 
the sale of the MN-S library.” 

Provincial Youth Council (PYC) Meeting 
Members were requested to encourage the 
Regional Youth Representatives (one from each 
region) to contact Jaycee Bell. 
The following resolution was passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC directs that funding be 
provided to allow one Regional Youth 
Representative from each region to attend: 
- A Provincial Youth Council meeting, in 

Saskatoon; and 
- The November 19, 2016 Engagement and 

Consultation Session and 
November 20, 2016 Electoral Workshop, in 
Saskatoon. ” 

Les Femmes Michif Otipemisiwak (LFMO): 
Women of the Métis Nation 
It was noted that the LFMO: Women of the Métis 
Nation Annual General Meeting was tentatively 
scheduled October 8, 2016, in Saskatoon. 

MN-S Designated Point of Contact 
The following resolution was passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC directs that effective 
immediately, and until the 2017 MN-S election of 
the new MN-S government: 
a) The MN-S CEO be the designated first point 

of contact to which federal and other 
government agencies convey Métis-specific 
issues; and 

b) Any Métis-specific issues received by the 
CEO will be subsequently dispatched to the 
appropriate MN-S Regional Representative 
or otherwise, as soon as possible. ” 

Workshop 
The meeting discussed scheduling a workshop 
for the PMC and local MN-S Presidents, at 
which consistent messaging could be shared on 
the 2017 MN-S Election process. 
The meeting discussed benefits of holding an 
Engagement and Consultation Session 
(potentially November 19, 2016) to receive 
presentations from federal government agency 
representatives; and an Electoral Workshop 
(potentially November 20, 2016) to receive 
information on the 2017 MN-S Election process. 

Batoche 
The following resolutions were passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC supports maintaining the 
current 2016 Back to Batoche Committee 
membership, for the 2017 and 2018 Back to 
Batoche festivals.” 
“That the MN—S PMC supports collaborating with 
the Gabriel Dumont Institute to install a 
permanent plaque at the Batoche Veterans 
Monument, to recognize its funders and 
Lennard Morin.” 

Next Meeting Dates 
The following resolution was passed: 
“That the next Métis Nation — Saskatchewan 
Provincial Métis Council meeting be held 
October 22 and 23, 2016 (possibly October 22, 
2016 only) in North Battleford, Saskatchewan.” 

2015-16 MN-S PMC Meeting Summary (Revised January 21, 2017) Page 7 of 29



JULY 22 and 29, 2016 
Business Arising from the Minutes 
During a review of the June 16 and July 8, 2016 
Métis Nation — Saskatchewan (MN-S) PMC 
meeting minutes, it was confirmed that Legal 
Counsel had sent letters to Directors of the 
MN-S affiliates via registered mail and/or email, 
requesting documentation (i.e. minutes, 
documentation and financial records). 

Economic Development Funding 
The following resolution was passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC supports the MNC’s 
disbursements of economic development funds 
as outlined in their July 21, 2016 
correspondence, recognizing that the MN-S’ 
portion of the funding will be administered by 
SMEDCO with the following provisos: 
0 That the MN-S PMC be involved in 

determining the disbursements of funds; 
- That MN-S Regional Representatives be 

appointed to SMEDCO’s Board of Directors; 
° That representatives from SMEDCO and the 

federal government be invited to attend an 
upcoming MN-S PMC meeting (specifically 
with John Weinstein, MNC, in attendance) to 
discuss priorities and criteria, meeting 
regional needs, purchasing /and adjacent to 
Batoche and upgrades to the Batoche site 
(specifically for capital renovations); and 

- That for the first fiscal year of economic 
development funding, the MN-S portion be 
allocated as follows: 
0 A capped amount of $25,000 to each of 

the MN-S’ twelve regions; 
o A capped amount of $25, 000 to the MN-S 

Métis Women (Les Filles de Madeleine); 
o A capped amount of $25,000 to the 

Saskatchewan Métis Youth; 
0 A capped amount of $25,000 to the MN-S 

PMC; 
o A capped amount of $90,000 to SMEDCO 

for administration of the funds (any 
unused portion to be returned to PMC for 
distribution); and 

0 An amount of $435,000 to the Back to 
Batoche Committee specifically for capital 
renovations; 

and with the further provisos that: 
- The aforementioned provisos meet the 

criteria of the funding agreement; 

- In the event the allocation to SMEDCO for 
administration does not meet the criteria of 
the funding agreement, the MN-S PMC 
maintains the ability to reallocate the funds 
by special resolution; and 

- Future funding allocations be done at the 
MN-S PMC level.” 

Update from the PMC Back to Batoche 
Committee 
Karen Larocque confirmed that a full report on 
Back to Batoche 2016 would be presented to the 
MNLA highlighting the fiscal success of event, 
and the opponunity to repay debts incurred by 
previous Batoche events. 

Update from the PMC MNLA Committee 
The meeting approved the agenda binders for 
the July 30 and 31, 2016 MNLA, including the 
MNLA Orders of the Day and other information, 
as presented. The MNLA agenda included 
confirming the date for the next MN-S Election. 
It was requested that Directors: assist Ernst & 
Young (EY) in registering their respective 
region’s delegates for the MNLA; and, forward 
available copies of any prior meeting minutes 
still missing from the "Record of Minutes" 
(specifically for meetings held November 30 — 
December 1, 2012 and February 8 and 9, 2013). 

Update from the PMC Election Committee 
The meeting acknowledged requests for 
information sent to former consultants, for a 
copy of the 2007 MN-S Election kit, to assist in 
preparing for the next election. Voters may be 
asked to self-declare their citizenship at the time 
of voting in the next election. It was suggested 
that there was insufficient time to prepare for an 
election in September 2016, and that the next 
MN-S election would more realistically be held in 
February or March 2017. 
The following resolution was passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC now rescinds the following 
motion passed on June 5, 2016: “That the 
MN-S PMC directs that all PMC member 
positions terminate August 2, 2016, and that 
Ernst & Young and the MN-S CEO manage 
MN-S affairs during the 30-day period prior to 
the election”. 
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Update from the PMC Finance Committee 
Updates were provided on the sale of the MN-S 
library and strategies to repay secured creditors. 
A resolution was passed to pay a retainer in the 
amount of $60,000 to Cuelenaere, Kendall, 
Katzman & Watson LLP (MN-S’ Legal Counsel). 

Update from the Expert Advisor — EY 
The meeting was informed that alternate office 
space might be available locally for significantly 
less than the cost of the current lease. 
Discussions with the MN-S’ landlord related to 
office space costs were acknowledged. 

Gabriel Dumont Institute (GDI) 
It was noted that a $300,000 advance from GDI 
was anticipated towards the purchase of the 
MN-S library, once the inventory of the MN-S 
library was complete. 

Resolutions 
The meeting reviewed resolutions submitted by 
members for consideration at the MNLA. It was 
agreed that MN-S’ Legal Counsel would advise 
locals if their resolutions submitted were not in 

compliance with the Constitution. 

Regional Directors were asked to communicate 
to Legal Counsel the names of legitimate 
Presidents so he could advise in writing, those 
who were not recognized as legitimate 
Presidents, in accordance with the Constitution. 

Cuthbert Grant Declaration 
As resolution was passed to adopt the “Cuthbert 
Grant Declaration” as presented, with some 
minor amendments. 

The S.S. Northcote 
The following resolution was passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC: 
- Approves building a replica of the S.S. 

Northcote (or rebuilding the original, 
whichever is more cost effective), and that 
money be allocated each year from the 
economic development funding to help cover 
project costs; 

- Appoints a three-person committee of PMC 
members to this project, one being the 
representative of the Delta Métis Local #42 
from Cumberland House, who will Chair the 
S.S. Northcote Project Committee; and 

0 Supports the 8.8. Norfhcote Project 
Committee approaching the following entities 
on behalf of the PMC, for financial 
contributions to the project: 

Clarence Campeau Development Fund 
Gabriel Dumont Institute 
SMEDCO 
Federal Government 
Provincial Government 
CAMECO/AREVA 
Métis National Council. ” 

OOOOOOO 

Saskatchewan Métis Elections Act 
MN-S’ Legal Counsel reviewed amendments to 
the Saskatchewan Métis Elections Act 2007 
(Act), proposed by the Election Consultant, 
noting that the amendments would deem the Act 
applicable to future elections; provide greater 
flexibility to the Chief Electoral Officer; and 
prohibit campaigning in polling stations. 

Appointment of Speaker I Deputy Speaker for 
the MNLA and Chairpersons for the AGM 
The following resolution was passed: 
“WHEREAS Article 5 of the Métis Nation of 
Saskatchewan Legislative Assembly Act directs 
the MN-S PMC appoint a Speaker and Deputy 
Speaker for the MN-S, MNLA; 
AND WHEREAS the MN-S PMC at their duly 
called meeting of the MN-S PMC on 
June 4 and 5, 2016 appointed Will Goodon and 
Kathy Hodgson-Smith as Speaker and Deputy 
Speaker for the MN-S MNLA; 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the MN-S 
MNLA ratify these appointments as stated; 
AND FURTHER BE IT RESOLVED that 
Will Goodon and Kathy Hodgson-Smith shall 
serve as Chairperson and Co-Chairperson for 
the Annual General Assembly. ” 

Appointment of Dumont’s Scouts 
The following resolution was passed: 
“WHEREAS Article 8 of the Métis Nation of 
Saskatchewan Legislative Assembly Act directs 
the MN-S PMC to appoint Dumont’s Scouts to 
maintain order and procedure at the MNA; 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the MN-S 
PMC appoints the following representatives of 
Eastern Region 2A as Dumont’s Scouts for the 
MN-S, MNLA on July 30 and 31, 2016: 

2015-16 MN-S PMC Meeting Summary (Revised January 21, 2017) Page 9 of 29



Donna Bernard, Robert Bernard, 
Richard Genialle, Jeff Langan, Jeremy Langan, 
Donna Pel/etier, Tyler Pel/etier, Tyler Severight 
and Stewart Swain. ” 

Adoption of Métis Citizenship Standard 
The following resolution was passed: 
"WHEREAS the Métis Nation has inherent 
jurisdiction to identify the members/citizens of 
the Métis Nation; 

AND WHEREAS the MNC General Assembly 
ratified a National Definition for the identification 
of Métis Nation citizens, and amended it from 
time to time; 

AND WHEREAS the MN-S has adopted the 
National Definition in the Constitution of the 
Métis Nation - Saskatchewan Aiticle 10 and has 
established a Registry for the purpose of 
identifying and registering Métis Nation citizens 
resident in Saskatchewan pursuant to the 
National Definition; 

AND WHEREAS it is in the best interest of the 
Métis Nation to identify the citizens of the Métis 
Nation in a way that is open, transparent, 
consistent, objective and verifiable; 
AND WHEREAS the Supreme Court of Canada 
has required, and the MN-S does agree, that the 
process of identification of Métis Aboriginal 
rights holders must be objective and verifiable; 
AND WHEREAS the MNC General Assembly 
directed, at the 2014 General Assembly, that the 
MNC and Governing Members ensure: a) that 
the National Definition of Métis is applied in all 
registrations; b) that the MNC and Governing 
Members engage fully in the Canadian 
Standards Association (CSA) Standard setting 
processes to the completion and publication of a 
Métis Nation Registry Operations Standard, 
which can be used to ensure that the 
identification and registration of Métis Nation 
members/citizens is consistent, respectful, 
objective and verifiable; 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the MNLA 
require the MN-S to ensure compliance with the 
MNC General Assembly direction that the MN-S 
Registry ensure: a) that the National Definition of 
Métis is applied in all registrations; b) that the 
MN—S and the MN-S Registry ensure the 
implementation of the CSA Standard on Métis 
Nation Registry Operations Standard; and 

c) engage in the CSA Standard setting 
processes to review and update the Métis 
Nation Registry Operations Standard, from time 
to time, which can be used to ensure that the 
identification and registration of Métis Nation 
members/citizens is consistent, respectful, 
objective and verifiable.” 

Adoption of EY Report in Lieu of Executive 
and Regional Reports 
The following resolution was passed: 
“WHEREAS the MN-S had not held the number 
of MN-S PMC required by the Constitution of the 
MN-S; 
AND WHEREAS the Court of Queen’s Bench 
found that: 
a) The last attempted MN-S MNLA was 

unlawfully called and unlawfully held; 
b) That all of the motions passed at the last 

attempted MN-S MNLA are of no force and 
effect; and 

c) The last /awfully called and /awfully held 
MN-S MNLA was in 2012; 

(1) 

AND WHEREAS the administrative funding and 
financial support to the MN—S was discontinued 
by the Province of Saskatchewan and the 
Government of Canada on November 1, 2014 
due to a lack of democracy, accountability and 
transparency in the operation of the MN-S; 
AND WHEREAS in order to reinstate funding 
toward the administration and operation of the 
MN-S, the MN-S entered into an agreement with 
Ernst & Young LLP, by motion of the PMC and 
signature of President Robert Doucette, on 
February 17, 2016 to allow Ernst & Young LLP 
to carry out specific administrative, policy and 
financial processes on behalf of the MN-S, 
pursuant to the direction of the PMC as a third 
party Expert Advisor; 

AND WHEREAS the Executive of the MN-S has 
not been provided salaries since March 31, 2015 
and has not participated fully in the ongoing 
meetings of the MN-S PMC; 
AND WHEREAS Anicles 3 and 4 of the 
Constitution of the Métis Nation — Saskatchewan 
and Article 9 of the Métis Nation of 
Saskatchewan Legislative Assembly Act 
provides that the MN-S PMC shall provide 
written reports to the MNLA; 
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AND WHEREAS Ernst & Young LLP, as Expert 
Advisor, has prepared a report on behalf of the 
MN-S PMC for submission to the MN-S MNLA 
on July 30 and 31, 2016; 
AND WHEREAS the MN-S PMC has reviewed 
and approved the report of Ernst & Young LLP 
as a written report of the MN-S PMC; 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the MN-S 
PMC directs Ernst & Young LLP to deliver the 
written report to the MN-S MNLA, on behalf of 
the MN-S PMC, to comply with its constitutional 
reporting obligation.” 

Deeming of Any Program, Service or Affiliate 
Created for the Purposes of the Constitution 
The following resolution was passed: 
“WHEREAS Article 3(3) of the Constitution of the 
MN-S provides that the PMC is responsible for 
ensuring that the affiliates, departments, 
programs and services covered by their 
portfolios are running smoothly and have the 
necessary resources to enable them to operate 
effectively; 

AND WHEREAS the MN-S PMC deems to be 
an affiliate, the following: 
a) BTB Festival Days Inc. 
b) BTB Land Management Inc. 
c) Provincial Métis Holdco Inc. 
d) Provincial Métis Housing Corporation 
e) Round Prairie Ventures Inc. 
0 Round Prairie Developments Limited 
g) The Métis Society of Saskatchewan Inc. 
h) All other corporations formed by an 

Executive member or members arising from 
their authority as a member of the Executive 
of the MN-S 

i) All corporations where an Executive 
member holds a position within that 
corporation arising from their authority as a 
member of the Executive of the MN-S; 

AND WHEREAS the MN-S PMC needs to 
ensure it maintains an accurate account of all 
affiliates of the MN-S and all corporations 
formed to meet the needs of the Métis people in 
Saskatchewan, including but not limited to: 
a) BTB Festival Days Inc. 
b) BTB Land Management Inc. 
c) Provincial Métis Holdco Inc. 
d) Provincial Métis Housing Corporation 
e) Round Prairie Ventures Inc. 
0 Round Prairie Developments Limited 
g) The Métis Society of Saskatchewan Inc. 

h) All other corporations formed by an 
Executive member or members arising from 
their authority as a member of the Executive 
of the MN-S 

i) All corporations where an Executive 
member holds a position within that 
corporation arising from their authority as a 
member of the Executive of the Métis Nation 
— Saskatchewan; 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the 
Executive provide the Métis Nation — 
Saskatchewan Provincial Métis Council with 
certified copies of all documents relating to all 
affiliates of the Métis Nation — Saskatchewan, 
including but not limited to: 
a) BTB Festival Days Inc. 
b) BTB Land Management Inc. 
c) Provincial Métis Holdco Inc. 
d) Provincial Métis Housing Corporation 
e) Round Prairie Ventures Inc. 
0 Round Prairie Developments Limited 
g) The Métis Society of Saskatchewan Inc. 
h) All other corporations formed by an 

Executive member or members arising from 
their authority as a member of the Executive 
of the MN-S, and 

i) All corporations where an Executive 
member holds a position within that 
corporation arising from their authority as a 
member of the Executive of the MN-S.” 

Internal Dispute Resolution Mechanism 
The following resolution was passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC supports the following 
resolution, and recommends its consideration 
and ratification at the July 30-31, 2016 MNLA: 
WHEREAS the Constitution of the MN-S is the 
governing document of the MN-S; 
AND WHEREAS Paragraphs 3 to 5 of the 
Preamble of the Constitution of the MN-S 
provides that the citizens of the Métis Nation 
agree to the following: 
a) To ensure that any Métis person whose 

rights or freedoms as herein recognized are 
violated shall have an effective remedy; 

b) To ensure that any person claiming such a 
remedy shall have their right thereto 
determined by a competent Judicial 
administrative or legislative authorities of the 
Métis Nation of Saskatchewan; and 
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c) To ensure competent authorities as enacted 
by the Métis Nation of Saskatchewan shall 
enforce such remedies when granted; 

AND WHEREAS Paragraph 9 of the Preamble 
of the Constitution of the MN-S provides that all 
persons shall be equal before the MNLA in the 
termination of any issue which they are charged 
with, and that every Métis person shall be 
entitled to a fair and public hearing by a 
competent, independent and impartial tribunal 
established by the MNLA; 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the MN-S 
MNLA directs the MN—S PMC to establish and 
create an internal dispute resolution mechanism 
to meet the goals of the preamble as set out 
above." 

Selecting the MN-S Election Date I Calling of 
Election 
The following resolution was passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC support the following 
resolution, and recommend its consideration and 
ratification at the July 30 and 31, 2016 MNLA: 
WHEREAS Article 28 of the Saskatchewan 
Métis Elections Act 2007, as amended, and 
Article 8(2) of the Constitution of the MN-S 
requires that the election day for the Executive 
and Regional Representatives of the MN-S PMC 
be held within four (4) years of the previous 
election; 

AND WHEREAS the MN-S PMC has retained, 
pursuant to the advice of Ernst & Young LLP as 
Expert Advisor, the expertise of Lorne Gibson, 
Election Consultant, to advise on the process 
required to ensure the running of an election 
pursuant to the Saskatchewan Métis Elections 
Act 2007, as amended; 
AND WHEREAS Ernst & Young LLP and 
Mr. Gibson have advised the MN-S PMC on the 
proper timing for the holding of an election and 
have recommended an election day of 
February 4, 2017; 
AND WHEREAS the MN-S PMC seeks to have 
an election that is in accordance with Article 1 of 
the Saskatchewan Métis Elections Act 2007, as 
amended, that promotes the meaningful 
exercise of the democratic rights and freedoms 
of the Métis citizens in Saskatchewan; 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that an 
election day for the Executive and Regional 

Representatives of the MN-S PMC be set as 
February 4, 2017.” 

Appointment of Chief Electoral Officer 
The following resolutions were passed: 
“WHEREAS Section 92 of the Saskatchewan 
Métis Elections Act 2007, as amended, directs 
the MN-S MNLA to appoint by resolution, a 
Chief Electoral Officer for the election set for 
February 4, 2017; 
AND WHEREAS the MN-S PMC recommends 
the appointment of Fred Payton to serve as the 
Chief Electoral Officer for the election set for 
February 4, 2017; 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the MN-S 
PMC recommends the MN-S MNLA appoint 
Fred Payton to serve as the Chief Electoral 
Officer for the election set for February 4, 2017.” 
“That the MN-S PMC rescind the following 
motion passed March 5, 2016: “That the MN-S 
PMC set September 3, 2016 as the date for the 
2016 MN-S Election, with advance polls 
scheduled on August 27, 2016". 

The Saskatchewan Métis Elections Act 
Amendments (Continued) 
The following resolution was passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC supports the following 
resolution, and recommends its consideration 
and ratification at the July 30 and 31, 2016 Métis 
Nation Legislative Assembly: 
WHEREAS Her Majesty the Queen in Right of 
Canada, represented by the Minister of Indian 
Affairs and Northern Development (the 
"Government of Canada”) has agreed to provide 
funding to the MN—S as per the Funding 
Agreement (Agreement No: 1415-HQ-000097) 
entered into between the Government of 
Canada and the MN-S, April 1, 2014, as 
amended by: 
- The undated Amending Agreement entered 

into between the Government of Canada 
and the MN-S; 

- The May 1, 2016 Amending Agreement 
entered into between the Government of 
Canada and the MN-S; and 

- The June 2016 Amending Agreement 
entered into between the Govemment of 
Canada and the MN—S (“Amending 
Agreement #3") 

(collectively, the “MN-S Agreement"); 
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AND WHEREAS as part of the MN-S 
Agreement, an “Expen Advisor" must be 
retained; 

AND WHEREAS the Métis Nation — 
Saskatchewan Secretariat Inc. has contracted 
with Ernst& Young LLP pursuant to an 
engagement letter dated June 17, 2016 and has 
appointed Ernst & Young LLP as the Expert 
Advisor; 

AND WHEREAS the MN-S and Ernst & Young 
LLP agree that amendment of the 
Saskatchewan Métis Elections Act 2007 is a 
matter relevant to carrying out the Métis Nation 
— Saskatchewan’s obligations under the MN-S 
Agreement; 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the MN-S 
PMC amend the Saskatchewan Métis Elections 
Act 2007 in accordance with the 
recommendations provided by the Expert 
Advisor Ernst & Young LLP, as follows (and 
described in the attached Schedule A): 
1. In section 1, delete the words “for the 

general election in 2007 and may be 
adapted to all subsequent elections”; 

2. In section 2, in the definition of “declaration 
of election”, delete the words "the general 
election in 2007 and any by-election after 
the general election in 2007" and substitute 
the words "a general election or by-election"; 

3. In section 2, delete the term and definition 
for "Independent Oversight Committee"; 

4. In section 3, delete the words "in 2007" and 
the accompanying footnote; 

5. In section 28, delete subsection (2) and its 
heading and re-number subsection 28(1) as 
section 28; 

6. In section 92, delete subsection (3) and its 
heading, and re-number the remaining 
subsections in section 92 accordingly; 

7. In section 101, delete subsection (3) and its 
heading, and re-number the remaining 
subsections in section 101 accordingly; 

8. In subsection 107(1), add the words “Unless 
authorized otherwise by the Chief Electoral 
Officer,” to the beginning of the sentence; 

9. In section 111, delete subsection (2) and its 
heading, and re-number the remaining 
subsections in section 111 accordingly; 

10. In section 116, delete subsection (3) and its 
heading, and re-number the remaining 
subsections in section 116 accordingly; 

11. In section 120, delete subsection (3) and its 
heading, and re-number the remaining 

subsections in section 120 accordingly; 
12. Add a new section 127.1 to say: “No person 

shall disturb the peace and good order at a 
polling station "; 

13. Add a new section 127.2 to say: 
( 1) Any person who places or displays 
campaign material in or on any premises 
used as a polling station is guilty of an 
offence, and 
(2) Any person who uses, wears or displays 
or causes to be used, worn or displayed, 
any flag, ribbon, label, badge, or similar 
object in a polling station as campaign 
material, is guilty of an offence; and 

14. In Form 1 (VOTER REGISTRATION FORM) 
of the Schedule, delete the words "in 2007" 
and substitute the words "to be held on 
[election day]". 

Extension of Terms of MN-S PMC Members 
The following resolutions were passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC support the following 
resolution, and recommend its consideration and 
ratification at the July 30 and 31, 2016 MNLA: 
WHEREAS Article 4(3) of the Constitution of the 
MN-S provides that the Executive of the MN-S 
MNLA have a term of office of four (4) years; 
AND WHEREAS Article 8(2) of the Constitution 
of the MN-S requires that an election for the 
Executive and Regional Representatives of the 
PMC of the MN-S MNLA be held within four (4) 
years of the previous PMC election; 
AND WHEREAS the election of the Executive 
and Regional Representatives of the PMC of the 
MN-S, MNLA may not comply with the 
Constitution of the MN-S and the Saskatchewan 
Métis Elections Act 2007, as amended,‘ 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that any 
member of the Executive and Regional 
Representatives of the PMC of the MN-S MNLA 
whose tem1 will expire in accordance with the 
Constitution of the MN-S and the Saskatchewan 
Métis Elections Act 2007, as amended, where 
the MN-S MNLA secures an election date 
beyond the required timeframe, will have their 
term extended for a reasonable period of time to 
facilitate the completion of an election pursuant 
to the Constitution of the MN-S and the 
Saskatchewan Métis Elections Act 2007, as 
amended.” 
“That the MN-S PMC directs that the contract 
with Lorne Gibson, Election Consultant, be 
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extended until the Chief Electoral Officer has 
been appointed, and the election period for the 
MN-S election set for February 4, 2017, has 
commenced. ” 

"That the MN-S PMC approves the following 
appointments of Quorum Counters for the 
July 30 and 31, 2016 MNLA: two designated 
Ernst & Young LLP (EY) staff members; and 
Carrie Peacock, Recording Secretary, 
specifically for any resolutions related to E Y. ” 

Payment of MNLA Expenses (for Non- 
Recognized Delegates) 
The following resolution was passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC authorizes Ernst & Young 
LLP to reimburse the same expenses for 
attending the July 30 and 31, 2016 MNLA for: 
registrants recognized as valid MNLA delegates, 
and registrants not recognized as valid MNLA 
delegates. ” 

JUNE 16 and JULY 8, 2016 
Business Arising from the June 4-5, 2016 
Meeting 
It was clarified that the Election Committee 
members were not restricted from running in the 
election. 

Update from Election Consultant 
Lorne Gibson, Election Consultant, reviewed his 
past experience with elections in Saskatchewan. 
The PMC was encouraged to retain a Chief 
Electoral Officer as soon as possible, to begin 
preparing for the next election. 

The meeting discussed the short time frame in 
which to prepare for a legitimate election on 
September 3, 2016. 

Update from the Federal Government 
The PMC was commended on its progression 
towards becoming a decision-making governing 
body. The meeting was informed that the 
funding agreement was still pending the MN-S 
President’s signature. 

Thanks were extended to EY and INAC, for their 
support in rebuilding the MN-S. 

Update from the Back to Batoche Committee 
An update was provided on the July 14-16, 2016 
Back to Batoche Festival. Comments were 
offered on status of repairs being completed and 
the involvement of sponsors. Volunteers, 
including EY staff and others, were commended 
for their assistance in preparing for the festival 
(painting, cleaning, etc.) 

Update from MN-S Election Committee 
A resolution was passed to engage 
Lorne Gibson, Election Consultant, until the 
appointment of the Chief Electoral Officer. 

Update from the Chief Executive Officer 
An update was provided on the PMC‘s directions 
related to the MN-S’ SaskTe| account. Funding 
available to identify gaps in the Urban Aboriginal 
Strategy was discussed. A resolution was 
passed directing that a funding proposal be 
submitted under the Urban Aboriginal Strategy. 
Members were reminded that the budget 
allowed for Regional Councils to meet, and to 
contact EY to make arrangements accordingly. 

Update from the Expert Advisor (EY) 
Updates were provided on: discussions with the 
RBC towards a resolution on the MN-S‘ 
outstanding debt; and, accounting and other 
documents being prepared for the upcoming 
MNLA. A resolution was passed directing that 
items held in storage be returned to the MN-S 
office, and that an outstanding amount owed by 
the MN-S for storage space, be paid. 

Update from the Youth Council 
Cody Breaton, Chair, Youth Council, reviewed 
the results of the June 26, 2016 Youth Council 
election, as follows: 
- President: Cody Breaton 
- Vice President: J.C. Bell 
° Secretary/Treasurer: Renita Swan 
- Honourable Delegates: Candace Herman 

and Jessie Janvier. 
A resolution was passed accepting the MN-S 
Youth Council President as the Youth 
Representative, on the PMC. 

Provide Membership Lists and Local 
President Lists to EY 
The meeting passed a resolution directing 
Regional Directors to register delegates (from 
their respective regions) to attend the upcoming 
MNLA. 

2015-16 MN-S PMC Meeting Summary (Revised January 21, 2017) Page 14 of 29



It was agreed that a letter be sent to an 
incorrectly indicated “Cumberland House 
President” on the Eastern Region 1 Membership 
List, clarifying that the designated Regional 
Directors for each region would be appointing 
delegates to attend the 2016 MNLA. 

Next PMC Meetings 
As funding was available for two more PMC 
meetings, a resolution was passed to schedule 
the next meeting July 22, 2016. A subsequent 
meeting would be schedu!ed July 29, 2016. 

Health Advisory Board Appointees 
The meeting appointed the following to 
participate in upcoming Health Advisory Board 
meetings, as invited by the University of 
Saskatchewan: Cody Breaton, Ead Cook, 
Denise McKenzie, and Shirley Morin. 

Election Committee 
It was confirmed that Lorne Gibson, Election 
Consultant, had been retained by the MN-S and 
would be presenting information regarding the 
MN-S election, at the upcoming MNLA. 

Finance Committee 
EY’s recent receipt of funding through the 
federal agreement was confirmed. 

MNLA Committee 
An update was provided on preparations for the 
July 30 and 31, 2016 MNLA. It was noted that a 
summary of the PMC’s decisions from 2015 to 
2016 had been compiled to provide to 
delegates. 

Invitations had been extended to MN-S affiliates 
to provide presentations at the MNLA, in addition 
to printed copies of their annual reports/audits. 

Building Lease 
As the MN-S building lease would soon be up for 
renewal, it was suggested that EY research 
lease rates for similar facilities in the vicinity and 
consider asking the landlord to consider a short- 
term lease extension, or concluding the lease. 
The Finance Committee was asked to consider 
how to proceed regarding the MN-S building 
lease, based on EY’s discussions with the 
landlord. 

Access to Financial Information 
The following resolution was passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC directs E Y to seek through 
the MN-S’ legal counsel, the coun‘ ordered 
provision of financial documentation for the 
following entities, from the organizations and/or 
individuals holding the information: 
- Back to Batoche Festival Inc. 
- Back to Batoche Land Management Inc. 
- Provincial Métis Housing Inc. 
- Round Prairie Ventures Inc. 
- Round Prairie Development Ltd. 
- Provincial Métis Holdco 
- Métis Nation—Saskatchewan—Secretariat Inc. 
- Métis Society of Saskatchewan.” 

Update from Legal Counsel 
MN-S’ Legal Counsel agreed to pursue a court 
ordered provision of financial information, 
regarding the MN-S organizations. It was 
confirmed that the Corporate Registry had been 
updated for the MN-S Secretariat Inc. 

Additionally, an application made through the 
Residential Tenancy Act for an order to have the 
tenant at the Batoche site removed, was 
acknowledged. 

MNC Métis Rights Panel (MRP) 
Representative 
The meeting confirmed the appointment of 
Billy Kennedy as Métis Rights Panel 
Representative, and Glen McCa|lum as his 
alternate. 

MNC Environment Committee Representative 
The meeting confirmed that Lennard Morin 
would represent the MN-S on the MNC 
Environment Committee. 

Citizen’s Inquiries 
Given the excessive inquiries EY was receiving, 
a resolution was passed directing that EY refer 
citizens with concerns related to MN-S matters, 
to the elected leaders of the MN-S. 
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Communications with the Clarence Campeau 
Development Fund (CCDF) 
It was confirmed that CCDF declined the 
invitation to attend the PMC meeting. 
A CCDF representative will be invited to a future 
MN-S PMC meeting to discuss the agreement 
between the CCDF and the MN-S. Additionally, 
the Minister Responsible for First Nations, Métis 
and Northern Affairs will be invited to attend a 
meeting with the MN-S Finance Committee, 
Chief Executive Officer and EY, regarding the 
agreement between the Province, the MN-S and 
the CCDF. 

Security Camera 
The meeting was informed that it was uncertain 
when the security camera over the MN-S 
entrance door had been removed. 

National Economic Development Strategy MNC President Clément Chartier reviewed the 
commitment in Budget 2016 to support 
economic development for the Métis Nation. 
The following resolution was passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC supports the distribution of 
economic development funding (committed to in 
Budget 2016-17) for years two through five, 
being based on the previously established 
funding formula of 25%, 25%, 25%, 12.5%, and 
12.5%, which would amount each year to: 
a) $1,125,000 for each Prairie Governing 

Member; 
b) $562,500 each for the Métis Nation Ontario 

and Métis Nation of BC; and 
c) $500,000 for the Métis National Council." 

JUNE 4 and 5, 2016 
Update from Legal Counsel (Jay Watson) 
The meeting discussed ownership of the 
Batoche lands. 
The following resolution was passed: 
"That the MN-S PMC directs its Legal Counsel 
to register the appropriate legal documentation 
required to change the registered owner of the 
Batoche lands to “MN-S Secretariat Inc.” 

Update from the Federal Government 
The meeting was informed that Minister Bennett 
had approved the GDl’s purchase of the MN-S 
historic library, and had also approved 
proceeding towards an agreement for the next 
phase of funding for the MN-S, with funding for 
an Expert Advisor to oversee the management 
of funding and operations, until March 31, 2017. 

Update from the Back to Batoche Committee 
An update was provided on the 2016 Back to 
Batoche Festival scheduled July 14 to 16, 2016. 
The following resolutions were passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC requests funds in the 
amount of $50,000 from the Clarence Campeau 
Development Fund, for the 2016 Back to 
Batoche Festival Inc.” 
“That the MN-S PMC requests funds in the 
amount of $100,000 from the Clarence 
Campeau Development Fund, for Back to 
Batoche capital investments.” 
"That the MN-S PMC requests funds in the 
amount of $200,000 from the Clarence 
Campeau Development Fund, to go towards 
Back to Batoche retroactive capital investments.” 
“That the MN-S PMC directs that any funds in 
any previously established bank accounts for 
Batoche, be transferred immediately into the 
designated Back to Batoche account currently 
held by Ernst & Young.” 
During discussion it was agreed that an 
invitation be extended to the CCDF Board of 
Directors to attend a future MN-S PMC meeting 
to discuss Batoche and/or other matters. 

Update from the MNLA Committee 
An update was provided on preparations for the 
Métis Nation Legislative Assembly to be held in 
the Gallagher Convention Centre in Yorkton on 
July 30-31, 2016. 

Legal Notice for MNLA 
The following resolutions were passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC directs that the 30-day 
notice of the MN-S Métis Nation Legislative 
Assembly be signed by the MN-S President or 
Vice-President, depending on their availability.” 
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“That the MN-S PMC directs that the letter 
provided at the June 4 and 5, 2016 MN-S PMC 
Meeting from Ernst & Young LLP to the MN-S 
Locals/Presidents and PMC Members regarding 
“Preparation for upcoming MNLA to be held on 
July 30-31, 2016", dated 30 May 2016, be 
posted on the MN-S website and that a link to 
the letter be posted on the MN-S Facebook 
page.” 

GDI Appointment for Eastern Region 1 
The following resolution was passed: 
"That the MN-S PMC appoints Brian Chaboyer 
as the Eastern Region 1 Representative on the 
Gabriel Dumont Institute Board of Governors.” 

Letter to Saskatchewan Power 
It was confirmed that SaskPower now 
recognized Delta Métis Local 42 as the Métis 
local in Cumberland House, and would soon be 
attending a public community meeting. 

Finance Committee 
The Finance Committee reported that details 
regarding various MN-S entities and some prior 
expenditures, were still being pursued. 
The following resolutions were passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC directs the Executive to 
provide to Ernst & Young or the Finance 
Committee, by June 15, 2016, any financial or 
other information available since the 
June 16, 2012 Métis Nation Legislative 
Assembly for presentation at the 2016 MNLA, 
with respect to the MN-S and its affiliates under 
the umbrella of the MN-S, including (but not 
limited to): 
- BTB Festival Days Inc. 
0 BTB Land Management Inc. 
- Provincial Métis Ho/dco Inc. 
- Provincial Métis Housing Corporation 
- Round Prairie Ventures Inc. 
- Round Prairie Developments Limited 
- The Métis Society of Saskatchewan Inc.” 
“That the MN-S PMC directs its Chief Executive 
Officer (CEO) to take the following actions, with 
respect to cell phone costs: 
- Cancel Treasurer Louis Gardiner’s cell 

phone from the MN-S SaskTeI account, 
effective immediately; 

- Pay cell phone bills for the Executive 
members (excluding Mr. Gardiner) until 

July 31, 2016; 

- Pay cell phone bills for CEO Mavis Taylor, 
until she ceases employment with MN-S; 

- Reimburse Vice-President Gerald Morin ’s 
cell phone bills from February 2015 to April 
2016 inclusively (up to a reasonable amount 
to be determined with Ernst & Young); and 

- Reimburse CEO Mavis Taylor’s cell phone 
bills, retroactively to her start date as MN-S 
CEO (up to a reasonable amount to be 
determined with Ernst & Young).” 

“That the MN-S PMC directs Ernst & Young to 
reimburse the Manitoba Metis Federation for 
meeting costs associated with the 
June 12-13, 2015 PMC Meeting held in 
Saskatoon, Saskatchewan (for hotel, travel, 
meals and meeting room costs). " 

Delegates for Upcoming MNC Annual 
General Assembly in Winnipeg 
The following resolution was passed: 
"That the MN-S PMC appoints the following 
delegates to attend the June 16, 2016 Métis 
National Council (MNC) Constitutional Update 
and the June 17 —— 18, 2016 MNC Annual 
General Assembly: Lela Arnold, Ear1 Cook, 
Robert Doucette, May Henderson, 
Chester Herman, Penny Hurton, 
Helene Johnson, Billy Kennedy, Derek Langan, 
Glen McCaIIum, Darlene McKay, Tammy Mah, 
Gerald Morin, Lennard Morin, and a Western 
Region 1 representative, to be determined.” 

Update from Expert Advisor — Ernst & Young 
It was noted that the minutes of the January 16 
to 17, 2015 PMC meeting, may not have been 
approved. 

The following resolutions were passed: 
"That the MN-S PMC adopts the Minutes of its 
January 16 — 17, 2015 meeting.” 
“That the MN-S PMC appoints Will Goodon and 
Kathy Hodgson-Smith as Speaker and Deputy 
Speaker for the MNLA 2016.” 
“That the MN-S PMC encourages President 
Robert Doucette to sign the funding agreement 
between the Government of Canada and the 
MN-S, as presented to the MN-S PMC on 
June 4, 2016 by Richard Quintal, and authorizes 
Vice-President Gerald Morin to sign the 
agreement on behalf of the MN-S, in the event 
the President declines to sign.” 
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Establishment of the MN-S Election 
Committee 
The meeting acknowledged the need to 
establish an Election Committee to assist in 
coordinating the 2016 MN-S Election. 
The following resolutions were passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC appoints Lela Arnold, 
Earl Cook, Chester Herman and Lennard Morin 
to participate on the MN-S Election Committee, 
and to collaborate accordingly with the CEO, in 
preparing for the 2016 MN-S Election.” 
"That the MN-S PMC directs that all PMC 
member positions terminate August 2, 2016, and 
that Ernst & Young and the MN-S CEO manage 
MN-S affairs during the 30-day period prior to 
the election.” 
“That the MN-S PMC directs Ernst & Young to 
pay the salary for the CEO from available funds, 
pursuant to the signed employment agreement.” 

Website Update 
The meeting was informed that a new website 
had been set up and required approval. 
The following resolution was passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC directs Ernst & Young to 
arrange to activate the new MN-S website, as 
soon as possible. ” 

Youth Appointments 
The following resolution was passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC: 
- Reafflrms its earlier decision that 26 youth 

delegates attend the June 26, 2016 Youth 
Leadership Conference sponsored by 
Gabriel Dumont Institute: two delegates from 
each of the 12 regions, plus two delegates 
designated by Minister of Youth 
Gerald Morin and Associate Minister of 
Youth Billy Kennedy; and further 

- Approves Minister of Youth Morin and 
Associate Minister of Youth Kennedy’s 
attendance at the June 26, 2016 Youth 
Leadership Conference.” 

Next PMC Meeting 
The following resolution was passed: 
“That the next MN-S PMC meeting be held 
June 16, 2016 in Winnipeg, Manitoba at 
5:00 p.m.” 

APRIL 16 and 17, 2016 

Back to Batoche Committee 
An update was provided on Back to Batoche 
2016, scheduled July 14 to 16, 2016. Comments 
were offered on: potential sponsorship 
opportunities; upgrades required to the grounds, 
the main house and the bathrooms; an unveiling 
ceremony for the Veteran’s monument; and 
transforming the main house into an 
administrative office for Batoche. 

A response would be sent to the Clarence 
Campeau Development Fund CEO, explaining 
the request for funding, for updates to the 
Batoche grounds. 
Notice had been issued to the tenants of the 
main house to vacate the premises by 
May 3,2016. The rental agreement signed by 
the President and the tenants was reviewed. 

Royal Bank of Canada 
The meeting was informed that RBC’s Legal 
Counsel had been advised that the MN-S‘ 
funding would likely be reinstated, pending some 
further processes. RBC subsequently requested 
updates and assurances that the debt would be 
paid. 

Health Data Governance 
Dr. Robert Henry and Dr. Caroline Tait 
presented information on a health data 
governance project they were working on. 
Dr. Tait agreed to communicate with 
Dar1ene McKay, Minister of Health, to confirm 
five or six PMC representatives to participate on 
the project’s Advisory Committee and in 
discussions on data governance. 

Daniels Decision 
MNC President Chartier explained that the 
Supreme Court of Canada’s April 14, 2016 
announcement recognized that the federal 
government's duties and responsibilities app|ied 
to all three of Canada’s Indigenous peoples, 
including the Métis. 

Métis Legal Research and Education 
Foundation (MLREF) Inc. 
The meeting discussed the initial intent of the 
MLREF in 2002, to provide access as required 
to free legal services for Métis court cases. 
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A number of cases the MLREF legal team had 
taken on were reviewed, and members of the 
MLREF legal team, who provided pro bono legal 
services, were recognized. 
The following resolution was passed: 
“Whereas the MN-S, the MNC, several scrip 
recipients and Elders, and Local Presidents filed 
a Statement of Claim to the lands of Northwest 
Saskatchewan in March 1994; and 
Whereas the Court of Queen’s Bench has 
stayed the case since 2004 to allow for the Métis 
plaintiffs to provide further disclosure of 
requested documents by the federal 
government; and 
Whereas the last law firm in Saskatoon which 
was retained by the MN-S PMC withdrew its 

services in 2008 due to a lack of fiscal capacity 
on the part of the MN-S; and 
Whereas the federal government is prepared to 
engage in a reconciliation process with the Métis 
Nation as represented by the MNC and its 

Governing Members, including the MN-S; and 
Whereas the Supreme Court of Canada on 
April 14, 2016 ruled that Métis are included in 
the term “/ndians” in s. 91(24) of the Constitution 
Act, 1867; and 
Whereas the Métis Legal Research and 
Education Foundation Inc. is currently defending 
three Métis hunters and fishermen from Meadow 
Lake and Chitek Lake, which are pan of the 
Métis rights bearing community in 
Saskatchewan; and 
Whereas there is a need to engage the 
representation of a law firm to address the 
outstanding issues of the Statement of Claim 
and pursue negotiations regarding Métis access 
to and governance over the lands of Northwest 
Saskatchewan as a test case; 
Therefore be it resolved that the MN-S PMC 
hereby retains the Métis Legal Research and 
Education Foundation Inc. to provide the legal 
services required by the litigation and/or to assist 
the MN-S to pursue an out of court resolution 
through any means, including the upcoming 
reconciliation process flowing from Ministerial 
Special Representative Tom Isaac’s report.” 

Delta Métis Local 42 (Cumberland House) 
The following resolution was passed: 
“That the MN—S PMC request that Earl Cook 
assist Lennard Mon'n in drafting: 
- A letter to be sent to a recently formed local 

in Cumberland House, with a copy to the 
existing Delta Métis Local 42 (Cumberland 
House), explaining the process outlined in 
the MN-S Constitution for establishing a new 
local; and 

- A separate letter to Bill Boyd, Minister 
Responsible for Saskatchewan Power 
Corporation, informing that Delta Métis Local 
42 was the appropriate local with which to 
communicate in Cumberland House.” 

Government of Saskatchewan Heritage 
Property Act 
Gareth Evans, Heritage Designations Advisor, 
Ministry or Parks, Culture and Sport, provided 
information on applying for heritage designation 
for specific elements of a site (i.e. the Batoche 
festival site, buildings on the Batoche site, 
and/or the monument only). 
A template letter of support would be drafted, for 
designating the Batoche site and the buildings 
on the Batoche site as “Heritage Sites", which 
PMC members could complete and submit 
accordingly. 

Sale of the MN-S Library 
The meeting discussed selling the MN-S’ historic 
library to the Gabriel Dumont Institute (GDI) 
rather than to the Manitoba Metis Federation. 

At the request of the Mover and Seconder, and 
with the consent of the PMC, the following 
resolution passed by the PMC on 
March 31, 2016, was duly rescinded: “That the 
Métis Nation - Saskatchewan (MN-S) Provincial 
Métis Council accept the offer from the Manitoba 
Metis Federation to purchase the MN—S historic 
library (inclusive of the microfiche and map 
collection) for the amount of $500, 000”. 
The following new resolution was passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC accept the offer from the 
Gabriel Dumont Institute to purchase the MN—S 
historic library (inclusive of the microfiche and 
map collection) for the amount of $500,000.” 
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Ernst & Young Directives 
The roles of the Expert Advisor were discussed. 
The following resolution was passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC directs that 
Robert Lafontaine provide to Ernst & Young, 
financial information (including detailed cash 
disbursements and bank statements) related to 
MN-S affiliates (including the Provincial Métis 
Housing Corporation and Round Prairie 
Ventures Inc. ), for the purpose of informing the 
PMC.” 

Components of a New Funding Agreement 
The meeting discussed components of an 
interim three-month funding agreement, 
intended to enable EY to continue as the MN-S’ 
independent Expert Advisor. 
The following resolution was passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC supports the proposed 
funding agreement presented to the PMC on 
April 17. 2016 by Richard Quinta], INAC, which 
could include the following components: 
1. Ongoing funding to keep Ernst & Young in 

place as the MN-S Expert Advisor until 
March 31, 2017 (for safeguarding the MN-S 
assets, payment of rent and utilities, etc.) 

2. Funding to support a MN-S Executive 
Director position 

3. A communications plan 
4. Up to a total of ten meetings of the PMC and 

the PMC’s subcommittees (the Métis Nation 
Legislative Assembly Committee and the 
Finance Committee), specifically focussed 
on supporting the 2016 Métis Nation 
Legislative Assembly (MNLA) and the 2016 
MN-S Election processes 

5. Twelve Regional Council meetings 
6. The 2016 MNLA and General Assembly (on 

July 30 and 31, 2016 in Yorkton, 
Saskatchewan) 

7. The 2016 MN-S Election (on 
September 3, 2016), which will be facilitated 
by a third party, following the 2007 MN-S 
Election process.” 

MARCH 31, 2016 
Royal Bank of Canada (RBC) Letters 
The meeting acknowledged the March 29, 2016 
formal demand letters sent to the MN-S on 
behalf of the RBC, demanding payment of 
outstanding sums. MN-S’ Legal Counsel had 
since informed RBC's Legal Counsel that the 
MN-S had scheduled a MNLA and an election, 
and further discussed the feasibility of the MN-S 
and RBC working towards a forbearance 
agreement. The Finance Committee and EY 
agreed to further discuss how to proceed. 

Details of a New Funding Agreement 
It was confirmed that the PMC’s achievements 
had been conveyed to Minister Bennett, 
including setting a date for the 2016 MNLA in 
Yorkton and calling an election. Comments were 
offered on funding packages, compiled for the 
Minister’s consideration. 

Initial Funding Agreement with EY — 
Conclusion Date 
The meeting acknowledged that the current 
agreement between the MN-S and EY indicated 
a conclusion date of March 31, 2016. 
The PMC agreed that: 
- EY will remain the MN-S’ Expert Advisor 

beyond March 31, 2016, while efforts 
proceeded towards finalizing a new 
agreement between the MN-S and EY 

~ Budget amounts and activities in the new 
agreement will be reviewed by the 
MN-S and EY 

~ A letter signed by the MN-S President or 
Vice President, will suffice to confirm that 
the initial engagement letter between MN-S 
and EY remains in force beyond its 
March 31, 2016 conclusion date, pending 
completion of a new agreement. 

2016 MNLA and Election 
The meeting discussed preparations required for 
the upcoming MNLA and election. It was agreed 
that the model developed for the 2007 MN-S 
Election Process would be improved for the 
2016 Election Process (i.e. ballot boxes would 
be provided at the appropriate pre-determined 
locations). 
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EY’s Administration of Back to Batoche 
Funds 
EY was requested to administer the receipt and 
disbursement of funds related to Back to 
Batoche 2016, through a dedicated trust account 
managed by EY. 

Access to Clarence Campeau Development 
Fund (CCDF) Fund 
The following resolution was passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC direct Darlene McKay, 
Chair of the Back to Batoche Committee, to 
send a letter to the CEO of the Clarence 
Campeau Development Fund, copied to the 
appropriate representative at INAC, requesting 
$300,000 to upgrade the Batoche grounds 
($100,000 for 2016 and $200,000 for prior 
years), along with an explanation of the tasks to 
be completed with the funds requested.” 
The potential designation of the Batoche 
grounds as a cultural site, was being 
investigated. 

MN-S Representation (Legal Counsel I CEO) 
The meeting discussed options for retaining 
Legal Counse| and a CEO to assist the PMC, 
the Finance Committee and the MNLA 
Committee in achieving their objectives. 

MN-S Library Offers 
The meeting was informed that potential sale of 
the MN-S’ historic library was discussed with 
officials and the Presidents of the Métis Nation 
of Alberta and the Manitoba Metis Federation. 
Both organizations offered to purchase the 
library. Members agreed that proceeds from the 
sale of the MN-S library could be applied 
towards paying off the organization's 
outstanding debt. 

The following resolution was passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC accept the offer from the 
Manitoba Metis Federation to purchase the 
MN-S historic library (inclusive of the microfiche 
and map collection) for the amount of $500, 000.” 

MARCH 4 and 5, 2016 
Ratification of Interim Eastern Region 3 
Regional Director 
The following resolution was passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC ratifies Shelly Kapell as 
Interim Regional Director for Eastern Region 3. " 

Clarence Campeau Development Fund 
(CCDF) 
Roland Duplessis, Chief Executive Officer, 
CCDF, reviewed CCDF's objective to stimuiate 
the economic development activities of Métis 
people and communities. 

Gabriel Dumont Institute (GDI) 
Geordy McCaffrey, Executive Director, GDI, 
acknowledged a variety of university-based 
training and education programs the GDI 
offered. 

Financial Report 
EY representatives commented on preliminary 
estimates of the financial assets and liabilities of 
the MN-S Secretariat |nc., Provincial Métis 
Holdco, and MN-S Secretariat Inc. The meeting 
discussed the value of the MN-S library and 
artefacts, and considered options to protect the 
MN-S assets, while potentially alleviating some 
of the MN-S’ financial issues. 

MN-S Corporate Registry 
EY agreed to contact the MN-S Legal Counsel to 
seek direction on the process for removing 
Janice Henry, Bryan Lee and Alex Morin from 
the Corporate Registry “Notice of Directors” list. 

MNLA I Election Date 
The following resolutions were passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC set July 30 and 31, 2016 
as the dates for the 2016 Métis Nation 
Legislative Assembly.” 
“That the MN-S PMC set September 3, 2016 as 
the date for the 2016 MN-S Election, with 
advance polls scheduled on August 27, 2016. ” 

Presentation on Climate Issues 
Kathy Hodgson-Smith provided a presentation 
on climate issues, and commented on a 
March 3, 2016 report, “Vancouver Declaration 
on Clean Growth and Climate Change”. 
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Letters to Locals and Regions 
A list was provided to each PMC member 
indicating contact information for the locals and 
other representatives in their regions. Any 
revisions were requested promptly. 

Métis Local 42 - President Elections 
Concerns were expressed that that the Mayor 
and Council of Cumberland may be seeking to 
call an election for Métis Local 42, which was 
contrary to Article 7 of the Constitution. 

MN-S Website 
The meeting was informed that the MN-S’ web 
designers had taken the MN-S website down, as 
payment for their services was outstanding. 

INAC — Next Steps 
The meeting discussed potential “Next Steps” 
leading up to the MNLA and the MN-S Election. 
It was noted that Canada was keen to 
collaborate on moving forward, and that 
Minister Bennett had been kept informed 
regarding the PMC’s discussions and progress. 
The following resolution was passed: 
"That the MN-S PMC supports INAC drafting, 
prior to March 31, 2016, a three-month interim 
funding proposal inclusive of high level 
objectives, deliverables and outcomes, to retain 
Ernst & Young beyond March 31, 2016.” 
It was agreed that while the proposal was being 
processed, the PMC could move forward in 
preparing for the MNLA. 

Support for La Loche Programs 
The following resolution was passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC supports INAC working 
closely with the Métis citizens of La Loche and 
moving forward with programs in the community, 
given their extenuating circumstances.” 

MNC Registry Meeting I CSA Standing 
Committee 
The following resolution was passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC directs that: 
a) Chester Herman attend the June 22, 2016 

MNC Registry Meeting in Vancouver as the 
MN-S elected representative; and 

b) Karen Larocque be invited to attend the 
June 22, 2016 MNC Registry Meeting in 
Vancouver as the MN-S technical 
representative, and to also participate on the 
CSA Standing Committee.” 

Youth Representatives’ Meeting 
Efforts continued towards convening a meeting 
of youth representatives. It was noted that two 
youth representatives from each region and two 
additional youth representatives, would be 
invited to attend the meeting (a total of 26). The 
youth meeting could select one youth 
representative to sit at the MN-S PMC table, and 
four youth representatives to attend the MNLA. 

Back To Batoche 
The following resolutions were passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC supports Darlene McKay, 
Chair, Back to Batoche Committee, in accessing 
business support funding and community grant 
funding, for Back to Batoche 2016. ” 

”That the MN-S PMC hereby directs that: 
- Darlene McKay, Chair, Back to Batoche 

Committee, begin preparing for 2016 Back 
to Batoche Days; 

- Thirty (30) days written “Notice to Vacate” 
be provided to those residing in the house 
on the Batoche grounds owned by the Métis 
Nation (including direction to remove all farm ‘ 

implements and machinery the residents are 
storing on the site), as the house will be 
required as a meeting/working space for 
those appointed by the Chair to be in charge 
of Batoche; and further 

0 That the Chair of the Back to Batoche 
Committee, also look into the prospect of 
renovating and residing in the home for the 
2016 summer. " 

During discussion, it was requested that an 
invitation be extended to Prime Minister Trudeau 
to attend Back to Batoche 2016. 

Appointment to MN-S Commission on 
Governance Report and Citizenship 
EY agreed to review the “Accountability 
Resolution", review the mandate of the MN-S 
Commission on Governance Report and 
Citizenship, pursue the most updated version of 
the MN-S Human Resources Manual, and 
ensure the MN-S Corporate Minute Book was up 
to date. 

The following resolution was passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC appoints Chester Herman 
to the MN-S Commission on Governance 
Reform and Citizenship, replacing former PMC 
member Bev Worsley." 
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Appointment of Additional Delegates for the 
March 30 and 31, 2016 MNC Policy 
Conference 
The following resolution was passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC designates the following 
five additional PMC members to attend the 
March 30 and 31, 2016 MNC Policy Conference 
in Vancouver: Robert Doucette, May Henderson, 
Shelly Kapell, Darlene McKay and 
Penny Hurton. ” 

MN-S Library and Other Assets 
Members discussed the potential to resolve 
some financial issues through the sale of MN-S 
library materials and/or other assets to another 
Métis organization. 

The following resolution was passed: 
“That given the value of the MN-S collection of 
historic artefacts and the MN-S’ current financial 
situation, the MN-S PMC requests that 
Richard Quintal, INAC, seek proposals from 
other provincial Métis organizations to purchase 
the MN-S’ historic assets excluding genealogy 
information (as listed in the catalogues 
presented to the MN-S PMC on March 4, 2016), 
providing that the items be made accessible to 
the MN-S and Métis across the homeland.” 

FEBRUARY 19 and 20, 2016 
Report from the Third Party Manager: Ernst & 
Young (EY) 
Evan Shoforost, EY, referred the meeting to the 
February 17, 2016 engagement letter between 
EY and MN-S, signed by the MN-S President 
and Vice President. 

Finance Committee Meetings with EY 
It was agreed that the Finance Committee would 
meet after the PMC meeting concluded on 
February 20, 2016, to discuss the organization’s 
financial situation. 

Preliminary Summary of Payables 
The meeting reviewed a spreadsheet tit|ed 
“MN-S Summary of Payab|es". A more detailed 
list of the organization's assets and liabilities 

would be considered at the next PMC meeting. It 

was clarified that the agreement between EY 
and the MN-S stipulated how the money 
received, could be spent. 

MNLA 
Members acknowledged work required leading 
up to the MNLA. It was agreed that a date for the 
2016 MNLA be set at (or before) the 
March 4 and 5, 2016 PMC meeting. 
The following resolution was passed: 
“WHEREAS, “Article Six — Clerk” of the "Métis 
Nation of Saskatchewan Legislative Assembly 
Act” states that: “The Clerk of the Métis Nation 
Legislative Assembly will: (Article 6.1) Be the 
Chief Executive Officer of the Métis Nation — 
Saskatchewan; (Article 6.2) Be responsible for 
compiling the necessary documentation for the 
Order of the Day; and (Article 6.3) Be 
responsible for the agenda of the Métis Nation 
Legislative Assembly as directed by the 
Provincial Métis Council”; 

BE IT RESOLVED, that Mavis Taylor, Chief 
Executive Officer of the Métis Nation - 
Saskatchewan, be appointed as the Clerk of the 
2016 Métis Nation Legislative Assembly; and 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this position 
be a paid position leading up to the MNLA being 
held in 2016." 

The following additional resolution was passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC hereby calls for a Métis 
Nation Legislative Assembly to be held. ” 

During discussion, it was clarified that a previous 
decision was made that the next MNLA would be 
held in Yorkton, Saskatchewan. 

Portfolio Assignments 
The meeting noted that in accordance with 
“Article Nine — Reporting” of the Legislative 
Assembly Act, Ministerial Reports were to be 
provided at the MNLA. As such, it was agreed 
that MN-S Ministers’ portfolio assignments be 
promptly reaffirmed with the affiliates. Portfolio 
holders could then foilow up with their respective 
affiliates and potentially report out at the MNLA. 
The following resolution was passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC directs that Vice President 
Gerald Morin and Chief Executive Officer Mavis 
Taylor collaborate with EY representatives to 
develop a positive strategy related to affiliate 
appointments, which will include: 
a) Drafting a letter to the affiliates and 

government (i.e. Office of the Provincial 
Interlocutor— Saskatchewan) notifying of the 
MN—S Portfolio Assignments; and 
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b) Reviving and updating the MN-S website. 
The following portfolio assignments were noted: 
- Lela Arnold, Minister of Residential Schools 
- Chester Herman, Minister of Northern Affairs; 

Minister of Sports and Recreation 
- Helene Johnson, Minister Intergovernmental 

Affairs 
- Billy Kennedy. Associate Minister of Justice, 

Child and Family Services; Métis Rights 
Panellist; Associate Minister of Youth 

- Derek Langan, Minister of Métis Housing 
- Glen McCal|um, Métis Addictions Council of 

Saskatchewan Inc. (MACSI) 
- Darlene McKay, Minister of Health 
- Tammy Mah, Minister Responsible for 

Women 
- Gerald Morin, Minister of Justice, Child and 

Family Services; Minister of Youth 
- Lennard Morin, Minister of Veteran Affairs. 

Back To Batoche 2016 Update 
The meeting received an update on Back to 
Batoche 2016. Members agreed that EY would 
manage the financial affairs of the event. 
The following resolution was passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC directs that finances for 
Back to Batoche 2016 be administrated through 
the third party expert advisor, Ernst & Young.” 

Delegates for the March 30 and 31, 2016 MNC 
Policy Conference in Vancouver 
The following resolution was passed: 
"That the MN-S PMC designates the following 
PMC members to attend the March 30-31, 2016 
MNC Policy Conference in Vancouver: 
Lela Arnold, Earl Cook, Chester Herman, 
Helene Johnson, Billy Kennedy, Derek Langan, 
Glen McCaI/um, Tammy Mah, Gerald Morin, and 
Lennard Morin.” 

Delegates for the June 17 to 19, 2016 MNC 
General Assembly in Winnipeg 
The foilowing resolution was passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC designates the following 
PMC members to attend the June 17-19, 2016 
MNC General Assembly in Winnipeg: 

Lela Arnold, Michael Bell, Earl Cook, 
Robert Doucette, Louis Gardiner, May 
Henderson, Chester Herman, Penny Hurton, 
Helene Johnson, Billy Kennedy, Derek Langan, 
G/en McCalIum, Dariene McKay, Tammy Mah, 
Gerald Morin and Lennard Morin." 

MN LA Committee/Finance Committee 
It was agreed that the Finance Committee and 
the MNLA Committee would meet immediately 
following the February 19 and 20, 2016 PMC 
Meeting. 

Nuclear Waste Management Organization - 
Cumberland House 
The meeting was informed that communities 
initially engaged in the Nuclear Waste 
Management Organization site selection process 
that were no longer being studied, received “duty 
to consult” funding. The Municipality of 
Cumberland House continued to hold the portion 
of funding owed to Métis Local 42. 
The following resolution was passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC directs that a letter be sent 
to the Municipality of Cumberland House, asking 
them to release the “Duty to Consult” money 
owed to Métis Local 42.” 

Role of the Treasurer 
Members reviewed the roles and responsibilities 
of the elected MN-S Treasurer, and agreed that 
a letter be sent to the MN-S Treasurer urging 
him to engage in PMC activities. 
Access to the MN-S Office 
It was confirmed that EY had gained access to 
the interior and exterior doors of the MN-S office. 

Expenses for MN-S Chief Executive Officer 
The following resolution was passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC directs that the MN-S 
Chief Executive Officer’s travel and 
accommodation expenses related to work on 
behalf of the PMC, be paid.” 

Agreement Between EY and MN-S 
EY representatives agreed to ensure that the 
Corporate Registry reflected the correct 
Directors of the Métis Nation — Saskatchewan 
Secretariat. 
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Delegate to Attend the March 2, 2016 Meeting 
with the Prime Minister and Premiers 
The following resolution was passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC designates Vice President 
Gerald Morin to attend the March 2, 2016 
Meeting with the Prime Minister and Premiers in 
Vancouver, on behalf of the MN-S. ” 

Youth Meeting 
The meeting was informed that funding was 
being pursued to organize a youth meeting, 
which youth representatives (designated by 
each region) would be invited to attend. In 
accordance with Article 3.1.4 of the Legislative 
Assembly Act, four youth members should 
attend the MNLA. 

JANUARY 16, 2016, 
FEBRUARY 5 and 6, 2016 

Funding Proposal from INAC 
The meeting was informed that Indigenous and 
Northern Affairs Canada (INAC) was interested 
in assisting MN-S to move forward. 
Minister Carolyn Bennett had approved the 
implementation of a strategy outlined in a 
"Proposed Approach Terms of Reference”, and 
the associated funding. 

The following resolution was passed: 
"That the MN-S PMC accepts the strategy 
documented in the “Proposed Approach Terms 
of Reference" and the associated funding, with 
the assurances provided by the representatives 
of INAC during the discussion, and with the 
following amendments to the “Proposed 
Approach Terms of Reference": 
A. Replace the first bullet of the Objectives 

section with “To re-establish a strong, 
reliable and legitimate representative of the 
Métis of Saskatchewan and to allow them to 
panicipate in and inform /ong-term policy 
development”; and 

B. Replace the second bullet of the item titled 
“Funding of up to three Provincial Métis 
Council meetings" of the Key Elements 
section with “Provincial Métis Council 
resolutions that are passed and documented 
at a properly constituted meeting of the 
Provincial Métis Council will be required as 
part of this process.” 

MN-S Audit 
The following resolution was passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC directs the Finance 
Committee to ensure that the resolution 
regarding a forensic audit, passed at the 
June 5, 2015 PMC meeting, be implemented as 
part of the work of the expert advisor under the 
INAC funding proposal. ” 

Citizenship Registry 
The meeting was informed that the creation of a 
Registry Committee had been deferred pending 
a resolution on the custody of the MN-S 
Citizenship Registry documents. 

MNLA 
Discussion ensued on the need to provide 
reports on the terms of the Master Agreement 
and the work of the Finance Committee at the 
MNLA. 

MN-S Election 
The meeting was informed that the federal 
government had committed to conducting a 
MN-S election, modelled on the 2007 MN-S 
Election process. 

2016 Batoche Festival 
The following resolutions were passed: 
"That the MN-S PMC appoints Darlene McKay 
as the Chair of the Back to Batoche Festival 
Committee for 2016 and that Vice-President 
Gerald Morin be authorized to correspond, in 
writing, to all government levels and MN-S 
affiliates requesting funding.” 

“That the MN-S PMC appoints Dadene McKay 
as the Chair of the Back to Batoche Land 
Management Committee.” 

Gabriel Dumont Institute (GDI) 
Representative Appointments 
The following resolutions were passed: 
“That the Métis Nation — Saskatchewan 
Provincial Métis Council appoints Andy McKay 
as the Cumberland House representative to the 
GDI Board of Directors. ” 

“That the MN-S PMC ratifies the appointment of 
Dennis Langan to the GDI Board of Directors. ” 

“That the MN-S PMC reappoints Glenn Lafleur 
to the GDI Board of Directors.” 
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EB Campbell Dam 
The meeting discussed the expiration of the 
license for the EB Campbell Dam on 
December 31, 2015, which triggered a duty to 
consult. 

MN-S Signatory 
The following resolution was passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC requests Vice-President 
Gerald Morin to sign letters and other 
documents on behalf of the MN—S, in the 
absence of the President; and further, authorizes 
Vice-President Morin to sign letters and other 
documents as approved by the PMC, in the 
event that the President declines to sign.” 

Payment of Legal Costs 
The following resomtion was passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC confirms its intention to 
pay for legal services provided to the PMC by 
Jay Watson, as soon as it is able to do so.” 

Reponses to the Media 
It was agreed that the MN-S Vice-President 
respond to media requests for information on the 
funding arrangement entered into with INAC. 

Prospective Third Party Expert Advisors 
A number of accounting firms were contacted to 
potentially assume the role of Expert Advisor to 
the MN-S. Representatives of MNP and Ernst & 
Young provided presentations at the meeting. 
The following resolutions were passed: 
"That the MN-S PMC authorize contracting the 
services of Ernst & Young, to act as the Expert 
Advisor for the MN-S, guided by the “Expert 
Advisor — Statement of Work — Key Elements”, 
approved by the PMC on February 6, 2016. ” 

“That the MN-S PMC adopt the amended 
"Expert Advisor — Statement of Work — Key 
Elements", provided on February 6, 2016.” 

Reimbursement of PMC Expenses 
The foI|owing resolution was passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC direct that INAC reimburse 
the Prince Albert Métis Women for expenses 
incurred related to the PMC members’ 
participation in the following: 
- The February 5 and 6, 2016 PMC Meeting 

- The January 16 and 17, 2015 PMC (Royal 
Reporting) Meeting, including the 
Travelodge costs 

- PMC conference calls. ” 

Approach for the Third Party Expert Advisor 
During a review of the document titled “Expert 
Advisor —— Statement of Work — Key Elements", it 

was confirmed that funding provided, would flow 
through the Expert Advisor (the initial transfer of 
funds could cover immediate office costs, such 
as rent and insurance). 

MNC President Clément Chartier 
MNC President Chartier commended the 
relationship established between INAC and 
MN-S representatives. Government's role in re- 
establishing the MN-S as the representative for 
the Métis citizens in Saskatchewan was 
acknowledged. 

Contribution Agreement 
The meeting reviewed the contribution 
agreement presented, which outlined an 
approach to assist the MN-S in moving towards 
an MNLA and election. 
The following resolution was passed: 
“That the MN-S PMC accept the “Amending 
Agreement (No. 1415-HQ—000097) for 
Subsequent Years of an ARFA Other, Fiscal 
Year 2015/2016, with Action Planning" as 
presented to the PMC on February 6, 2016, 
subject to agreement by the MN-S President or 
Vice—President. ” 

JUNE 5 and 8, 2015 

Finance I Métis Nation Legislative Assembly 
(MNLA) Committee Update 
The meeting was informed that the Finance and 
MNLA Committees had met. 
Seizure of the Métis Nation — Saskatchewan 
(MN-S) Financial Records 
The following resolution was passed: 
“BE IT RESOLVED that given the refusal of 
President Robert Doucette and Treasurer 
Louis Gardiner to release any and all financial 
records pertaining to the MN-S and its affiliated 
companies to the PMC; 
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We — the PMC designate the MN—S Finance 
Committee, which was duly appointed by the 
PMC at the January 16-17, 2015 PMC meeting, 
to seize from the MN-S Head Office, or from any 
other law or accounting office, all financial 
records of the MN-S and any affiliated 
companies closely held by the MN-S and/or MN- 
S Executive, including Provincial Métis Holdco, 
Round Prairie Ventures, Back to Batoche 
Festival Inc., etc. immediately; and further 
That any such records be taken to and held by 
Cuelenaere Katzman in trust, ensuring that the 
Finance Committee maintains control and 
access of the records, under the instruction of 
the PMC.” 

Formation of a MN-S Registry Committee 
The following resolution was passed: 
“BE IT RESOLVED that given the lack of funding 
to the MN—S and the formal announcement of 
President Doucefle to close the MN-S Head 
Office,‘ 

We, the PMC designate a Registry Committee 
be formed to oversee all matters in relation to 
the Registry, and that such Registry Committee 
be responsible to report to the PMC at each and 
every meeting of the PMC in writing and in the 
absence of a PMC meeting, on a monthly basis 
to the members of the PMC. The members of 
the Registry Committee shall be: Tammy Mah, 
Lela Arnold, Chester Herman, and Gerald Morin; 
and further 
That the Registry Committee shall immediately 
seize and secure all records of the MN-S 
Registry, Genealogy and Archives. Any such 
records seized and secured shall be taken to 
and held by the Gabriel Dumont Institute (GDI) 
in trust, in partnership with the PMC, ensuring 
that the Registry Committee maintains control of 
and access to the records and operation of the 
Registry, under the instruction of the PMC, until 
such time as the PMC orders othem/ise.” 
MN-S Delegates to the Métis National Council 
2015 General Assembly 
The following resolution was passed: 
"BE IT RESOLVED that given the fact that the 
MN-S is a member of the Métis National Council 
(MNC) and holds fifteen (15) voting delegates at 
MNC General Assemblies, 

The PMC hereby selects the following 
individuals to represent the MN-S at the 
upcoming MNC General Assembly scheduled 
June 6-7, 2015 in Calgary, Alberta: 
Gerald Morin; Glen McCallum; Helene Johnson; 
Bev Worsley; Mavis Taylor; Darlene McKay; 
Lela Arnold; Tammy Mah; Karen Larocque; 
Chester Herman; Lennard Mon'n; and 
Derek Langan. ” 

MNLA Date, Funding and Clerk 
The following resolution was passed: 
“BE IT RESOLVED that given the fact that 
Canada reported on May 5, 2015, on a 
teleconference, that a decision has not been 
taken on the funding to the MN-S to convene the 
MNLA, PMC meetings, Finance or Human 
Resources meetings to prepare for an MNLA; 
and 
Given the fact that President Doucette has 
announced that he has the funding for an MNLA 
but has failed to demonstrate that such funding 
exists, and given that Treasurer Louis Gardiner 
has reported that, as of March 31, 2015, funding 
sufficient for an MNLA does not exist within 
MN-S coffers; 
The PMC retain Jay Watson, Cuelenaere 
Katzman, to seek an amendment to 
Justice Scherrnan’s Order of April 6, 2015 
requiring that the calling of an MNLA be done 
when funding sufficient for meaningful and full 
participation of the MNLA delegates is secured; 
and 
Further, that Mavis Taylor be appointed to serve 
as Chief Executive Officer of MN-S and Clerk of 
the MNLA, whenever called, at a rate to be 
negotiated by the Finance Committee.” 

Batoche Funding 
The foliowing resolution was passed: 
“BE IT RESOLVED that the PMC Finance 
Committee establish a plan to address the 
challenges forthcoming in relation to Back to 
Batoche Days 2015, and that the 
PMC Committee work closely with Minister 
Darlene McKay, Chairperson Responsible for 
Batoche." 
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MN-S Elections 
The following resolution was passed: 
"BE IT RESOLVED that given that Métis people 
value democracy and that democracy is the 
fundamental vision underlying the MN-S 
Constitution; and further, 
Given that since 1976, the MN-S has held ballot- 
box elections in every Local and was the first 
such Aboriginal government in Canada to do so. 
Every election except for the last one, each 
MN-S Local was entitled to hold a ballot box to 
ensure the meaningful and democratic election 
of MN-S leadership by the grassroots people. It 

is incumbent on the Federal Government to 
ensure that the necessary resources are 
secured to carry out such an election. and that 
includes ensuring that a ballot box be 
established in every local; 
As such, the PMC Finance Committee shall 
immediately begin discussions with Canada, 
including Saskatchewan, to secure the 
necessary funding for the next MN-S election, 
based on such principles.” 

Designated Representative to Engage with 
Aboriginal Affairs and Northern Development 
Canada (AANDC) Ministerial Special 
Representative Thomas Isaac 
The following resolution was passed: 
“BE IT RESOLVED that the PMC designates 
Lennard Morin as the representative to engage 
with the AANDC Ministerial Special 
Representative Thomas Isaac, on Métis s.35 
rights.” 

MN-S Affiliated Institution Engagement with 
AANDC Ministerial Special Representative 
Thomas Isaac 
The following resolution was passed: 
“BE IT RESOLVED that the MN-S PMC seeks 
the engagement of its affiliated institutions in 
discussions with the AANDC Ministerial Special 
Representative Thomas Isaac.” 

MN-S Election Date I CEO 
The meeting discussed potential MN-S election 
dates, but did not reach a decision. 

Métis Nation Legislative Assembly (MNLA) 
The meeting discussed a potential date for a 
MNLA, but did not reach a decision. 

Forensic Audit I Information Provided to 
Prince Albert City Police 
The following resolution was passed: 
“WHEREAS the Constitution, Acts and 
legislation of the MN-S sets out the processes of 
the MN-S; and 
WHEREAS the PMC of the MN-S is the 
legitimate authority of the MN-S; and 
WHEREAS the PMC of the MN-S has been 
blocked by the Executive from exercising its 

fiduciary responsibilities pertaining to any and all 
aspects of the MN-S; and 
WHEREAS the Government of Canada has 
made significant financial contributions to the 
MN-S prior to ceasing all funding to the MN-S; 
BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED that the MN-S 
PMC requests that the Government of Canada 
conduct a forensic audit on: 
1) Métis Nation — Saskatchewan; 
2) Métis Nation — Saskatchewan Secretariat 

lnc.,- 

3) Any corporations closely held by the Métis 
Nation — Saskatchewan, including but not 
limited to Provincial Métis Holdco, Holdco 
Trust, Round Prairie Ventures lnc., Round 
Prairie Development Corp., BTB Festival 
Days lnc., BTB Land Management lnc.,‘ and 

4) Boards or committees established by 
President Robert Doucette during the 2007 
to 2012 and 2012 to 2015 terms of office." 

Amendment of Corporate Documents 
The foflowing resolution was passed: 
"BE IT RESOLVED that the MN-S PMC directs 
the Finance Committee to investigate and 
correct the corporate records to reflect the 
current PMC members, and to file the 
amendments to the corporate records.” 

Third Party Management 
It was confirmed that the Finance Committee 
would be assigned to work with the third-party 
management. An update on arrangements for 
third-party management was provided. 

Update on Pending Court Action 
The meeting was informed that legal counsel 
provided advice on the need to demonstrate to 
the Courts that the PMC and the MNLA 
Committee had acted in good faith to comply 
with the Order issued by Justice Scherman to 
hold an MNLA by June 19, 2015. 
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The following resolution was passed: 
“BE IT RESOLVED that the MN-S PMC appoints 
Kathy Hodgson-Smith as the MN-S Technician 
to assist the MN-S Designated Representative 
Lennard Morin to represent the MN-S in the 
engagement with the Minister of AANDC 
Ministerial Special Representative 
Thomas Isaac.” 

ACRONYM LIST 
The following acronyms were used in this 
summary: 

AANDC Aboriginal Affairs and Northern 
Development Canada 

CCDF Clarence Campeau Development 
Fund 

EY Ernst & Young 
GDI Gabriel Dumont Institute 
INAC Indigenous and Northern Affairs 

Canada 
MNC Métis National Council 
MNLA Métis Nation Legislative Assembly 
MN-S Métis Nation — Saskatchewan 
PMC Provincial Métis Council 
RBC Royal Bank of Canada 
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Mlnistre des Affalres autochtones Minister of Aboriginal Affairs and 
et du développement du Nord Northern Development~ 

OCT‘ 1 201:. 

Mr. Robert Doucette 
President 
Métis Nation—Saskatchewan 
281 Robin Crescent 
SASKATOON SK ‘S7L 6M8 
FAX: 306-343-0171

K 

Dear President Doucette: 

As you know, the Métis Nation-Saskatchewan is currently operating within a multi—year 
Basic Organizational Capacity Agreement in which the organization receives funding for 
core operations. The Métis Nation—Saskatchewan is bound by the terms and conditions 
of this Agreement. in which the organization explicitly acknowledges that "it will be in 
default of this agreement if it has not held a properly and duly called Métis 
Nation-Saskatchewan Legislative Assembly by September 30, 2014." 

It is my understanding that as of September 30, 2014, the Métis Nation—Saskatchewan 
has not been able to hold a properly and duly cailed Legislative Assembly due to 
ongoing internal governance issues. and as a result is in default of its funding 
agreement as of October 1, 2014. Therefore, the federal government is holding Métis 
Nation-Saskatchewan to the terms and conditions of their Basic Organizational Capacity 
agreement and halting all payments to Métis Nation-Saskatchewan as of - 

November 1, 2014. 
. 

It is my hope that Métis Nation-Saékatchewan finds a way to effectively and efficiently 
give the Métis people of Saskatchewan the -governance that they deserve - one which is 
transparent, ‘accountable and democratic. I also firmly believe that taxpayer dollars are 
to be used wisely and for the benefit of all Canadians. 

Our government remains committed to working with our Métis partners to create jobs, 
economic growth and iong-term prosperity for Métis in Canada. Departmental officials 
will follow up with you to answer any questions you may have. 

.../2 

|¢I Canada



:4 
' 

~; 

..__.._-—.-———...-.....--

x 
-2-. 

In the spirit of transparency, I am copying all known members of the executive of the 
Métis Nation-Saskatchewan. 

Sincerely, 

Bernard Valcourt, -PC. QC, MP 

c.c.: Executive of the Métis Nation-Saskatchewan 

/"\__
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CUTHBERT GRANT DECLARATION 
WHEREAS Cuthbert Grant led the defence of the Métis Nation, its homeland and 
way of life with a victory at the Battle of Frog Plain/Seven Oaks (La Viktwayr di 
Batailledann la Plenn di Goomouyayr) on June 19, 1816 proudly flying the blue Métis 
Nation infinity flag. 

AND WHEREAS we express our deeply held gratitude and thanks for his leadership. 
AND WHEREAS President Louis Riel led the provisional governments at Red River 
and Batoche in 1869/70 and 1884/85 respectively, for which we are ever indebted. 

AND WHEREAS under the military leadership of AmbroiseLepine and Gabriel 
Dumont in 1869/70 and 1884/ 85 respectively, along with the blood shed by our 
warriors in defence of our homeland and the sacrifices of our women, children and 
youth, which underpins our ties to our lands as sacred and deeply rooted, we give 
thanks. 

AND WHEREAS the Métis Nation-Saskatchewan, is the sole representative 
government of the citizens of the Métis Nation within the modern day boundaries of 
the province of Saskatchewan and as such, is a part of the sole and legitimate 
mandated national government of the Métis Nation, the Métis National Council. 

THEREFORE the Métis Nation Legislative Assembly in session on F ebruary 18-19, 
2017 in the city of Saskatoonadopts in honour of Cuthbert Grant, Louis Riel, 
AmbroiseLepine and Gabriel Dumont, along with the many Métis Nation leaders and 
citizens, female and male, who walked with them or followed in their footsteps, this 
declaration to be henceforth known as the Cuthbert Grant Declaration. 

WE HEREBY DECLARE: 
> There is only one Métis Nation and the Métis National Council is the sole 

national government of the Métis Nation. 

> We the people of the Métis Nation living within the province of Saskatchewan, 
represented by the Métis Nation-Saskatchewan, share a common national 
cultural identity, history, homeland, political will, solidarity and nationalism. 

> We, as part of the people of the Métis Nation, have a right to self- 
determination, including the inherent right of self-govemment, which we 
declared in December 1993 through our Constitution, which has withstood the 
tests of time. 

> We, as part of the Métis Nation, assert the right to our lands, resources and 
traditional territory in the historic Northwest. 

> We, as part of the people of the Métis Nation, are desirous of strengthening 
our historic bonds across the Métis Nation Homeland, which today includes 

-“ the provinces of Manitoba, Saskatchewan, Alberta, northeastern British 
Columbia, northwestern Ontario, and a contiguous part of boththe Northwest 
Territories and the United States of America. 

THIS DECLARATION WE PROCLAIM forms the cor_nerstone of our existence as O citizens of a distinct Indigenous people and nation: the ME T IS NA T ION. 

Proclaimed this 19th day of February, in the year 2017.



Section 
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Section 
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Province of Saskatchewan 
Land Titles Registry 

Title 
Title #: 148665303 As of: 20 Sep 2016 08:51:16 
Title Status: Active Last Amendment Date: 20 Sep 2016 08:06:08‘827 
Parcel Type: Surface Issued: 20 Sep 2016 08106108360 
Parcel Value: $500,000.00 CAD 
Title Value: $500,000.00 CAD Municipality: RM OF ST. LOUIS NO. 431 
Converted Title: 97PA0791S 
Previous Title and/or Abstract #: 1 11565830 

MEWS NATION - SASKATCHEWAN SECRETARIAT INC. is the registered owner of 
Surface Parcel #133504613 
Reference Land Description: Blk/Par F Plan No 86PA06839 Extension 0 
As described on Certificate of Title 97PA079 15. 

This tit|e is subject to any registered interests set out below and the exceptions, reservations and interests 
mentioned in section 14 of The Land 77tIes Act, 2000. 

Registered Interests: 

Interest #: 
176579296 CNV Caveat 

Value: N/A 
Reg'd: 18 Jul 1997 00:20:34 
Interest Registered Amendment Date: N/A 
Interest Assignment Date: N/A 
Interest Scheduled Expiry Date: N/A 
Expiry Date: N/A 

Holder: 
Her Majesty the Queen in right of Canada 
Parks Canada Agency Batoche National Historic Park 1: 1550, 635 - 8th 
Avenue SW. ‘ 

Calgary, Alberta, Canada TZP 3M3 
Client #: 118228989 
Int. Register #: 104415432 
Converted Instrument #: 97PA12339 

Interest #: 
176579308 Enforcement Charge - 

Provincial Judgment Value: $13,851.14 CAD 
Reg'd: 20 Sep 2016 08:06:09 
Interest Registered Amendment Date: N/A 
Interest Assignment Date: N/A 
Interest Scheduled Expiry Date: N/A 
Expiry Date: N/A 

JUDGMENT DATE: 20-OCT-2015 DEBTOR NAME: Metis Nation — 

Saskatchewan Secretariat Inc. 
Holder: 
Rasmussen Rasmussen & Charowsky Legal Professional Corporation 
3301 College Avenue 
Regina, Saskatchewan, Canada S4T 1W3 
Client #: 131994793 
Int. Register #: 121828495 
Judgment Registry #: 301415924 

Addresses for Service: 

Name Address



Province of Saskatchewan 
Land Titles Registry 

Title 
Title #: 148665291 As of: 20 Sep 2016 08:52:49 
Title Status: Active Last Amendment Date: 20 Sep 2016 O8:06:08.2S0 
Parcel Type: Surface Issued: 20 Sep 2016 08:06:07,647 
Parcel Value: $500,000.00 CAD 
Title Value: $500,000.00 CAD Municipality: RM OF ST. LOUIS NO. 431 
Converted Title; 8SPA183 18 
Previous Title and/or Abstract #: 111829631 

METIS NATION — SASKATCHEWAN SECRETARIAT INC. is the registered owner of 
Surface Parcel #133504624 
Reference Land Description: Blk/Par B Plan No SSP/X18317 Extension 0 
As described on Certificate of Title 8SPA18318. 

This title is subject to any registered interests set out below and the exceptions, reservations and interests 
mentioned in section 14 of The Land fir/es Act, 2000. 
Registered Interests: 

Interest #: 
176579263 Miscellaneous Interest 

Value: N/A 
Reg'd: 30 Oct 2014 12:33:44 
Interest Registered Amendment Date: N/A 
Interest Assignment Date: N/A 
Interest Scheduled Expiry Date: N/A 
Expiry Date: N/A 

Holder: 
Gabriel Dumont Institute of Native Studies & Applied Research Inc. 
917—22nd Street West 
Saskatoon, Saskatchewan, Canada S7M DR9 
Client #: 130128869 
Int. Register #: 120434138 

Interest #: 
176579274 Enforcement Charge ~ 

Provincial Judgment Value: $13,851.14 CAD 
Reg'd: 20 Sep 2016 08:06:08 
Interest Registered Amendment Date: N/A 
Interest Assignment Date: N/A 
Interest Scheduled Expiry Date: N/A 
Expiry Date: N/A 

JUDGMENT DATE: 20-OC|'—201S DEBTOR NAME: Metis Nation ~ 

Saskatchewan Secretariat Inc. 
Holder: 
Rasmussen Rasmussen & Charowsky Legal Professional Corporation 
3301 Co|!ege Avenue 
Regina, Saskatchewan, Canada S4T 1W3 
Client #: 131994793 
Int. Register #: 121828473 
Judgment Registry 3: 301415924 

Addresses for Service: 

Name Address 
Owner: 
METTS NATION — SASKATCHEWAN 500-128 4TH AVE S SASKATOON, Saskatchewan, Canada S7K
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Saskatchewan 
n.;.,,,..,uo,,- Corporate Registry 
Services 
Corporation 

Profile Report 
Entlty Number: 101029531 Page 1 of 6 
Entlty Name: METIS NATION - SASKATCHEWAN SECRETARIAT INC. Report Date: 09-Sep-2016 

.; 

Entlty Dahlia 
A 

Enfity Type Other Leglslated Entlty 
Entity Subtype Métls Act 
-Entity Status Active 

Registration Date 28-Jan-2002 

; 

OfI'lce_ /Mamng Address 
Physical Address 500-128 4TH AVE 5, SASKATOON, Saskatd1ewan, Canada, S7K 1M8 

Mailing Address MEUS NATION - SASKATCHEWAN SECRErARIAT INC., 500-128 4TH AVE 5, SASKATOON, 
Saskatchewan, Canada, 57K 1M8 

LOUIS GARDINER (Offlcer) 
Physical Address: BOX 159, ILE A LA CROSSE, 

Saskatchewan, Canada, 
SOM 1G0 

Mailing Address: BOX 159, ILE A LA CROSSE, Office Held: TREASURER 
Saskatchewan, Canada, 
SOM1G0 

Effective Date: 03-Jun-2016 
ROBERT DOUCEITE (Officer) 
Physical Address: 406 JESSOP AVENUE, 

SASKATOON, Saskatchewan, 
Canada, S7N2S5 

Mailing Address: 406 JESSOP AVENUE, Office Held: PRESIDENT 
SASKATOON, Saskatchewan, 
Canada, S7N2S5 

Effective Date: 03-Jun-2016 
MAY HENDERSON (Officer) 
Physical Address: 406 JESSOP AVENUE, 

SASKATOON, Saskatchewan, 
Canada, S7N2S5 

Malling Address: 406 JESSOP AVENUE, omce Held: SECRETARY 
SASKATOON, Saskatchewan, 
Canada, S7N2S5 

Effective Date: 03-Jun-2016



Saskatchewan 
Info;-ngqflon" Corporate Registry 
Servlcas Coxporaflon 

Profile Report 
Entity Number: 101029531 Page 2 of 6 
Entity Name: METIS NATION - SASKATCHEWAN SECRETARIAT INC. Report Date: 09-Sep-2016 

TAMMY MAH (Officer) 
Physical Address: 334 CAMBRIDGE ST., PRINCE 

ALBERT, Saskatchewan, 
Canada, S6V2YS 

Mailing Address: 334 CAMBRIDGE 5T., PRINCE Office Held: LES FILLES DE MADELINE 
ALBERT, Saskatchewan, PRESIDENT 
Canada, S6V2Y5 

Effective Date: 03-Jun-2016 

GERALD MORIN (officer) 
Physical Address: 2306 LORNE AVE., 

SASKATOON, Saskatchewan, 
Canada, S7JOS3 

Mailing Address: 2306 LORNE AVE., Office Held: VICE PRESIDENT 
SASKATOON, Saskatchewan, 
Canada, S7JOS3 

Effective Date: 03-Jun-2016 

LOUIS GARDINER (Director) 
Physical Address: BOX 159, ILE A LA CROSSE, 

Saskatchewan, Canada, 
SOMIGO 

Maillng Address: BOX 159, ILE A LA CROSSE, 
Saskatchewan, Canada, 
SOM1G0 

Effective Date: 27-Jun-2007 

ROBERT DOUCE1TE (Director) 
Physical Address: 406 JESSOP AVENUE, 

SASKATOON, Saskatchewan, 
Canada, S7N2S5 

Malllng Address: 406 JESSOP AVENUE, 
SASKATOON, Saskatchewan, 
Canada, S7N2S5 

Effective Date: 27-Jun-2007 

MAY HENDERSON (Director) 
Physical Address: 406 JESSOP AVENUE, 

SASKATOON, Saskatchewan, 
Canada, S7N2S5 

Mailing Address: 406 JESSOP AVENUE, 
SASKATOON, Saskatchewan, 
Canada, S7N2S5 

Effective Date: 08-Sep-2012



Saskatchewan 
;..,.,,m.u.,,— Corporate Registry 
Services 
Colporatlon 

Profile Report 
Entity Number: 101029531 Page 3 of 6 
Entity Name: METIS NATION - SASKATCHEWAN SECRETARIAT INC. Report Date: O9-Sep~2016 

PENNY HURTON (Director) 
Physlcal Address: 217 AVENUE V SOUTH, 

SASKATOON, Saskatchewan, 
Canada, S7M3E2 

Mailing Address: 217 AVENUE V SOUTH, 
SASKATOON, Saskatchewan, 
Canada, S7M3E2 

Effective Date: 08-Sep-2012 
EARL COOK (Director) 
Physical Address: BOX 1851, LA RONGE, 

Saskatchewan, Canada, 
SOJ1L0 

Mailing Address: BOX 1851, LA RONGE, 
Saskatchewan, Canada, 
SOJ1L0 

Effective Date: 01-Dec-2013 
CHESTER J. HERMAN (Dlrector) 
Physlcal Address: BOX 133, LA LOCHE, 

Saskatchewan, Canada, 
SOM1G0 

Mailing Address: BOX 133, LA LOCHE, 
Saskatchewan, Canada, 
SOMIGO 

Effective Date: 03-Jun-2016 
GLEN HECTOR MCCALLUM (Director) 
Physical Address: BOX 337, PINEHOUSE LAKE, 

Saskatchewan, Canada, 
SOJZBO 

Mailing Address: BOX 337, PINEHOUSE LAKE, 
Saskatchewan, Canada, 
SOJZBO 

Effectlve Date: 03-Jun-2016 
LENNARD D. MORIN (Director) 
Physical Address: Box 72, CUMBERLAND 

HOUSE, Saskatchewan, 
Canada, SOEOSO 

Malllng Address: BOX 72, CUMBERLAND 
HOUSE, Saskatchewan, 
Canada, SOEOSO 

Effective Date: 03-Jun-2016



Saskatchewan 
;m,muo,,- Corporate Registry 

Profile Report 
Entity Number: 101029531 Page 4 of 6 
Entlty Name: METIS NATION - SASKATCHEWAN SECREFARIAT INC. Report Date: 09-Sep-2016 

HELENE JOHNSON (Director) 
Physical Address: BOX 158, ARCHERWILL, 

Saskatchewan, Canada, 
SOEOBO 

Mailing Address: BOX 158, ARCHERWILL, 
Saskatchewan, Canada, 
SOEOBO 

Effective Date: 03-Jun-2016 
DEREK LANGAN (Dlractor) 
Physical Address: 2 PINKERTON BAY, 

YORKTON, Saskatchewan, 
Canada, S3N3C9 

Mailing Address: 2 PINKERTON BAY, 
YORKTON, Saskatchewan, 
Canada, S3N3C9 

Effective Date: 03-Jun-2016 
SHELLEY KAPPEL (Director) 
Physical Address: BOX 263, KENOSEE LAKE, 

Saskatchewan, Canada, 
SOCZSO 

Mailing Address: BOX 263, KENOSEE LAKE, 
Saskatchewan, Canada, 
SOCZSO 

Effective Date: 03-Jun-2016 
BILLY KENNEDY (Director) 
Physical Address: 1371 - 106TH ST ., NORTH 

BATTLEFORD, Saskatchewan, 
Canada, S9A2Y9 

Malling Address: 1371 - 106TH ST., NORTH 
BATTLEFORD, Saskatchewan, 
Canada, S9A2Y9 

Effective Date: 03-Jun-2016 
MICHAEL BELL (Director) 
Physical Address: BOX 513, MEADOW LAKE, 

Saskatchewan, Canada, 
S9X1Y4 

Malling Address: BOX 513, MEADOW LAKE, 
Saskatchewan, Canada, 
S9XiY4 

Effective Date: O3-Jun-2016



Entity Number: 101029531 
Entlty Name: ME'I'IS NATION - 

DARLENE MCKAY (Director) 
Physical Address: 

Mailing Address: 

LELA ARNOLD (Director) 
Physical Address: 

Mailing Address: 

GERALD MORIN (Director) 
Physical Address: 

Mailing Address: 

TAMMY MAI-I (Director) 
Physical Address: 

Malllng Address: 

Event I-Ilstory 

Type 

SASKATCHEWAN SECRETARIAT INC. 

8, 54 - 10TH ST. E, PRINCE 
ALBERT, Saskatchewan, 
Canada, S6VOY5 
8, 54 - 10TH ST. E, PRINCE 
ALBERT, Saskatchewan, 
Canada, $6VoY5 

Effective Date: 

DEWDNEY AVENUE EAST, 
REGINA, Saskatchewan, 
Canada, S4N5E4 
DEWDNEY AVENUE EAST, 
REGINA, Saskatchewan, 
Canada, S4N5E4 

Effective Date: 

2306 LORNE AVE., 
SASKATOON, Saskatchewan, 
Canada, S7JOS3 
2306 LORNE AVE., 
SASKATOON, Saskatchewan, 
Canada, S7JOS3 

Effective Date: 

334 CAMBRIDGE ST., PRINCE 
ALBERT, Saskatchewan, 
Canada, S6V2Y5 
334 CAMBRIDGE ST., PRINCE 
ALBERT, Saskatchewan, 
Canada, S6V2Y5 

Effective Date: 

Notice of Change of Registered Office/Mailing Address 
Notice of Change of Directors/Officers 
Other Legislated Entities - financial Statement 
Notice of Change of Directors/Officers 
other Legislated Entities - Financial Statement 
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03-Jun-2016 

03-Jun-2016 

03-Jun-2016 

Date 
22-Jul-2016 
O3-Jun-2016 
O5-Mar-2015 
21-Jan-2014 
26-Aug-2013
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26-Aug-2013 
09-May-2013 
26-Feb-2013 
30-Jul-2012 
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14-Apr-2011 
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09-Dec-2010 
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10-Dec-2008 
20-Jun-2008 
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08-Sep-2006 
1 8—Apr-2005 
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05-Aug-2003 
16-Sep-2002 
28-Jan-2002 
28-Feb-2002 
28-Feb-2002 
28-Jan-2002 
28-Jan -2002
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Financial Statements of 

METIS NATION - SASKATCHEWAN 
SECRETARIAT INC. ’ 

Year ended March 31, 2011
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F 
; :lNPE-PVENDE-NT AUDITORS? REP,O'RTf 
;To th’eAmer_ht_>ers of»Métls Nation H-_ Saskatchewan vS_eyc‘rétariat Inc‘; 

‘ 

We. have audited the‘ accompanyihg ’financialV‘st,a't'erh'er1ts of Secretariaf‘ — 

Inc..- which co_rnpri_Se the’ statement of financial.posi_tion- as at -MarVch'31,, 20.11 , and thé statements of 
_revenues.~and exp‘e_nse§, changes in net assets, andflcash flows ‘for the year then ¢nded,_ ahd notes, 
comp_rising a summazfy of signifiqant accounting'p'olicies‘ a'nd’qtherVexplanatory information. 

Manééérfientfi Réspohsibility fdr the 'FifiahclaI Stateménts ~ 

Mahagemenf is. resbonsible preparatiqn and faif preséntafion of these‘ flnancialétatements in 
accordance with Canadian generally ac_cepte‘da‘ccounti_rig .princ;ipIes; and for such~intérna] ‘control as _- 

from 'rnfat'e'r_iz'aI_A'rriiss‘tait‘eri’1_en'g.‘whether due fo'frau_d or" error. 

Audité$rs' Reéponsibil/ty
> 

management détérmines. is necessary to en’ablé~the preparétion offin_anciaI ’sAtatemen’ts‘tha't are free 

Ou’f~respons'ibility.‘i§ ;to'eXpres‘sjan‘ opinion on_these financial statements based on our audit.» We 
cgnductéd our a_udi_t in" aggordahca ‘with 'Canad‘ianVgen’era‘llyj accepted .'auditing- staridaids. Th_osé V‘ 

' 

standards requiremat we-comply_'with ethical requirements and plan and perform anjaudit to obtain 
' 

reasonable assu;ance"ab,out-whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement._ 

An afidit inx/'olVve's péffonning prégedfires to obtain _aud.it evidence about _thé 'am6Unts and fiisclosurés 
"in ‘the finahcial staféments. T_he.procedures selected- depend on"the auditbfs the h 

" 

5 ‘assessment of the fisks ofi material misstatemeht of 'the'fltjancial statements, Whether due to fraud or 4'

. 

‘error.-’ In making those risk as's°e.ssments.gwe-corV1s.ider intemél ‘control -‘relevant ‘to the’ entity's 
"preparation and _fair.pfesentatio‘n.'<_>f.the financial "statements in order to design’ audit. procedures ‘that 

. 

_ 
are ap'pr9priatefin the circumstances; but -h_ét for the purpose of expressing an opin,iori"o’n the .

_ 

- effectiveness of th_e«entily's ~inter_naI contrc_>l.~'An audit also'ing|udes evaluating _the a'pprop’ria'tenes.s of 5 
'

‘ 

' 

_accountingA pdliciesfused and th_e.-reasonableness of accounting estimates.-‘made-by managemerA1t.Vas_ .~ 

well as évaluating the overall presehtation of the_ financial statements. . 

'4 
A 

’VVVebbe'Iiev'e that the éudit evidence wé have’obta'ined is4suff‘icient. and ahpfopribate’ to pflovide a liasis 
-'

3 

'fo_rour_'audit opinion’. ' 

' ' ' 
‘ ‘ 

— 

. 
- 

'

5 

' 

Opinion A’
‘ 

In bur ¢pinion«. the'finar{cia|.‘stateme’nts present fai'rI'y~, ih ~aH.mater1'aI’res'pAe:ct"s.,' the financial position of
b 

AMéti&s_Nati9n.- $askat_chew'a_n Se_¢refiariat §nc.4as_'at_March~ 31,‘ 2011, and the rés'uItsAof itsoperations’ 
_and. its cash flows .for the__fye'ar .th'en ended."invaccordance with -Canadian general,Iy‘ accepted 
‘a¢dounfing- principles.

~ 
V 

- .'Chanéréd 

.‘Saskatdoh‘, Can'a'da' ,- 
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: ; August 29,2011 « 
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NATION : :~ :‘ 

statement or Financial‘ Pbsition
’ 

I 

‘ 

‘ Match 31; 201 with comparative _flg'L_1re's for 2010 

.‘.‘2o11::;'-.' 1. 1 2016. .‘ 7 

. 

Assets} 
A 

'_Curfeht éssétsz 
.Cash7 E -. .. . 

' 
‘ ,$, 55_9.*64'_7-.~: $,

~ 
'AccountsreceivabIe(npte_ 3) j 

‘ 

. 

_. 
_ 

4. . 1412.664 ' 432,835 
g Due frorh.BaCk to B‘ato’che.'a‘ relatedparty ('n'ote:4)- - I ‘.5a;ooo 1- . . 

. .- .

V 

' 

: 
- 

' 

s 
- 

: 

-’ 
' 

- 

. 
U ‘ 

’ 
‘ 

‘ 

1',030‘.31-1.3’ 
' ’.~432,835 

,.P(op¢rfy and.equiApme'nt_(n»<_:te 5) . 

I 

7 
'4 »: _ 

I 

21'6’;684‘ 
‘ 

I 

'274,252 

’ 

; 
r 

‘ » 

'Cuh"é'nt‘|ia:t:ilities:A T — 
I ' 

»‘ 
_' VDeferr_e.drev,enue‘(note,7) fl ‘ 

$ 1'.246,'995‘ ff$..‘_’;-7'o7‘.o37A A 

~ $ . 275.083. 
7eo,so1_~ -, . 

’ 

168,_998 
- ‘ ' 

7426.036 . 
233,747‘ 

Bank ihdebtedness (note_~6 '

I 

' -Accounts payab|e:and_accrued:liébiIftiés~ _ 

Dueto Provincial Métis'HoIdcb lnc'.,-a related. entity _ 

_~ 
- 

, _. 
.- 

_(note8)' 
' 

_ 

-V‘ -A ‘.. ' 

58,000.‘_. 
' 188- ' 

' 

'Due'to.Backto-Batoche,.a.re|ated~party (note 4.)- 7 
~ 

_ 

' 

. -24,755- A 
_ 

' 
. 

. .1 - - 

V. 
_ 

IA
‘ ‘- 

, 

‘ 

- ~1_,‘269;s927.- 3 ~678..O16~:'-.- ‘ 

.D_ef‘e_r'r,ed‘cpnfrif)L;tidn$foreqLIipih§nt‘(nQte 9)_ Q .’ 

_ 

4103.558‘. ._ 

‘V

; 

Nétaséets; ’ :: 
, 

" " 
~_:Opera_ting fund , . 

‘ “ 
3 

' ‘ 
~ 

'- 
. 

- 

' 

_(239.281)_' = - ‘.(245,181;)- 
4 

* 'Capital'fun'd. . 
_ 

.. -113,126: I :12.1.a99-._~~.~_:"' 
~ 

-” 

;(12W6;1'55)‘y' V 2023.282) 

$' ‘ 

'1.246;9é_S.:.- 
V 

’.~_7'o7,oa%'~' 

~Nature.~o_f 6pe'rafi6fi$'(n<:Jté 1A)- 

' é “ 
‘ 

Qbhtingénfiv-'(not_e__12) 
. 

'.S_ea acco'rn'péhying‘n‘ot_eS io.flhénQial .s'ta'temér_1tsV.~ . 

‘ 

: 

3: 

Dirgcto; b 

ar_d;;' 
,‘ 

.“ 
* Director

"'



~MET’IS NATION; SASKATCHEWAN SECRETARIAT ’ 

Statement Of Revenue" and ‘Expenses ' 

Yéar~ended _l\/‘larch 1.31,-2011, with comparative figu_res_ fo'r 2010 

-.'-2b11_~ : 
A 

~ .2010 

Revetnue (schedules - .32) 

.E)§pe‘nses - Summafi} échgdule of ‘expenses ‘ 

F_e'd‘éralgrantVs 
‘ $ . 1,937;o29_ $ 2,101,372 r

" 
Provincial’gr_ants' ‘ 

' 

. - 4 
. 

' 

949,618 1,'19‘-4,846 
‘Other I 

, 
. I _- 

. . . 

‘ 

. . , 

.- 
_ 

‘ 
- 

. . 5 75,§3,55~ . 

‘ 

_ 
I V 

' 418,214 v

. 

A I 
’ 

. 

‘ ' 

- A 

~‘ ' ~ 
' 

‘ ‘ 

2,962.302- ’3;714;43_2 V 

.- 

(s‘cf:1’edule1)_ ,_ 
_ 

. 2,965;175 u 3.787.768 

'E$<c_éss'(<:!'efiCiér'1cy).df révé.nLaefc.>Ve'r,'eXpensés ;' '1 
.. ‘ 

_$' 3 ~(2;873). $ 
. 

(73,336) "
’ 

See accompanying hofes to financial statements.‘



Changes in Net Asséts 
~METlS NATION - SASKAT~CHEWAN SECRETARIAT INc;.~ 

. 

. 

' 

Y_e_ar efided March 2o11,'wi_th_ comparative figures_ for 2010 

v2'o1'1 -2010. 

‘ 

~O.perating Fund 
Balance", beginning pf year 

' 

_ , 

'. $ (245181) - $ (166,601) 

‘Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expehses 
' 

A (2,873) . (‘(3,336)
‘ 

-Transferfrom ca_pitalfund_for amottization 
A 

. 

4 
. 57.568‘ . 65,047 A 

Transfer to capital fund for:p_urcha'se. of equipment « 

’ 

'- (93,074)
' 

De’fer're'd contributions relatedto equipment ‘ 
‘ 

_ 
V 

78,150" ' 

‘ A 

* - 

Arnortizationvof deferr_e'd coh_trib(1tions_for equipment 
' 

. (48.-795) -_ . (555367) 
'

‘ 

saIar§¢e,en'd¢f'yéar.".‘~ “ 
V. A 

’ 

$_~ (23§,2é1).'_' 3. (245,1e1)_"' 

C_apltal fund. 
' 

Baiance, beginningofyear '_ 

I 

‘ ' 

$ 121,899 5 $ 116.655 . 

Transfer to operating fund for amortization. ~ (57,568) . 
. 

» 

(65-,04’/4) 
V,

° 

. Transfer frombperating fund fc_>r_*p_urchase of equipment _‘ « . 93,074 . 

Deferred ,contributi_ons related to equipment 
' 

« 

'- 
. ('(8;150) 

Amortization of deferred contributions for equipment 
‘ 

_ 

' 48,795 55,367 

4BaIance..endfof_y'e;ari‘ 
' ‘ 

' 

3 f I . 

A 

-j$’f ‘~113',12'6.'; 
‘ 

$.'.~'.£‘_i2.1.8'99.'-~_.' 

_S_ee accompanying notés to’ financial étafements. -'



Sta_t'¢_2'rn'<_ant of ‘Cash Ffqws 

Yea'r'en_ded March .31, 20v1_1,,with comparative figures for 2010
. 

; 
I2o.1b1 '_ 

_ 

- 

. 

’ 

I2o»1o 

Cvast'1:flo‘ws from (_u$'ed_ in): 

Operations: 
E)gt:_ass:(defi'c_ie_ncy)'dffevénue dveréxpehsés‘ 

_ ~$ (2,873) . $ 3 , (73336) 
items notInv_olving_cash: - 

' 

. 

' 

. 

' 

. 

— V 

' Amortization’-. ’, 
. 

v 57,568 . 

_ 
65,047" m 

. ‘Amortization of deferred‘ contributions for ~ 

‘ 

- 
. 

_. 

3 _'equipment~.. 
' 

. 

_ 

.. A 

_ 
(48,795) -_ (55,367)_ .

' 

Change in‘non_.-cash op'era'tinVg,working capital: 
. 

4' 
' 

’ 

-
- 

. . ’Accdunts‘receiva_b_le » 

V 

. 

' 
' 

-20,-171 226,445 
-Accounts 'payab|e_and agcrue'd|iabilities 

_ 

- 591,803 ' 

(66,624) 
Dueto Pr'qvincial’Métis Ho|dco.lnc. 

‘ 

57.812 . 
. 

1 188 
fiDue toB,ac_k to Batoche.arélated,party 

_ 

‘I ‘ 
‘ (33,245)' 4 - 

Deferred revenue . 
: 

. 

‘ 

- 4 » 
. 

' 

J . 
4 

_ 

- 
. 1.924.289 . 

h 

- 

' 

(85,791) f " ' ‘8_34.73o" -‘1o,5s2 
' 

Finar.ic.ing_:A 
. 

. 
. . 

Deferred grantsfor equipment . 

‘ 
H 

- 

A 

.& 
' - - 

- 78,150 

:lnvesti~ng:‘ 
V 

V 
. 

~ 

I 

« 
' 

I

A 

Purchasepf equipment’ ' 

, 
. . . 

_ 

' 

- 
V 

(93,074) 

‘Jhcreése(deaeaséj.m‘;;asn‘p§siti6ri . 

‘ 

._ 
. 

‘ 

Xs34,7‘3o »' 1' (4,-363‘) 

Bénkinqebtednesfibeginning-bf yeér 3 ; 
» 

'- 
' 

- 
. (275,_O_83)‘ 

_ 
_ 

‘ 

4(A270,7_20)‘ ’_ 
-I 

’ 

cash(z$énk'indébtédhesé).-endorhyeér.’-' 
I . 

A 

_- f~$ . 

'559',6.4.7~~ 
_- 

" 

3. _ »(27‘5,oa3)‘
‘ 

~Ca_s'h.(bankihdebiedheséiconslsté of_ bankoverdraft . 

' 
I 

_

I 

~|ess o'utstanding_'cheques as follows: 4 

' ' 
‘ 

A 
~ 

A 

' 

A _ 

j Bank ba'lance.(over’draft) ' 
' 

_ 
‘ 

‘ 

“ . . $ 813.723 . 

_ 
$. (91,766) 

* Outstanding ch'eques_ A 

‘ ‘ 

_ b 

I» 
x 

_ 
‘(254.076_)» 

V 

’(—183,_317-)‘ 

- ~'559,647[ I_'$ ~(2,75,08.3.)‘ 

See accompénying notes't_oflnancialustatementé. 
, 

H.

.



f 
ME:TI‘SNAT|0N SECRETARIAT 
Noteéio Financial Statements A 

‘_ Yeanr Ag-3-ruxded Mafch ,‘201.1 

’ Métis' Nation ‘-&S»ask'a'tchewan Secretariat lnc.V(t_he: "Métis.Natioh")'is incorpo.ra_t:e‘d’under the~Métis Act 
‘ 50f Saskatc'he4wan.,’The‘ Métis Nation-‘s pu_‘rpo_se.is'to underfake activities 'that_st‘riVe to febognize thé 

political, legal" and cdnstItutiohal;'rights of the Métis people iri Saskatchewan. 

-1. Nituré of operations:
I 

Theselfihancial» statements have been preparédpri _a, g<’>ingjconcern'~ba9sis, which presumes that‘ ‘

‘ 

the Métis.Natiori wili co_ntinu'e_ in »operation"for a reasonable” perjqd of .time andwin be ‘abje to 
realize its assets .and discharge its liabilities in_ the" normalcourse, of operations. 

The_ Métis N_ation_'s continuation as«a gding c_oncem ié _depe_ndentV'u,p»6,n..its. ability" to attain 

profitabIe_o_p_eratipns 'a'ndjQb_tain sufficienticash from external funding toA r‘neet'its_ liabilities and 
commitments.-' The" outcome of~th§1se matters cannot be d_etermir_ied ‘at _this_‘fi'rr1'e. 

These financial statements do ‘not include any adjustments in the Carrying, values of‘ assets and 
liabilities‘, the reported deficléncy of révenue ov_er e'xpénditures‘an_d'the ‘statement of financial’ 

- ‘posltidn classification's' thafwcbuld be neceséafy’ if the‘ gding~cOncérn were "not 
appropriate. should t_he'Métis Nation not be able to coritinué its normal course of business. 

'
‘ 

’ Slgnlflcanf'acc6qijating.-pbliciesz 

'(a.‘) VL‘Jse of estimates:
I 

The preparation of financial statements in_confonnity«with Cana'dia‘n generally «accepted. 
atzooqnting pr_i'nclpl'es requires" management ’Vc'o.maVk4efe,stir_r'\at_es and~as'sumptioh's,that.affec;t -

’ 

the " reported.’ amounts of assets‘ and liabilities and :'disclosu're_. ‘of ‘contingent’ assets‘ and 
¢- liabilities at the date fqf the financial Tstaterjnents and" ‘the 'rep9fted_'amo(mt of ‘revenue and 

- expenses‘during_the repo_rting.pe_riod. I/_\c,t'ua| resulté could differ from these _estimafes£
’ 

‘ 

(b). ,c;a's'h:. 

4 Cash cor_fs_ists‘of balances_.'\_Nith financ'ial~instit_utioné which hav‘e~an'~initiaI term :6 maturity of :
7 

three mohths~Qr|ess.’ 
' ‘ 

’ 

' ' 
’ ‘ ' 

- 

' 

‘ ‘ ’ 

'
' 

(CI). APr6perty'an‘d"eAquiprné.nt:~ 

, 
_Property and e_quip‘m_éni are4stat‘ed _ét- gdst} /_\rr_a‘o'rt,izatio'n’bis~c9mphted base~d updn {héf

4 

' 

estimatedgsefultlivées andlvsalvage valuesvovf Vthe1equip_ment.' ‘In the y~ear~‘of:acquisit_iqn,’ (_)'ne_- 
. ha!fdt‘the normal rate. of amortization :is ‘used.’ No amortization on~equi.pr_n,entV is taken in the _ 

‘ 

yearot-disposal. 
' ’ 

* ' 
' 

' 
' 

' ’ 
‘

- 

‘ 

Amortizatiori is provided using. the follbwing 'rnéth'od_,énd annua|.rat'es.'



. 

INOte~s.tc_> Finahcial S1étemerifs‘(cohfin_L1ed) 

.Ye_a‘r‘e‘nded:March 2o1_1_ . 

I 

-4 

A2,: 
'_ Sfgnificant'ac¢duntihg ‘p§licié_s (c9nti.nu‘eo‘:l)‘:'4 1 

‘A 

.Asset_ : I 
" 

f I 'M'etr_z_od~ ” 
' 

__ Rate~_~ 

-Eqdip'fi~en't~~ ‘A f 

' 

_’ 
‘ 

‘ 
A 

I~.'DecJ’snirig BaIa0cé_ '. 
f V. W~2O_%.

' 

Furniture . 
‘ é 

' “ 
A V 

_‘ » ~Declbinin‘g Balance _ 

_ 

- 

. 

’ 

» 
- 

‘ 

_ 

_ 

35% -' 

.» »Comput'ers- '- 4. T 

. . 
~ 

. 

- 

. Declininj Balance « I 
, . 

V. 7 ' .'50_% 

‘Contrib3utiot’1>s.for.equipment purc_hase$_a{e deferréd and amorfizedllcnithe < 

. 

‘H
' 

assetsto‘ _whic_h _the_y.reIate.‘ _A,r'no_rti.za'tioh4of ;1eferred'contributions foriéquipment is included
’ 

’ "inrevem4e-frQm‘federélfundingsburces, . 

' * 
A 

- 
‘- 

- (d _) 
. 

'Revenu¢-re6oghitidn: 4: 

_ 

' 

The’ Mét_rs~N'a‘ii¢n_~fo[1§ws-the‘ d.ef_e,rr_a'|;‘met_hp'd _of’ao‘c.ou"nting’ for_cofitribu’(io_r41s..‘ ,Ex1erna|Iy 
‘ 

" .restrfcted contributions are ‘recognized as reve‘nue.in_ the year in‘ which the related fexpe_nses ' 
'

v 

- are Air)‘cu.rr‘ed. .3 Uhrésficted‘ :co’ntr’ibi1t'io‘n"s a're .re‘cog‘niz_edfwhen7reéeis/ed, ><_>r_'rec‘eViva_bIe.~if the . 

,~ amount to be received <_:'a_n,be r~e‘as_onabJy.‘_estimat'ed and collection is reasonably assufed. 
' ' 

’ 

- 

. (e)‘ DeferrAed_.r_e_\/"efxuiez 

I 

"Deferred "re_v.ehue._r'e|'afe$ to funds‘ received which relate tofthe.'n'e'xt fisC_al_year.



Ens NATION 
’. 

_No1eé_.to .Fin,a’ncia4l4S_tateme_nt's (continued)
I 

I 

‘Year ehded 3.1 ,- 2011f ‘ 

4 

Signifiqanfacfiountifig.-poficies (continued): ‘ 

(f) pfofigiafii e'1’c'ti§/itiefs':- 

The statém'ent7of‘.fin'a‘ncial position and the éta1ements‘of r‘e'\/en.ue éhd.'expe'nses,.¢hah_£;es , 

. -net a_ssets'_anjd-caéh flows‘_aré a|l‘prepar'e.d-on a cqmbine'd basis. _Reverjue, and, expenses -

‘ 

V 

related to 7adri}inisf;étion"aCtivities and program delivery are-‘reported as follows: 

: Administration - 

, . 

’Registry.'P'rogram‘ ' 

. 

-
. 

' 

*1 ‘Federal DL_1ty.to'CQnsult‘Pr,Ogram 
_

. 

Dutyto Consult + Eribridge Program 
Bilateral Program _ 

‘ 

. . 
é

_ 

Tripartite .$eIf Gdve_rn'rr_ient Pr'o_gr'am 
V _ 

Basic Orga'niz'afipn Capacity Program ‘ 

' F _Abor_ig_ina_l H_e'alth Transition Program‘
_ 

Harvesting Program 
» 

- 

’

V 

gFis_he"ry»F?r'o'g'ram 
' 

I . 

~ Duty to Consult -. Regulatory Reform 
Agency of Canada" - Surveillance

_ 

Duty ~tO‘CQ'|'1_SUH -‘Nuclear Wast'e.Manégeme,n_t Organization 
YouthALeadership Workshop ' 

~

‘ 

‘ 

.~ Fisheries Round Table Pfogram ;
’ 

' 

Tripartite.Constitutional Wo'rksh_op
_ 

‘OrganizatiO_nél_?AsSessment, . 

' '
' 

' Saskatchewan Landing Water" Project
' 

-Water WestWate_r Proje_¢t- - 
- 

‘V ’ 

'
' 

Appeals Tribunal. , 

.~ ’_ 
'

1 

Hark/ésting Negdtiations 
_Envjron'ment I 

b

' 

‘ 
Po_st Ppw.ley_Comp_onent A 

’ 

Post Pdwley CompOn_ent- B 
,' Gehéaiogica! & Historical. 4 

—Corhn”1un‘ity Engagemént 
4BO(m'dar'y'AC'on_sul_tatiOn . 

rS‘p<_>‘rt?& Reqeation-
’ 

Health Director lhitiative 
' 

= Health : .s,uiciqe ;Preventi'o_n -



Méns NATION SECRETARIAT INC. 
Noteéio Financial Statements (continued)

V 

Year ‘ended March 31‘, 2011 

« 

‘» 
2. ‘Signffiéantééc6unti;1g.policies (¢;9nt'inued):" 

(g)‘ Financialinsthrumentsz’ 

' 

Finanéial a_ssé_t‘s~and finanqiél liabilities -ar_e "initially recognised _.at fair -Value and their 
. 

V. 
subsequehf measurement is dependent on their. classification as'descrit_>e_d below: ‘ 

I» Cash and that. may arise and_ ba_nk~indebtednes_s are ‘c1assified- a's— fi‘r_1ancia_l 
assets, heldbfor trading and are measured affair value- ' 

- 

’ 

» 
-

‘ 

‘ 

‘Accounts r‘e'cei_véb‘le are» classified as loads" and receivables and are’ recorded atgamortized 
- cos't. 

' ' 
‘ 

’ 
' ' 

‘ 

'
' 

Accouhfs payablé a_nd.accr_u'ed liabilities are Classified as other. liabilities and measured at
‘ 

amortizedscost. 
' ' 

‘ ‘ 
'

’ 

Transaction costs related td held for tradilngfinancial asséts are expéhsed a's incurfed. 

3. - Accounts recelytable; 
_

‘ 

2011 - 2o1o~ 
A’ 

. GST recoverable A 

' 

b 

, $ 99,133" '$ - 94,441" 
' 

. 
Program fundingiand other’ 

’ 

, 

‘ 

* 
_ 

325,031 343,640 
. Due from related partyv 

A 

- 
- 

‘ 
A ‘ - 

, 

-‘ 6.254 
.Allowancefor,dogJbtful‘accou'nt5_" 

, 

*_ ._ 
* ‘ 

. (11,500) (11,500) 

-I$~' »‘412.é_é4 $.. :43é;a35‘. 

I 

4.- . Due~fro_r'n (to) Bafik to Batiache‘, a.relat_ed_'party:’ . 

Arfiounts dué ‘twin —BAackf~tc;>Batoché of $58,000 .c~onsi'st‘_o‘r4 Aadvanbes. of $550,000" -"less .

— 

vr_e_pay_m_e_nts¢of_ $92,000. ‘These "amounts w‘er.e&us'ed to’assis1.in‘ financihg~Back.'to Batoche. 
activities.. 

‘ 

» 

' 5 - v 

’ V 

- 
‘ 

’ 
‘ 

- 
- - 

. 4Amo_u‘n‘fs' due’té_~i3a<':_kto 4Ba'toc_:he,-of $24,755 (2010 -,$r.:iI).cObn»sist primarily of Goods‘ and Se~n'/i_ces 
' Tax_re'fundfs'collected by-the’ Metis‘ Nation on Back to B_afoche' activities; ‘ 

' 

' ' 

‘ ‘ 
-

3 

V. 
-Amvounnts due from (tin) Ba<_:k_ fd_Sa1oche‘ beéring; ufiseéured and have rio fixed 

. _‘ ;term’s-of repayment. - 

' 
' 

' 

« 

» 

' 

- 
- 

“

'

-



N_6t'es to Financial Statefnenvts (cohti_nued) 

“METIS SECRAETARIAT mc. i 

*

1 

7 Yearkended Mafch 31, 2011
. 

5.. 
b Property and~equi_pmént:_ ,’ '

' 

. 

_ 
. 

.. 
_ 

2011 . 2010. 
, 
Accumulated. 

' 
' 'Net_book' 

' 

.Net;book 
Cost : -amo'rtization _~ I 

, 
-value * ‘. ‘value 

I. 
Land 

_ 

‘ 
- $ 99,405 s‘ N .- $ 

_ 

99,405 '$ 99.'4.o5 
Equipment ' 194,552-A 

' 

132,867 61,685 ~77,_105 
Furniture - 

, 

- 72.988 -~ 43.352 A 29,136 " 44,825 . 

Computers 
V 

" 96,288. 
" 

:e9,a3vo.. 26,458 52.917 

~.'$ 463.233~' -53, I 246,549:' $ 
‘ 

'2.1e',ea4‘ 7$‘~ 274.252 

6. cash! bank indgbtednesé: 

» 

,Ca_sh ‘consists’ of 'amOur'1té "on deposit with ‘financial institutions-less outstanding cheques issued. 
' 

. The previous year bank ihvdebtedness was comp’rised’of. cheques issued in excess» of funds on 
deposit (bank-overdraft). The Méfls Nationhas available a line ofcredit to the maximum amount 
6f'$50_,0O0'at .M‘arc_:h 31; 2011-.’ On April 16, 2011,, the.availablé Iine of creditwas increased to 
$200,000‘. The_"Métis1Na_tion' also has available a $20',0O0f|in_e of credit secured by a Guaranteed 
Investment Certiflca'te~held"by Provincial'Métis Holdco_ ln"c;,1a related party. . 

' 4 

7. Deferféd reyenue: _‘ 

Defefred revehue is cbrfipdsed of the7fo|Vlo_wing: 

: 
. 2011 

_ 

:20_10.- 

Health D'ire_ctor |’n_itiat'rve 2011/2012 - 

_ 
_* 

- $ 
’ 

160,000 $ .'1'20,»000 

« Harvesting Negotiations 
‘ 

< 
- 

, _ 

_ 150,744 ' 

f ‘-7
; 

Environment" 
' 

’ 

V 
- 

. 
; 

‘ 

. 
- 

‘ 

.5 
V 

— 

. 85,292 . .
— 

rHe'a_|th Director Initiative 2010/2011 . 

- 30,000. _- 
1 

-_ 
‘ ‘- 

_- ‘Aboriginal Health .Transi1ion Program (schedufe 9) - 

- ~ 

‘ -- 
. 80,676 -‘ - 

‘Publicf Health Agency-of (schedule 13). 
_ 

_ 

« 

' 

- ‘ 
' 

j , 
17,22]- 

B.ato‘ch'ev'Acti_vitie's ‘- 
V» 

. 

15.844 

3 $.. -426,636 
'$V 

I .'23é,»%4f 
.

_'



NATION -~$ASKATCHEVVAN:SEC|§ETARIATLINC, 
Notesto Fihancial Statements '(cohfinged)

. 

Yearénded Mafish 31, 201.1 

8'. Die to P(9vim$i'a|’M_¢::tis H_6!d_c6 |hc.,_-a.re.|a~t‘edfpa_rty: 

Arfiofinis .c'i_ue fo Pri)viricia'i- Metis Holdco Inc. bf $53,000 consist of édyances of $150,000.|ess 
. repayments-of $92,000.‘These~a’mouhts’wéreUsed to assist’ in financing Batik ito _Bato<$he 

activities’ (hbte 4). 
‘ 

_

- 

Amounfs due to~ProvVinc'ial Metfs-Ho|d.co Inc. are non-inte‘re's_t bearing, unsecured and have nd 
' fixed terms of repayment. 

‘ ' 

‘ 

» 

' 
' 

—
‘ 

9, D~efer_rgd ‘coI'1tr_Ibutio_t‘1s fqr»eq_uip.meAnt: 
I 

,2_o'11 
V 

~2o1o 
'AQcumulated. 

A 

‘ 

Net book’ - 
' ‘ ,Ne‘tbo'ok 

Cost}. amorti2afion_ . 

' 

' .vaIue 
_ 

2 value 

~~Equip'ment . 

$~' _9o_,79a- $ 
‘ 

34.783 .3; 55,015 $ '_ 70.020 
Fumitur_e .' 

' 68,664 41,035 . 27,629 3 42,506 
Computers - 

A 

— 73,553.‘ -53,639. 
' 

19,914 
' 

39,327. 

,"233,o.1'5; .é_ '~129,'457- $; .1o3’.55a‘ $_. ~.152,3'53' 

‘ 

10.7 Related party tr_ansaction'si 

- During the" _yearftl'ie'-Méfis Nation incurred,rent_.'expensé; of $160,684 (2010 - $128,669) to - 

. 

A V 

Provincial M_étis' Hdld_co' 1n‘c_.’, .ah'orga'n_ization with which‘ it is re!ated'through common-board ,
» 

& 

me'mbeI‘s.. This"r'ent ’re‘presen.ts"amou'n_tsj agreevd between the related fparties. 'During_’theW 
- - previous year ‘Proyinciai .'Méti_s Holdco forgave $97,466 of rent to" the-Métis Natiorfof which 
~'$27,0_79~relatéd,-to" the_'2Q.10 .r.s~c'aI year or the Métis ’Nati,¢n' and .$7o,3:_37. rélétedvto prior years. 
Amounts due frbm’ (to). Back to'_Batoche=consi_stihg of a‘dv'ances‘~of $58,000 (2010 _. nil)’ and 
accounts payable o_f $24,T55f(2"01O - $nil) are" rion4interest bearing", unsecured and have novfixéed « 

_t.er_ms-o4f re_‘payment (note 4);‘ A‘mou.nt's du_é.to~Pr‘ovih_cia| 'Métis_ Holdcb in" the ambunt~of $58,000 
4 

(2010 - $188) are"noh-interest- bearing, unsecured and have‘ no fixed ter'ms'of repayment (note 
3).: ’ ~ '. ‘

'

‘



METIS NATION -SASKATCHEWAN SECR;E~TAR:IAT INC.
i 

» No_tes~to‘Fir'1ancia.I Stétemenfis (cohfinued) 
. 

Year ehded March $_1‘,~201 1’ 

. _‘ 11.» Financial in‘st.rAL;}ne‘h_t‘s‘and risk manabgenfi-_ht:‘ 

‘ from its use of financial-inst'ruments‘: 
' 

~Céedit- risk 

‘ 

The Métis Nétioh, tfirofigh its flunanvéial assets ‘and _|iabil_ities, has exposure t6 the following risks. . 

4Th_e Métis Nétion7s,pr_mcipa| financial asset is accounts receivable, which is subject to credit risk.- 
The'carrying émouht of this’ firia'nci_al asset‘ on‘ the statement of finahcial position” represent the 

V 

Métis Nation's ‘maximum _¢redi_t 31 ,-2011. 
_ 

The amounts disclosed ‘in the" 
Statement‘ of.‘ fmahcial position are netjof. allowance ‘for’ doubtful accounts. estimated by " 

managemént of ‘the Metis Nat_ion_ based on ‘previous experience and its assessment ofthe current ’ 

3 
‘ 

‘ ' ' 

Iéhterest’ Rate Risk» 

‘|:ntére'st-bearing bahk'indebte_dnesS has limited "exposure to interest rate riskdue to it's ‘short-te_rVn‘1 
matur_ity. _ 

v 
' 

V 

' 

» 
‘

' 

Fai_r Values 

The fair values of cash (bank _ind_ebtedness). accountsIreceivableviand ‘acéounts payvable-and 
accrued Iiabi|ities"approxifnaie' their carryingvalue due to their short-terr'n period io maturity." The

A 

fair value of amounts duefrom Back. to Batoché, due to Provin¢ial.MétiS.’Ho|dco Inc-. and due to 
Back ‘to Batqche an reiated parties, ‘are not. determinable due tqthe _n4on-armis Iength.'of~the 
felationships betwe_en fh_ép‘arti_és. . 

' 

- A - 

' ‘

A 

12. Cdhfinfiency; 

.A blaifn has~befén filed VbyAaA fbfrnef e'r.r'1p|,oyee_ against’ theMétis_'Na.ti:on alleging wfongful 
.» '

" 

dismissal. Astatemenf fo.f .d_éfen9e has.’ been filed. 
‘ 

The‘ Métis_-Nations" is‘in the _.pro<;ess, of
_ 

determiningthe nature ‘of the-claim ahd th‘ei'r.~potentiaI |iabi|ity'and‘wiI! acc'<)qrit‘for'the amount of _-

' 

. 

~Se't_tIeme‘nt if any,_ upon‘ fin_a|’ dete'rm_inatio‘n» Qéf-_ény Iiabjlity; 
“

- 

13.‘ Comparative"figufe§: 
'

. 

Certain comparative figures: have been ‘reclassified to Aconfo‘rm4wiAth_'t.h.e "financial statement
_ 

_' presentation'adOpted~in-the cqrrent'year.. 
' 

V 

' 7 » 

' ’ 

- 
' ’ 

‘ 

; During thétyear the Métis Nation changed the mariner in which Certain program expen'se_s_(r_ent», .A 
.

' 

office supplies; _'-te‘|eph'oneA-and A'oveArheadA Cdsts; ‘etc.)~are.'a|loca_ted to specific programs. . 

Fo'r' 

20_141’,{the expenses specificallyvrelated to pr_og'rams are~ac;c_u'rr'1u|ated and charged to_ programs 
- as administrative costs. 

‘ 

' 

. 
A 

‘ ' ’ 
‘ 

~ - 
‘ ~' 

11.



' 

' ‘S_ch'edule*1 -b-Summary Schedule of Expenses
’ 

- SASKATCHEWAN SEC1R:E~TAR|"AT INC, 
‘ 

i Year ended March 3132011, with.r;ornpa'ra,tive figures for 2010 

_ 

-’2o11.*- 
. 

’ 

. .'2o1o 

_ 
Salaries ahd benefits‘ .A 

. 

' 

; $ 
' 1,131,768 . 

.' $ 1,450,159
‘ 

.Consu|ting 
' 

. 

- 

4 

- 

‘ 

. 

- 

_ 

446,935 I 

' 

656.033 
Travel 

' 

‘ 

. 

' 

’ 

. 

-‘ 
-_ 280.183. 

‘ 

- 837,222 ‘ 

Legal and professional fees . r 
» 175,785 ‘ 

' 

138,053 
Financlalservices 

' I A 
‘ 

- 

V 

116;571 
“ 

-. 
Admihiisitration. . 

. 

_ 

- 
- 

' 98,137 V 

V 

V- 

Refer_ence‘materials_ - 

. 

. 

. 

_ 4 
_ 

78,217, 
_ j 

' 

V 

16.858 
.Office_rent (net of directallocations) - 

. 66,921 2 
» 128,669 

Annual4Genera,lAssembIyI , ‘ 

_ 
A 

. *65;0O0 - 75,8'1B_' 

Metis Nation _Le9isIative‘Assembly’ . - 

' 

. 65.000 75,818 
- 

A 
Amortization 

' 

3 
'- » 

. 

_ 
~57,568. 

' 

‘. 65,047 
‘Meetings 

4 

‘ 

_' 50,665 
‘ 

V A 

' 

96,-710 
Printing’andvpQstage 

’ 

- « 46,821 ' 

A 

_ 
103;873 

Technical support ‘ 

, A 
. 

’ 

42,870 
’ 

34,564 
Telephone and internet_" ~ 7 » 

. 34,981 ' 

I ’ 37,043
_ 

; 
. 

Advertising ' 
' 

. 34,332 - 83.862 
- Strategic planning . 

— 

' 7 - 32,348 . 30,566 
Fu‘nding_repay_r'nents‘ . 

A 

’ 

32,196 -5 
' 

Sports and recreation, ‘ 

- . A 
. 31742 A 32.425 

. Offlce supplies * 
‘ 

’ 26,157 7 
' 45,946 

' 

Training and development. . 

V 17,108 '- 

Green light program ‘ 

. 

b 
& 

‘ 

_ 

- 

’ 

13,883 
_ 

. 

' 

‘ - 

Goods and services . 

’ 

. 

- 

‘ 

10,885 * -~ 

; Bank:charges and interest ' 

‘ 

10.8T8j_ 21,464 
‘_'S_torage— j 

‘ ’ 

A 

' 

_ 
4,512 5207' 

- lhsurance 
_ 

. ; ~_ . 

‘ 
‘ 

‘ 
’ 1‘,547'.~ 3 

-‘ 
— 

. I Repairs and services ~ 

‘ 

V. 

' 

' 
‘ 

' 

_ 1,518 , . 3,570 
5 Equipment leasing - 

. 

_ 

~ 
- - 548 g 

A 

' 

41,660 
. "Ceremonial, - _' ,' '_ '- ' 

-511 T '_ 5,318 
. 

A. .Prior year accounts_p'aya_b1e recovery . 
~ 

‘ 

- A 

- (226,185) 
_expense's(reco\_Iery)_’ 

V A 
".(196) . 5 15,056 ’ 

Sund_ry»(reco\_/ery) . J . 

‘ 

- - 
. . . 

. 

' 

- 

. 

: -(10,216), * 

5_3,012_ 

. $ .’,2,965;175«"«' 3.-7s,7._7‘e3
’ 

12'



Profeésbiohal services: 

METIS NATION + SASKATCHEWAN SECRETARIAT NC; i 

. ‘Sch_edu_l‘e‘2 - Admin'is_tration
_ 

Year ended March 31’. 201.1, with comparative figures‘ foi' 2010 

: 2o1_1_~ 
" 

.. . 

’2o1o~ 

Revenue: ' 

Oth'er__ . 

, 

1 

'
‘ 

‘Greéehlightprogram, - 

Spoits and 'recreation* 
‘ 

‘ Federalfunding 

.$ 29.887 
' 

$, 69.556 
13,968 A 

'- 26300 .- 

-._. -6.888:-2 
. 43,855 ‘ 

' ‘ 

-102,-744,
_ 

Expen_se_s: . 

- 

' 
‘ ' 

Administratlonz» » « » 

4 

I 
4

- 

‘F,und_in_g_r’e‘payments~ I 
. 

_ 

32,196 _ 

.- 

Green light.PF09F_3|'T1' ' 

. 
_ 

' 

: _13.883 . 

4 

~ - 

V

- 

Good_s.and' services tax . . ~ 1Q;885 , 

' 
' - 

Storage . x 
_ 

V 4 ~ 

. ‘4,512_. '. _ 5._2o7_ 

_ 

O_ffi.Ce rent‘ , 

‘ _ 
4;433 7 - — 

Amortization - 
_ 

~ 
, 

‘ ' 

-3.223 ' 

. 

- 2.263 
Bank charges and interest ' 

- 

_ 
g 

_' 2.554‘ ‘ 

_ 

' 

. 3 —. 
Techr’1ical,suppo‘rt 

4 

~ V 

' 2,258 f 2.822 
A 

Meetings 3 _' 
‘ 1,844 38,714 

< Ceremonlal . 
w 

. 

' 
- 511 

, 

‘ '5,222 
V 

-‘ ' 

V 
, 

' 
' 

- 

. 
‘347. . - 

Financial services 140 - 

Advgftising 
1 

; 
- 

. 
-. 

, 
-.75 4,621 

Sundry (recovery) 
4 

' 

. 

' 

_ 

_' (10,216); 
-' (588), .

- 

Rélbéation e‘xpe’nse.(r¢.acovery) 
_ 

‘ 

‘ (196) « 

, . 15,056 1 

Sports and recreation . 

- 

' 

- :' ‘_ 
’ 

_ 

‘32_,425 _- 

' 

Office supplies 4 

. 

' 

T 
‘ 

’ 

_ 

’ 

'- 
' 

_ 

14.012’
; 

' ‘Telephone and internet 
' 

‘ 

, 

A 

— . 
. 

- 
A 7,172 

Pfintingjlnd postage . 
. . 

» 
2 . . 

A 

. 

. _- - - 

; '2,725
' 

.1 ._ _ ., . .., _. _.~_66l.449~._.‘1‘29,651. 

:Le_ga'larid p_ro‘fe'ssi_ona|fees‘ 
" 

. 

’ 
' '. 

. 

' W ' 

. 52,547. ,' 
' 

49.139 5 
'_Consu!ting'. ’ 

. : - 

, 
. 17,466 

_ 
. 

".'52,‘54A7"-' '5'.~66.60'5-' 
Salaries _and contracted se_rvices:- .' 

~ 

‘ 

: 

‘ ' 
- 

‘ 

_ 

Y 
_ 

b 

'

. 

-Executive "and chief executive QfflC6f' * 
_~ 

_ _ 

4 » 

4 

' 

’ 

. 
J f 94,961, I‘ 

Other-‘ ~ .4 ._—. . 4.:- -..A68;836_-I‘ 
-' '- ‘ 

1.63.792 

_Travel: 
4 

v‘ 
_ 

A 

. 

- 

. 

‘ 

. 

' 

. 
_ 

' ' ' 

other . 
A 

- 

. 

_ 

— 

_ 

- -4,314+ . 

_ 
1_.o7,761_ 

Executive 1 
. . 

I 
- V 2 . 

' 

. 
. - . s f 

' 

- 

. 
2.695.’ .- 

. . 
~ 42024 

.- " ' 

- W ‘ 
“ '_"7,o’o9__.-,' ’ ~14_9,785 " 

;roiauexpen_ses' ; 5 

' " A H’ 
~1‘26;0_05'_-“ 

. 

' 

5o9.a38~ 

Deficiéncy.of revehue 
'auocatea'administr'at:on ‘ 

I 

I 

j - .$. 
.’ -' 

(82._1'-_5o).' ‘$' (407,094)
' 

'A_lio‘cvated4g-idrriinistgatiqni. A~ 

,’ 
§ 4. 

‘ 

.< 9 A 
_1~oo',384' 

. 
~3o4'._1‘13 - 

Exce_s'sV(deAfi_ci‘e'ncy)_of réyenue 9v,erexpenses~ 
' 

j 
. 

V 

‘. 
_ 

'18;234 
‘ 

. 

V 
f 

_ 

(_102;9_81) 
. 

A 

‘
' 

.13‘



METIS ~SECR~ETAR|AT‘ mc. 
Schedulé 3' 7 Registry Program ‘ 

_ 
_Year ended Marchb.31, 2011. with comparativé figures for.2010 

._ ‘2o11_ 
‘ 2o'1o~ 

. ‘Federal fund'ing including amor_tiz’a_tion of deferred -

. 

Contributions forequipment of $48,795 (2010- - ~ 
. _A 

" ’ 

- 

b

‘ 

’$55,3e_7)_‘ - 

b 

‘ 
' 

‘ 
I .$ 199,578. . 

‘ -$ 1,033,211 

Expe.nses=j.. C I ‘ ” ’ 

. 
.. .

- 

' 

j S’al'arie_s and benefits 
' ‘ 

76,342 - 521,017 
vconsumng ~ 

V 
- 

. 
. V53;3o3, - 2 37.966 *

' 

V Amortization‘ . 

- 

. 
. 

. 

‘ 

49,386 - 55,-761 
Administration g V1.9;5,85~ 

‘ 

. 
_ 

_' _--. 
Travel _: 

4 

_' 4,643 " 
. 69,376 

.AlIoCated administration» 
' 

- 

. . - ' 

» 

V 

, 138,871; 3 
Printing ‘and postage 

‘ 

._ 

' 

‘ 

. 

’ 
" 

. 
_ 

- 
. 89,844 

‘Advertising I ~ 

' 

, 

A - 53;823 
Sundry ‘ 

‘ 

- 

_ 

b 
« 

_ 

- 
‘ 

' 50.600 
Technical support I 

' 
- - - 23;79_3 

Referencehmaterials v 

‘ ' 

_ 

' 

~ - 16,858 
Office supplies. 

' 

- 

' 

- 10.010 
Repairs and services _' 

. 

A 

' 

~ - ‘3,57O 
O_ffice‘rent - 

' _ ‘ ’b 
_ 

- - - -300
_ 

Telephone . 

_ , 

I 

. 

‘ 

4 

‘ 

, . 
_ 

. . 
, j - 

. 
. . 

. 

- 

‘ 

.300 
- x 

- 
’ ‘ ‘ 

' ' 

_2o3;259 . 1'.0"/2.089 

I‘oéfifiiénbyiof{Q/énue'ov<§r expénsés:' . 

‘ 

- 

I; . 

' 

" _$' ~ 

. 

.v 
'('3,’68,1)f'~ $’~ (38‘,_878)' 

_See schedglAe' 3_2V-- Su~pp!en_nent_a_l Schedulé of Expénditures for Fundirig Pu'r,pose's
I 

Schedule.4 - Federal DL_1tyt'o"ConsbuI.tvPIjog_rarr,\ .

V 

. -Year ended I\'/V1z:i_rc_h 31, 201 1, wimcdrhparatiyé figures for 2010' _’ 

’ 

_-2oi1_ 
‘ '5 '-‘ ~2o'1o-_ 

I-~.F_ede'ra_l'fu'nding_’ 
I 

* 

I 

-_ 
‘ 

_ 

‘ 

'_ 
< 

$ - 

'7 I-~'~ A3? ‘_ 2:0‘,.153 - 

' 

~ ‘Expe'nses':- 

Salaries‘ 
A 

_ 

~ V" 
' 

. 

' 
' 

:6,A070' ; , 4. 

- 

'

- 

Amortization 
_ 

~ 
’ 

' 

. 

. 

‘ 

_ 

‘ 

« 5 1;o2o . 

- 

- - 

Travel 
_ 

- - 

‘ 

. 

- 

‘ ‘ 
' .413‘ 

V 

- 
.

- 

Meetings‘ ' 

. 

r . 

' 

. 

A 

' 

. . 

, 

V 

4 
. 

.. - 13,553 
Allocated administration 

' 

_ 

_' 
' 

' - - 
. 

‘ ' 

3_913 
Aud_it,‘ac_counting' and business services . 

. 

. - - 

. 

7 2,000] 
Officesup'pliesVr- m 7 " ' .._- fi_582~

b 

2 .» 

' 
' ‘7,5o3 . 

4 
V 20,153“ ' 

A~'~‘~'Defiéiéri§y'Qfrevenpepvér ¢_e'x;:>.enses- " . 

_$ 
_ 

(7;5'03)'~ _'
A 

_,14"



NATION - SASKATCHEWAN SECRETARIAT . 

Schedu|e"5 7 Duty to Consult - ’En,bridge-Program.‘ 

‘ Match _31_. 2011. with comparafive figuresfor 2010‘ 
I 

204,1‘ 2010’ 

~Fun,dirig~-VEnbridge 
' 

‘ 

" V 

- 

. 

’A 

'$ -3’ ’_‘1o'o,oO'o 

Expenée,:~ 
V 

’
" 

‘ 

Métis NationRegiohal.CoUncil.ERHA . 

- 

' 

‘ 

-’ 
. 

‘ 

25,006 
Métié Nation Regional Council ER_lll 

' 
‘ 

' 

-. 
‘ 

25,000‘ 
Métis Na'tibn.Regional Council V\_/R IIA . 

~ 

-' ‘ 

‘ 

~ 25,000 
.- »Westcap»Management|nc. (Regina Métis Sports and ‘ 

. 
- 

’ 

A
_ 

.C.ul,ture'). 
, 

. 
K‘ « __. . 

_ 
- 

; ~. . 25.090, 
-' 

' ' 
‘ - 

" 
'_100,000 

Ex¢ess'ofr,évenuedver‘expenses~» ” 
_- 

7 ‘ 

V_ 3;" _« ‘é _: f 
- ,1’ f$ _’ _. .- 

Sche_d’u|‘e 6 -’ Bilater_a|fProgram
‘ 

Yéarjénded March 31, 2011, with comparative figures for 2010 

* ,2Ao1-13.’. - ‘~2o1‘o_ 

'ProvihciaIfunding 
' 

_‘ 
- 

> 

" ‘s’ 100.0005 " S 
A 

96.103‘ 

Expenses: 
_ 

' 

V 

- 

. 

I A 2 « 

Salaries" I . 
' 

- . 

_ 

55,392 . 
- - 

‘Technical support - 
- 

' 

' 

18,412‘ 
. 

' 

. 

-' 

Travel‘ 
’ 

- 

' 

« 

' 

. 
. 

V 8.983 - 35,247 
‘Telephone 

_ 

' 

» 

é 

-. ' _3,91'7.' « 
. 

.- 
. 

’ 

, 
. 3,062 . 

' 558 
Legal 

_ 

-_ ~ 

. _, 
‘ 

' 

. . 
,2,7ss- ~ 

-

’ 

’ 

_Audit,a_cco'unting andbusiness services 
' 

. : 

‘_ 
‘ ~2,70O - 

. 4,000 
‘ 

v f ‘f 
. 

. . 
U '. 3333." 

V 4 

4:
- 

P'rjnt_i'n'g'and postage" 5; ‘ 
_» 

- 

' 

= .- 

’ 

1,279 ‘b 
‘ ‘ ’ -' f 

tlnsurance. ~‘ I ~_ I 
‘ 

‘ 

_ ‘ 

' 

,' 1,200‘. ' 
‘ 

~ 

.

- 

Equipmént leasing - T " 
, 

‘ H ' 

- .548 .- . 
. "V 

‘Consulting _‘ 
V 

‘ 

' 
V 

_ 
V 

» 

‘ 

. 

‘ 

. 

‘ 

. 

- 
. 

, 

. 41.298 
. 
_A|Ioc'ated administration fees f . _- .. I 

' 

, . 
r 5 A 

. 

‘ 

. . 
~- » 

. V .15'.000
. 

-A ' 4‘ ‘ ‘1oo',o’6'4_‘:~. - "96,1o3‘ 

’ ‘_ 
" 

_ 

‘;'_f$ 
_ 

V 

._ y(64)" V$~ .-2 
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NATION - SASKATCHEWAN 
’ Schedule 7 '- Triparltiteself Gdvernment~P'ro'gram 

‘ 

_ 
Year ended March 31 ,‘2‘o.1‘ 1. with cbr'n_p;irati§/e figures.for 2010 

' 

201.1 x 

‘V 

?- 2010 

Revenue: - 

A 

’ 

. . 

‘ 

. . 

' 

.
A 

Provincial funding. ' 

_ 

' $ 285,000 $ 285,000 
F_e_defal funding . 

‘ 
_ 

’ 

‘ 

. ‘ 276,503 » 285.000 
.Métis Nation -Legislative Assembly‘- booth display . 

‘ 

- 

A

' 

contributions - 

. . 
_- I 

_ 
. . 

A 

. 

' I-A 
. .- 6,400 

-' 
- 

' 

561,503-‘ 
' ‘ 

- 576_.'4oo 

Expense: .V ; 
A

' 

‘ 

V 

Salaries-a_nd bebnefits 
‘ 

’ 

’ 
' 

. 
- 254,503 

_ 
267,093. - 

.An’nua|G_eneraIAssfembIy_ . 
_ 

' 
- 65,000 75,818

A 

_Métis»Natioh Legislative Assembly . 
A 

. 

' 

65.000 _‘ 75,818 
Financial services ' 

g . 

‘ ' ' 

‘ 

, f 58,300. A 

’ 

_

- 

Travel. 
4 

V 

I . 
. 34.937 44,363 

Prihtihg and postage » 

_ 
_ V 

17,277 
_ 

4,080 
’ 

Telephone and ihternet ' 

‘ 

. 

' 

14,000 7 14,091 
Offibe rent ‘ 

' 

_ 
_ 

12,521 . 14,000 
Strategic planning . 

‘ 
* 

' 

10,000 - 30,566 
= Legal-W 

_ ; 
« j , V 

' ‘ 

8.620 - 4.319
_ 

Office supplies 
_ . 

" ' 

6,046 ~ 9.308 _ 

Advertising V 
. 

_ 

_. _ . 

9 _ 

_ 7,200" 
_Audi_t, accOu'nting‘and business services 5,400 

‘ 

38,000 
Meetings“ I q . 

‘ ‘ ‘ 

b 

» 

_ 
4.000 

' 

-4.-029 
.AmOrtization 

4 

. 

~ 
. 

~ 1.981 . 3,962 
Sundry- -A .~ :- mi 

. . 

.' 
_- 

‘ .3,000 
' ' " 

' 

' 
’ 

‘ 563,485 - 

' ’ 

‘ 
' 596.147 

Deficienéy of revenué over expenses 1 _v 

I 

- 

_ 
V‘ 

- 

_$ 
. 

(1,982) 
‘ 

- _$ (19,747) 

Federai"ahd~prc)vinciaI funding ‘of'$57()‘,(300 is in~eXc_ess of‘améunts,expensed~of.v$561',503_'(éxcluding 
' 

_. " amortizatio_n)'and the excess Qf $8,497 is'in'clude‘d-in" _acco'unt's. p_ayablé_and accrued liabilities at March 31. 2011. 

Schedulé 8 :- B_asi;: Opgénizafiohal Cépac_ity'E‘rogram -

. 

Year ended.I\/‘larch 33 ,- 201 1 ‘Qvith c9m‘par_étive figuresfor 2010_ 

.'.2011*~ f I 52010 

Fedéral.~fundi_ng - 

. 

V 

. 

$' ’ '4,60.0_00' 
' 

- $ 460,000 

Expe'nsbes:~ ' 

. 

- ._ 
, 

'
’ 

Salaries and benefits, . 

‘ 

. 

_ 

- 

_- 323;055 286,640 
Financial services" - 

. 
» 

. 

‘ 

. 

V 

. . 
_ 33,131 , 

‘- 

Travel —jregic_>naI‘directo.rsfl '_ 
, _. 

‘ 

. 

’ 
' 

38,052’ ' 

. 
— 111._'9oo 

rent _ 
_ 

' 

; ._ 
’ 

- 

_ 
f 

' 

24,250 - 

‘ 

. 

'- 

Telephone 
' 

_ 

- 

' 

12,608‘ 5 ..

’ 

P_rofessiona! fees , 

. '9 
' 

_ _ 

« 
- '_ - ‘1o,a33_ 

' '_ _- 
"Bank chafges ' 

' 

- 

' 

I 8,324. - 
. 

.
_ 

, Officesupplies » - 
. 7,222. A - 

« 

. _-'Me'e_tings* - 
- 

‘ 
~ é 

. 
» 2,373 

' ' 

- 

> 

'

- 
AAHocate‘d administration » 

.' 
. 4 

- - . f . . 

, 
.54,-"500 

' 
- — 

‘ 
' 

_ 
~460,153_.' 

' ' 
‘ H 463,040 

' 

Deficien.<‘=v9f_r¢VenUe_°v¢rexpénses 
. 

.- 

‘ ' 
‘ 

‘ 

_$ . (153) 
' 

. .(a.d4o)
‘
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METIS :NiATION sAsKATcH EWAN j 
' 

. SChedul‘ej9 —. Abofigm_aI.Hé_alth‘ Transition F’ro’gra’m~ . 

Year~e’nd_e_d March 31‘, 2011, with comparative figu_res_ fdr.201O 

A 

] ’2o1;1~.* "~__2o‘1'o~ 
‘A 7 

f ». 

' 

»_ .3 . 

, a5;6‘54. _$’ '.4o.1',1"o8 

Expensef Q 1.. _ ‘ 
V 

1 _ 

.. 
A 

'_ 

Cbnsulting . 
. 

A 

. 

55,398’ - 

71,'O_8_4 ;; 
Travel" _. '_ 

‘ 

_ 

.12',13e._ * V. 8.63.7368 
Communication] Diss'erriination . 

I 

’ 10,000’ ' ‘ 
’ 

- ‘ ' 

_.Administration 
' 

; I 
1 

_ 

‘ 
‘ 

' 

_ 

_‘ _' f 73,654 , 
' 
" 

_ 
_ 

—_ . 

Offiqe rent . 

_ 

. 
. 

_ 
. 

- — 53,000 ‘ 37,632 
: 'Ar_nortiza_tio'n V- 

_ 

’ ' ’ L 
_ _ 

. 
. 1‘,958, »‘ ’ 3 1,958 

V 

~ - 

'Sa|aries’and‘bene'f_It$ ~ 
. 

; 
_ 

I - . 
. ‘L 

- 
: 

‘ 

178,-692;‘ .- 

Allocated adminvisftration ' ’ 
' V « 

V 
. . 4 

‘ 
‘ '— 

. 
_ 

. 14,837‘ 
. Telephone and internet‘ ; ; . 

' 

- 
« '- 7 

1 
10,500‘ 

: _-Offic;'e;supp|ies: Q 
' 

_ 

" 
» 4 

‘ 

I ‘ 

. 

: - 
_ 

- 

‘ 

. 6.867 ,~

' 

Adv'e_rtising_: . 

" 
, V 

_. 

V 
« 

‘ 

, 
- I 4.a55- - 

Tech'nical'_supp_ort' _‘ 2 
. 

' 

. 
. 

A 

' ’b ' 

‘ 

f-, 
A 

‘_ 
. ,4,4“0_0

' 

VMeet_ings- ‘_ . ,w 
_ 

7 
V _ 

. 

' 

. . 
-- - 3,643 

,-Prihting and postage * 
' 

-' 
. s : . 

— 
V 

. . 
-.. V . 

» 2.904 
~ ‘ 

’ 

90,146 " 

_ 

‘ '-'4o.1.1o8
, 

'Défioiencv,6r‘re§enu§_évekéiréenséé.~sf~ 

Harvetstirjg Progrém
' 

4 

Yéar'ended‘l\/‘larch 1 , wi_th*C_on'1p_ara.tivé figyreé for 2016 

j;"2o1‘_1'_,-.. J 
. 

2010 

'érpvin;:éI“ruri¢ang « 

' 

- 

‘ 

. 

’ 

' "$ ‘ 

‘_.4$I,'O_0,()~ 
'. 

_-As‘ 37.soO_-'.~-
' 

4 

5 Expénsész. 
Consulting ; 

I 

‘ ' 

. 

‘ ‘ 

y 
» 

j 
' 

' 

_‘ 

_ 

I . j 44.010’ ' 

, 

" 25,200 V. 4 

WTravel_~ '. ‘ .' - .5-1:253 1' '- ‘ 

.'Office supplies: - 

V 

‘ ' 
‘ ' 

. 

'59‘ 
. 

'; .192 I 

~Lega|_':_ . ‘. :- ~ 2.532" 
, 

. 
, :Audit, accounting and business services A V 

- 

' 

J 
' -* 

x 

' 

V 

. 

-‘ ‘2,000 ° 

‘‘.‘~Office_'ren’l : 

, 

I 

. . 
_ 

’-:-'- H‘ _ ~90O 
Meetingsv‘ 

“ " 
A '~~ 

_ 

- »'.300__..‘ 
Telephone and i'nt'e~rnVet~.?. — .. .- » 

_ .-~. .. » _ . V r V 

‘ ‘ 

45,1322-_»" 
‘ N"3;1,424i. 

V. 

-' ‘éxééss (§1eficie'dcy).'offevénued/ér’e§;penses.‘ .- 
- 

». . .$ 3 _‘ 
. .~(322);' 5 $ 3 f I ‘6.075 .- 

A ‘ V 

17 -



Mé‘Tl'$* :NAT:IoN - SASKATCHEWAN SECRETARIAT —|NC.~ 
' 

Schedule 11- Fishery-Program ' 

' 

Year gmded March 3.1~. 201.1, with éomparative figu__res,fo'r 2010
A 

2o‘1.1,?~ 
7 

.[2o'1o_ 

Proviricihalhfunding ’ 

’ é‘ 
' 

$ A 

. -4 
_ 

b $ .'~13_1;295 
' 

' 

. Expensési 
Corisulting. 

' 

. 

_ 

. 

« 

‘ 
A - - ' 

‘ 
- 

‘ 65,000 
‘Travel ’ 

‘ 

. “ 
- 

' - 
’ 

» 37,664 
; 

Salaries 
_ 

. 
_ 

. 
. 

A 
- 

. 5,500 
.- Audit, accounting and business,servioes ' ‘ ' '- ' 

. 5,000 
Prirjtingand posfage_ - 

. 

‘ 

‘ -. ' 

1.766 
Meetings V ‘ 

' 

, 
. 

4 

. 

. , 
- 

» 

- 

; 

' 1.38.6 
Telephqné and internet 

' 

I 

. 

_ 

- . 1,000 
A(_ive'rtisinQ . 

-‘ 
. -V _» .. 

b 

. , . _- . . 

- - .. ~ 

. 

: W820 
'-' 

. 

‘ 

V" 4118.136 

Excefisiofyrésienue§ve}.¢ip§fiées 
_ 

. 

.‘ 
V 

f, 
' 

h 

_’ 4 
' 

j 
I 

4$ ‘ 

13,159" 

Schedfile. 12 ,- Duty id Consult - Reg'u’latory Reform 

Year enAded'I\/‘larch 31, 2011, with cérfiparétive -figiuures fof 2010 - 

5 ‘I-20.11 .~. ’V 2o1o~ 

P?ovincia|’funding 
_ 

. 
: 

- 
. $ 50;0OO 

- ExpenSes:~ I 
Consuiting ' ' 

' 
' ' 

' 

, 

'- '_ - 
, 

26,000 .- 

Travel. . 

' _ . N ‘ 

.- 23,026 :» 
Legal_~_.p AA - Q _ _ 

A2o,464 _; 
;Sala~ries_arid benefits . 

' 
‘ 

‘ 

_ 

. j 
‘ 

’ 

V 

V 

' 

: 

‘ 

L 
_ 

. . 

' 13,463.’ .' 
»

» 

'Allocatedadmjnistration ‘ 
- 

_ 
_ 

‘_ 
, 

_ 

- 
_ 

- 
‘ ‘6,45o 

Officerent‘ ‘. Q . 

» 

~' .. - »- - 7.500 
Meetings : _- 

' 
‘ 

‘ 

. ~ : ' 
A - ‘ 

- 
- 

‘ 418 
Amorfization I 

. . 

4 
_ 

' 

. 

- 

‘ 

V 

- .294 A 

- 

V 

Prin'ting.and po-siege - 
. . 

' _- V 
I 

- ' 243 
Advertising; 4 

.. . 
, 

« _ 
' 

. 

' 

. 

' 

— - 
. 

' 

1,01 
, 
Qffice supplies A. 

A ’ 

A » - 

_ 

~ - ' 
’ 

61} 
Telephone and int_erjnet—’ ; . -é . 

_— _ 

- 

4 
. 

_- 

A A _ _ 

. I _ , 5 . .13_' 

A‘ 

‘H~_~Deficienhybf(evehue~ovefe$<pgén§ésf '» 

A 

_ 

I 

>3’ _A ‘.4 .3’ ._ (41,043) 

~1a



—;sAsKAfc'HEwAN SECRETARIAT ‘ 

4." 

"Schedule 13 _- P_u‘bli_c _Healfh Agencybf Canada -fSL1rv'eiIIan’ce 
’ 

Year‘ ended March 31'. 2011», with Comparative figgres for 2010 

2011 K ‘ '2o1o‘ 

Fédei'al_fundir'1g~ 
' 

. 

. 
. 

4 

$ 
1 

17,227 sf.-7_~ 4'2,-176 

‘ 

V 

Expenses: 
Consulting _~ 

’ 

- 2 - 3 14;95o.7; 4 19.500 
Meetings 1 

. 

_- 
. 

. 

’ 
~ 

_ 
2,000 ‘ 

' 

_ 

' 1,000, 
Travel 

. 

- . 

' 

' 

' 

- 

, 

- 

‘ "219, 2 _6,826_‘ 
Printing ahd;‘postage'. ; 

' 
’ 

_ 
f — » 

’ 

I 
' 84V - 2,000" 

-Salaries-‘an_d_be’n'efits ‘ 
' 

V 

- '_ 
. 

' ‘- " ' 

. 4,800‘ 
Technicafsupport . 

, 
. 

‘ 

" - 
' 

3,550_ 
Office rent - 

‘ 

' 

. 
I - 

‘ 

. 2.250 
Office supplies I v 

_ _ 

‘ 

. 
. 

- - 

' 

1,500 
Telephone and interhet ‘ 

~ 

. 

- 
V 

A 

, 

-. 
. . 

, 

- 

_ 
. 
750‘

‘ 

A I . 
‘ 

. _ . 
. 

_ 
. .1 17,253- 

_ 

42,176; 
Ex_ce_ss(déficie_ncy).o_f revenue é)ve'r'expeh's.és 7 '_ 

' $~ ' 

4 

_ 

_' (26).~'_ ‘$ 
, 

_ 
A

- 

Schedqle 14 - Duty _to Consult - ‘Nuclear Waste I'\_/I‘ariageAment' Organization‘ _' 
I.

I 

' 

_ 

Year efudefl Mafch 31, 201:1,~wit.h comparative figures‘ for 2010 _ 

~ '20‘1.1_~_-~ 
nv 

_’~‘2,01A0
. 

Otherfuumdiing ~ 

‘ V 

I "- I 

$ _' 215.453 

T Expenses: 
Travej . 

- 

.- 
i 

« 

‘ 

. 

V . 

. I :-' - 
. 126.582. 

Consulting - 

. 

- 

. 

_’ 
' 

_ . 

_' 

' 

'_ - I , 

' 3 67.905 V 

Allocated administration 
' 

' 

_ 

' 
— 

‘ 
‘ 

- 
'- 

' 

. 26.410. 
Meetings 

A ' 

- 

_ 
. 

' 

- 

' - 
3 

' 19.410 - 

_.Salari_es and benefits ; 
A 

’ 

A 

4 
< 

‘ 
’ 

' 

.. 

- 
. 6.000 b“ 

«Telephone andintemet. . 
: 

‘ 
» 

V . _. 

‘- ' ‘.- ’2.,000 
Office .SuPD|_ies~ 2 -'1 ' 

, 

‘ 

. 
'~ ‘ 

" 
- - -p : 1.487. 

'AcIvet‘tisi'n_g - 2 . 

' 

I — - 

' ‘ 
» 

‘ 
' ' -" ' 

~ 1 827 
'Amortiz’ation_. ~. ; 4 

'_ 
_ 

._ -A 
_ 

‘.3864’. .;v 
Printingand postage - - s . 

' 

. 

- 

. 
. 

. 

- 

_- 
'-._ .' 

-‘ I 306 ' 

_ ~ 

'_ D~eficién~cy;'ofreve‘nfle‘bvef'e$<pénsésV. i 
- 

V 

_’ ~¢ 2 .$ (35;855'). 5
& 
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METT|S* NATION; SASKATCHEWAN mc; 
Séhedule L Youth. Leadership Workshop 

1 

' 

. Yeafended _March,2§1', 2011, with comparative figu_res for 2010 

.2011" " 
_ 
.2010 

‘_ Heritage. A‘ " ' 

. 

' - ‘ $ ~108.408. 

Expenses: ‘ 
. 

_ _ 

- 
' 

'

. 

Consulting 
_ 

“ 
- 

7 - 50,904 
.~Travel' 

_ 

_ 

~. . 
. 

~ 
. 

‘ - 
. 40,223 

’ Advertising 
V 

, 

' ' 

, 
_ 

— 

. 
- 

’ 
’ 

11,615 - 

Officerent A 5 
‘ 

- I - » 3,200 
. Meetings.‘ 

_ 

_ 
. 

b 

' 

- 
. 

’ 

1,723 
Telephone and interhef '— 

_ 

917 
7 Officé supplies . 

-' 

4 ‘ 

' 

- ~ 475 
Amortization , 

~ 

" 

» 

' 
- 

. 

A 

. 
- 

. 423 * 
Salaries andb'eneflts . 

A 

. . . . 
_ 

_‘ 

_ 
. 

< 
. 

, , 

- 
4 

— . 

_ 
369 

— 

. . 

‘@'_“.1o9'.849 
‘ 

V .Deficien_cy of'revenué.oyer.'expenses . 

I 

'. 
- 

. 

‘ 

_ $ _ 

'_ ‘- 

j 

' 

$ ~ 

_ 

(1,441) 

'ScheduIe'16 - Fisheries’Round Tab|e_Prografi1 

Y‘e_ar‘ehded March.31-,‘ _2011, with comparative fiégures for 2010 

‘"2011 
V 

szoio‘ 

Rex’/énue:' 
. . . 

b 

‘

_ 

. 
- Provincial funding. ’ 

- 
. 

A A" $ -' $ 
_ 

118,840_ 
."otherrunqingf,‘:._..._ . 

V .. j 
- - 

. 
.500 

- - 
z‘ ' -' " "_-'11.9.'34o 

'E‘xpet_1ses‘:_ 
_. . 

- 

. 
. 

‘ 

. 

' 

. 
. ; . 

V 

-
— 

Travel’ _- 
_ 

. 

’ 
» 

. 

' 

I 
. Q 

' '- ‘ 

‘ 

_ 

57,027, 
-Allocated admini_s1ration_ I 

. 

— 

. 
. .. 

‘ 

_, 

H 

_ 
V 

_ 
' 

, 

‘ 

14.490. ‘- 

. 
. Consulting‘ . 

4 

' 

» 
' ‘ 

' 

' 
‘ - 

; 

‘ '9,429 
, A 

' .Meetihgs' 
_ 

_ 

" 
_ 

. 

‘ 

_ 

« - 
‘ 

_ 
A 
7,700 .. 

._ - Legal 
A 

& _ _ 

. 

*'- ' -6,100 4’ 

_' ‘.Audit,'a<;cou’n.ting and business,-s_ervices 
_ , . 5 

- _' 
_ 4,000 

A 

_- Salaries and benefits‘ 
' 

I - 

' 

A - 

' 

. 
i 

_ 

-- - 

. 

- 

. 2,782 . 

« ‘Office'supp|ies4 - - 
' 

»_ g -_ 
- 

. 

-- A 

_ 

895' 
‘Ceremor'1ial' .. 

' 

» .. . f - 

. 
.. 

. 

_ m 96 
" " ‘ ' 

' 
‘ ' 

’ ' 

‘ ' 

f :- 
. 

- 

I 102,519.
' 

-~_.-~.-_-Exéessgs:-révenu§}5yerexpenses' 
H 

. 

« 

$. ~"'16,8>2’1‘
_ 

. 
2_o'



METIS LNATION SASKATCHEWAN sEcRE,TARIAT me. i 
* 

—_ 
' 

. 

- m 
Yearlended March 31.2.01 1. with comparative figuflres for 2010 

‘ 

. 

‘2o11,‘~.' 
_ 

:~.,~_2o’1‘o 

Fede_raI4fur’1d'in'g __ 

' 

' 

" 
- 3 $ 3 - $ 93.935 

. Expensesf 
Traye! ’. 

A 

' 

. 
- 7 g . 

.’ ' 

69,150 
Allocated admin_istration_ 

' ‘ ' 

_ 

« 

' 

- 5 15,000 
Consuiting . 

._ 

‘ 

-. - 
r 

. 

' 

_ 

fl-, - 

4 

. 9.785_. 

Ex°§ss'Of.revenU‘3ow/9I‘e?‘Deri$6s .V .4 '_ ~.-.~[‘ $15" ‘ -A" 

Schedule 18 - O_rgani27.a'tiona| Asséssmént 

Yea? ended March 31, 201.1; with comparative figures for 2010 ~ 

‘.~2o11 ‘ 

4’ 

-2016 

Federal fundihg 
‘ 

I 

‘ 

. 
in 

$ 
.- 

- 
‘ 

$ 
. 

35.592 

Expenses: 
A 

. g. » ~ ~ ' 

_ 

V

I 

Consumng j 

’ 

. 
.. 

. 

— - 
. 

‘ 30.331 
~AI|o<;ated'admini_stra_tio 

. 

- 4,642 ‘_ 

'M'eetings__ ., V‘ V , 

..-.. . 204. 
'. 

.~ 

' 
- 

' 

~ W ~ - 

' 

- 
" ' 

H 
;' 35.177 

Exoessofre\}énue_.ovér‘EXpenses_ _ 

'_ A. __$ . ;= »~ _ — ,_415 . p 
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.-~SASKA'4|'sC’H~EWAN 
~Schédule' 1'9’ -. Saskatchewah Laridirig Wafer Projéct

’ 

. Year .ended.M§arch*i31, 2011, with comparative figures for 2010 

2011. 
' 

52010
I 

‘*~'Fe'deraI_fundihg "A 
' '_ ' ‘$ * 

_ 

4 3;" ’~1,7op" 
E‘x'pehses:~ 

' 

H 

' 

_ 
, 

4 
- 

_ 

; . 
» 

_

~ 

Tr_ave|~ »- ~ ' 

. 
‘-_ 3 1,027‘ 

Meetings - - _4 . 
- 

fl 

-' 
« 673 

Ex'ce'ss ofrevenue _o_v'er_.exp'e_h’sés' '_ 
A 

' 

5 
' 

‘A 

$_ . ‘_ ;f, $ '_ 
j 

4.’ 

Sched.u'le_2O - Waterwést Water Projeqt
A 

yea‘r1§n'ded» March 31‘, 2011'. with corfiparative figures; for 2010
b 

‘I 

‘.2011 _' 

I‘ 

2o1o__ 

F.e'de’}al.»fund_ingV V 
' 

. 

' 
' 

. 

$~ V 
3 - -$ ” 

A 

5,i42' 

exp§nses:' 
‘ 

, 
. 

. 

_ 

. . 

Meetjngs- 
_ 

‘ 

«V 9 , 

< 

‘ 

‘£3,853 
~,Trave|. , ._ '.. ..- I, .. 1,239 

. 

' ‘ ~ 
-. 

'~ 
. 

: 

' 
‘ ‘ .' ~.‘5..142 

.Ex<_:éSs _ofrevehue'oVer_exp'en_sés' _' 
, 

_ _ 

5 
__ _- V- -'_$ 

‘ 

;_ 
_ 

_$ 
I V 

I-
_ 

.22"



‘ 

Schédule 21 5 Appeals Tribunal
' 

. Year 31', 2011, with co.n"ripara'tive' figuresufor 2010‘ 

..r2o1i:" 
" ’ 

. 
Rev'e:nue: 

Fedéralfnundling 
' 

‘ 

. 

‘ 

- 1 
_ 

- V'92;920~ -’ R '-.g 

I -I 
» 

. 

Expenses:-’ 
Travel 2‘ 

. 
_ 

b 

. 45,299 
' ‘ 

‘ 
- --_ 

V. 

Consulting 
A 

. 

- 

4- 
» 

_ 

'_ 
' 

A 

.36,1_21 ~-~ 
Allocatedadministration" . 

’ 

‘ . 
.- 

‘ 

. 
. 

- 12,120 : 

' 

. . 

-- 
V 

. __ _. 
. 

‘ b 
. . . 

V 

. 

93;54o~ A _~ 

. Deficiéficy’ofreV_én~ueofiéréxpenseé' 
"H b’ 

: .$ ' 

'_ $
' 

Schedule‘ 22 - Hameéting Negotiations. 

Year ended March431 2’O1'1.;‘ with’ comparative fi_gurés' for 2010 

2o‘1,1.'r 
. 

~‘.'2d1o'. 

A 

Revenue: .
« 

‘b ._ f 

Provincialfuhding. " ‘I ~’ 

A 

h‘ 
-_ 9.2_56~' $ '. ~- 

E,xpens.es:A I _ '. 
. 

' 
- » 

‘ 

- 

_ 
é 

‘

1 

~Profes»siona_'l,fees; 
A 

_ 
_ 

. 3,931 
‘ 

. - 

Training and development . 

~ 
~ 

— 3.000 . 

’ 

‘ '- 

Travel 
' 

‘ 
i 

‘ 
- 

' 
’ 

2,297’ ’ 

_

- 
. 

, 28 v 
. 

' 

V ‘

- 

~9,256 " . .-‘ 

'. .‘Deficiency.of‘(e\ienuevove(‘expensés : 
_ ._ I ‘V 

. 
_I-. 

' " ' 

.'_

23



—NAT*ION 7'f3~A$KA'|':CH~EWAN SECRETARIAT INC; 
~ 

» Schedule 23 _§Envir6nment
‘ 

’ Yeaf.enHed Mérch‘31, 2011, with compérative figures for 2010_ 

_2o1i' 
» 

..~-2010
_ 

Revenue: 
" A 

, 
.. ‘

’ 

Provincial _fun_ding~ - 

. 

$-« 34,708 $ _* 
A

- 

Expenses: A 

‘ 
’ 

_ 
, 

. 

' 
‘ 

_ 
. . 

'

; 

Salaries ‘ 

; 

'~ " » 
' 

V 
. 16,404 ' - 

_Traiv'e_|~ V », . 

~ —12;7_o3. . 

A - 

-Pn‘ofesAsional.fees 
4 

‘ 

A 
' 

; .3,7_95 
' 

— - 

Telephone 
H 

- 

’ 

: 
- 

' ‘923 
_ -__ 

Officesuppties ” ‘ 

, 

' 595 . 
V -- 

Printing and postage 
_ 

‘ 

. ’152 - 
- - 

_ Reference maferia!s- ' 

- 

. . : 

‘ 

. . 136] ‘ 

. ; 
4

- 
‘ 

- 
— - 

' 

- 
- 

- 

' 

’34;7oa. 
» 

I '- 

. 
Excessofkevenu'e'dverexpensé$_" 

' V 
’ .'$ ' I $ 

1 

_. rt 

Sche_d:uie 24 g Po‘st Powley Corfipohent A 

_ 
Year ende<3.March 31. 2011; with comparative figures for 2010 

2011; 
' 

4'. .2010. 

' Revenue: 
Federai funding j 

' 

. e23;379_ .

- 

Expenses: ‘ 

. . 

_. , , 

‘ 

_

' 

Salaries 5 _- 
3 

~ 

_ 

_' — 234,024. ‘ 

, _- 

C'on_su|tin'g , . 

I 

'. 
. 

’ 

. 
. 73;913_ i 

’ - 

Administration‘ 
‘ 

- 

‘ _ 
_ 

_ 
59,285‘ - 

' 

Pi'ofes'sional'fees 
; 

. 

’ 

. 
_ 

,' 
' 

. 

b 
. 48;18_1_ - .- 

’:Travel ' 
. 

_ 

~ * 
’ ‘- - 

' 

_ 

‘ 

. 

' 

32,105’ ’ 

. ; 
-' 

~'A’dve‘rtising '_ 
I 

V 

' 

. 

_ 

' 

I _. 27;000 _ 
.~ _-~ 

‘ 

(Meetings » 
‘ 

I . 

" 

_. 
F 

‘ 

v 

’ 

‘26,3'i3_‘ ; 
. 

* 
.A 

. 

-’ ' 

FinanciaI.se~:ces, 
_ 

- 

' 

, 

» -25;ooo I _- 
: Printing and p'o's_tage - 

’ 

' 22,079‘ _' 
_ 

‘ - 

All_oca_ted~admir3istration . 

‘ 

. . . 

V 

. 2.1.967 . . 

-Tech_nicalAsup'port;’ 
> 

: . 1 

’ 

' 

' 20,451 ; 

' 

A 
,

- 
V Reference matefia|s- g - 

. 

. 

-' 

_ 

‘ 

18,'893 
' 

_ 

- 

‘ 

.- 
~‘~Tr’ainih'g and . 

-. 
. 

» 

_ 

~ 
" 

, 
. 

‘ 

14-4108» - . - 

e23;379 
' 

L 
‘ 

» - 

'Exces's_"o_ffeVenue;oyér”expenses_ _’ 
' 

« '_ . 

A 

1 '$V _. 
_ V 

;- 
V 

' 3‘ 
. f_ 

‘ '- 

.Fe_de_ra!AfL.Jriding;of.$657‘.1.37 is‘ ih excésé of amofints‘ exfienséd bf $623,37§ End the éxcesé <$_f ,

' 

" 
_$33.758_.'is included ih accounts payable and accrued Iiabilitiesat March 31,‘ 2011.

24



~METIS 
' 

. Schedule 25 - Post Povsl/|e9 Combpneht B 

Yearended March 31. 2011, with comparative figqres for 2010- - 

2015 
' 

j ".2010. 
_ 

-

' 

_Reve'nde:_ A .. ' 

_ 

. 
_ 

’ ’

- 

'Federa|funding ‘ 

I. 
& 

V 

_ 

». 
_ 32,329. , 

_--. 

W ‘ Expénlsesz ~ 

Salaries 
' ‘ 

_ _ 47,936 
' 

: - 

_-Travel’ 
_ 

‘ 

‘ 
- 

_ 
_ 

- 

V 

’ 

‘ 

1.7;601‘ - >- 
Allocated administration.‘ 

i 
, 

‘ 

_ 

' 

I; 8,949 — 

_ 

v - 

» _«Pri'nting and postage‘ ' 
- ~ 

' 

. 
. 

- 5;952 . 
' 

fl 

- 
.

s 
' 

.- Administration 
' 

i 

. 

‘ 

. 

' 

_‘ 

' 

. 

' 

. r1,855 ~ - 

Pr,ofessiona!'f.ees .- 

' 

» Y 
_ 

.. 
. 

. , 

- . 
. _1;40OA , . . 

- 

. 
, 

.- 
_: A 

.. .,. 83,693__ _ 

‘ 

Deficiencyof _ 
_ 

f 

' 

.‘$ 
‘ 

(864 ' 

T $;' 
; . 

' -‘ 

Schedu[e.26 '- Gefiealpgical and Historical
V 

-' Year ended March 31; 
, 
»201_-1,—\}vithjcoVmparative fiéuresl for 2010 

‘_ ~2'oi1 
" 

~_2o‘1o~ 

'Re.venu'e_:- 
. 

' 

- 

, 

' ‘ 

Federal funding‘ _ 
i 

& _ 

‘ 100,068 
' K « - 

Expenses: 
_ 

_ V 1 
. 

_ ,

- 

V Reference materials‘ ' 
V 

~ 
' « - 

. 
, 

' ' 
' 49,187 

‘ 

‘-_
V 

Salaries ' 

‘ 

'_ " 
V _' H 5 _ 20,518.‘ 

_ 

' -' 

. .Tfavél; ; - 
. 

'_ 
. 

« 

‘ 

_ 

. 

' 

. 12;847 — 
V- 

Allocated administration . 

_ 
. 

' 

_ 

‘ 

V 

- 10,945 ' f .

- 

Administration "_ ‘ W I 
_ 

' 

. 2.107. A .- 
' 

:'Technica|.support- 
' 

, 

‘ ‘ 

V 

‘ 

, 
4,750’: 

V 
.‘ 

; 

' 
' -’ 

,Repair and maintenance 
' 

' 

I 

‘ 

. 
. 

‘ 15513 .- 
- 

‘- 

_ Advertising 
' " 

: 
- f 

' 
A _‘ 

‘ ‘ 
‘ 

_1..000' 
' ‘ 

- 

.

- 
' 

' P‘rofessiona|_'feesK L . 

' 

_ _ 

* 
. .. J . .. H5600‘ , : 

V v- - 

4 

_ 

. 
(5efici<_ancyydf'reverVn_ue’_c'>ye’réXbe'nsas' 

». 

f 

é 

'. if 
I 

’ -'(40'4)‘ ~$~ 
‘ 

- 

H.‘-_ 
* 

' 

‘

b 

25.
'



: 

secaermmrnuc. Q 
' 

~Sc;hé_du'Ie 27 - C,dr_n'munity ‘E'r’)gag'em’e‘nt 

. 
-Yea’r endedvMar_ch'.I_31, 2011; with cohiparativé figL_kes for 2010 

-‘I 

. gFede'ral fu_n'di_ng 

' 

:.2o1'1.{ -‘ 
‘ 

.'26_1o' 

Rev‘e‘r-Iulez. 
, 

_' " 
. 

_ 

~ 
- 

Av 

- » 

V 
29;32_5._ 

' 

. 

' 

_

- 

‘ 

9 
j 

E$<pens’es':‘ 7 
-1 ' :V 

A" ‘ 

10.500‘. « 

b 

-A A 
. ,—Prof_é$sional-fees. 

' 

- - f 
’ 

15,‘04_1 - Q ‘ '- 

f_.-Allocatedadminisfration 
" 

f _ 3.7923 
_ 

.

' 

5.~I~.Administration;fij~:~_ ' 

_ , .- ..~33:w 
X 29,366 * -. 

.’.|5efi¢ien¢v,of'revenfie,6vef#930365 '$ ~(.41')I~ $_'~}~ 
‘, 

f
"

~ 

1 

Schedulé 28 ¥ Bbfindry Consfiltatfion. 
I 

‘ 

«~Yéar énded ‘March 20_1>1,fwith.cpm;$aIfatiyé figure~s fqr2010' 

7Re,ven’ue:’ 

I 

.-_.';2o11;~, " ' 

~2o1o_'. : 

~‘:~"Fede_ra|fund_ihg. 7 

I 

.. 
A $ '_55',2'o‘o ~$, ' V 

{".:E‘:>('f>erV1,se_;<‘,_: 
» 

~ 

4 
_ 

. 

V 
; 

— 

_
; 

Professional fees. 1 , «D 
A 

b 

-20,-0005 I " 
. ,-- 

' V .?TIja_Vepl I ‘ 

Meetings I 11;936 . 

' 

» ‘I-~ 
.4j’A||ocated‘édmihistratitgn =_ 

. _ 

‘ 

Q 

' ,- ~'.7.11o,» ' 4'' 
. 

A 

’ 

:_. .Adfni'nistration .~ .- I 
_- 

V 

I
, 

Excess oy‘er‘_exp'enbsés' 
I 

'_ VA 
_ 

» 
V 

, 
' 

l‘ ; AA . _‘ '. I 

V 

$. f _‘ ~-_. 

. ~26f



M étls NATION SECRETARJAT = 

5Sche'du|e' 29 -. Sport and Recreatiohf ‘ 

V 

'Year~’ended March 31, 2011; with" édrnparative figures‘ fqr 2010
_ 

., 2o1i_~., . 

.' ‘ 

-2010 .Ai' 

~ .' Révenue: 
AOth'e‘r-income ' 

. 

V. 
* 

, , 

I 
I " .31.'.800. $ '- 

, 
~Expens'e§:" » 

vSpo‘rts and recfeation _' _° 
' 

_— 

' 

- 

31,742 ‘ ‘ 

‘n 

'- 

".Excessofrevenueoyeqexpensés" 
V 

. . 
"$ 58.’. ’._$ 4. 

' 

'. 4- ' 

I 

Schei1_L1|e.30 ‘- Healt’h‘Di_rector. Initiative - 

" 

' 

I Yéariendeld March 
_, 
201:1, with-comparative figureé for 2010 

;..2o11'-. ' ." zoio 

fR"evenue:' .
. 

‘Provincial funding 
I 

_ 

“ $' 
I‘ 

.‘90.0QO‘ $ 
' V-' 

- -_Exper'1ses; ‘ - V 

S'a!ary‘ and benefits 7 . 
_ 

' 
‘ 

‘ 
' 36.905 - 

_ 

.- 

:COnsu|ting . 

_ 

' 

- 

A 
_ 

. 

' 90.3547‘ 
4

' 

O‘ffice‘réni 
. 

’ 
‘ ' 

h 

. 

' 

. 13,434 ‘ - 

Administration ~ 

4 

A‘ 
‘ 

_ 

- 

. 
b 

'7.500_'A . 
.

- 

Tra'vel‘~' 
. 

‘ I 
, 

' 

. 

’ 

. 7.293 - 

_ 

. 
'- 

' 

Allocatéd adminisfration « 
. . 

« . 
« 

. 
. 2 ' 5.500‘ ,— . ._ . 

. 
4

- 

' 7 DéficiencykflreQenué‘6ver’eXpenéé§‘. 
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KPMG LLP Telephone (306) 934-6200 
Chartered Accountants Fax (306) 93445233 
600-128 4"‘ Avenue South Internet www.kpmg.ca 
Saskatoon Saskatchewan S7K 1M8 
Canada 

INDEPENDENT AUDlTORS' REPORT 
To the members of Métis Nation - Saskatchewan Secretariat Inc. 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Métis Nation - Saskatchewan Secretariat Inc., which 
comprise the statement ‘of financial position as at March 31, 2012 . and the statements of revenues and expenses, 
changes in net assets, and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles, and for such internal control as management determines 
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted audlting standards. Those standards require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit Involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financia\ statements. The procedures selemed depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements In order todesign audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effeétlveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabteness of accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Métis Nation 
- Saskatchewan Secretariat Inc. as at March 31. 2012, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the 
year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting princimes. 

“it 
Chartered Accountants 

Saskatoon, Canada 
July 25' 2012 KPMG LLP, is a Canadian Ilmitad liability partnership and a mambo: firm oi the KPMG 

network 0! Independent member firms amliated with KPMG lnzernafional Cooperative 
(‘KPMG International’), a Swiss entity. 
KPMG Canada provides senrlces to KPMG LLP.



METIS NATION - SASKATCHEWAN SECRETARIAT INC. 
Statement of Financial Position 

March 31, 2012, with comparative figures for 2011 

2012 201 1 

Assets 
Current assets: 

Cash (note 3) $ 219,030 $ 559,647 
Accounts receivable (note 4) 658,648 412,664 
Prepaid expenses and deposits 11.632 - 

Due from Provincial Métis Holdco Inc., a related 
party (note 5) 

_ 

124 - 

Due from BTB Festiva\ Days Inc., a related party 
(note 6) 52 58,000 

889,486 1,030,311 

Property and equipment (note 7) 244.327 216.684 

$ 1,133,813 $ 1,246,995 

Liabilities and Net Assets (Deficiency) 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (note 8) $ 921,377 $ 760,801 
Deferred revenue (note 9) 207,198 426,036 
Due to Provincial Métis Holdco Inc., a related party 
(note 5) - 58.000 

Due to BTB Festival Days Inc., a related party 
(note 6) 5.000 24.755 

‘ 

1,133,575 1,269,592 

Deferred contributions for equipment (note 10) 136.134 103,558 

Net assets (deficiency) 
Operating fund (244,089) (239,281) 
Capital fund 108,193 113,126 

(135,896) (126,155) 

$ 1 ,133.813 $ 1,246,995 

Nature of operations (fiote 1) 
Contingency (note 13) 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

On behafi of card: 

Director 

g Director

1



METIS NATION - SASKATCHEWAN SECRETARIAT INC. 
Statement of Revenue and Expenses 

Year ended March 31, 2012, with comparativé figures for 2011 

2012 2011 

Revenue (schedules 2 - 32) 
Federal grants $ 2,314,600 S 1,937,029 
Provincial grants 1,050,747 949,618 
Other 8,359 75,655 

3,373,706 - 2,962,302 

Expenses - Summary schedule of expenses 
(schedule 1) 

_ 

3,383,447 2,965,175 

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses $ (9,741) $ (2,873) 

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



METIS NATION - SASKATCHEWAN SECRETARIAT INC. 
Statement of Changes in Net Assets 

Year ended March 31, 2012, with comparative figures for 2011 

2012 2011 

Operating Fund 

Balance, beginning of year $ (239,281) $ (245,181) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses (9,741) (2,873) 
Transfer from capital fund for amortization 40,404 57,568 
Transfer to capital fund for purchase of equipment (68,047) - 

Deferred contributions related to equipment 68,047 - 

Amortization of deferred contributions for equipment (35,471) (48,795) 

Balance. end of year $ (244,089) $ (239,281) 

Capital fund 

Balance, beginning of year $ 113,126 $ 121.899 
Transfer to operating fund for amortization (40,404) (57,568) 
Transfer from operating fund for purchase of equipment 68,047 - 

Deferred contributions related to equipment (68,047) - 

Amortization of deferred contributions for equipment 35,471 48,795 

Balance, end of year $ 108.193 $ 113,126 

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



METIS NATION - SASKATCHEWAN SECRETARIAT INC. 
Statement of Cash Flows ' 

Year ended March 31, 2012, with comparative figures for 2011 

2012 2011 

Cash flows from (used in): 

Operations: 
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses $ (9,741) $ (2,873) 
Items not involving cash: 

Amortization 40,404 57,568 
Amortization of deferred contributions for 
equipment (35,471) (48,795) 

Change in non-cash operating working capital: 
Accounts receivable (245,984) 20,171 
Prepaid expenses and deposits (11,632) - 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 160,576 591,803 
Due to Provincial Métis Holdco lnc., a related 
party (58,124) 57,812 

Due to BTB Festival Days |nc., a retated party 38,193 (33,245) 
Deferred revenue (218,838) 192,289 

(340,617) 834,730 

Financing: 
Deferred grants for equipment 68,047 - 

Investing: 
Purchase of equipment (68,047) - 

Increase (decrease) in cash position (340,617) 834,730 

Cash (bank indebtedness), beginning of year 559,647 (275,083) 

Cash, end of year $ 219,030 $ 559,647 

' 

Cash Consists of bank balance less outstanding 
cheques as follows: 
Bank balances $ 330,050 . $ 813,723 
Outstanding cheques (111,020) (254,076) 

$ 219,030 $ 559,647 

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



METIS NATION - SASKATCHEWAN SECRETARIAT INC. 
Notes to Financiai Statements 

Year ended March 31, 2012 

Métis Nation - Saskatchewan Secretariat Inc. (the "Métis Nation") is incorporated under the Métis Act 
of Saskatchewan. The Métis Nation's purpose is to undertake activities that strive to recognize the 
political, legal and constitutional rights of the Métis people in Saskatchewan. 

1. Nature of operations: 

These financia! statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which presumes ihat 
the Métis Nation will continue in operation for a reasonable period of time and will be able to 
realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of operations. 

The Métis Nation's continuation as a going concern is dependent upon its ability to attain 

profitable operations and obtain sufficient cash from external funding to meet its liabilities and 
commitments. The outcome of these matters cannot be determined at this time. 

These financial statements do not include any adjustments in the carrying values of assets and 
liabilities, the reported deficiency of revenue over expenditures and the statement of financial 
position classifications that would be necessary if the going concern assumptions were not 
appropriate, should the Métis Nation not be able to continue its normal course of business. 

2. Significant accounting policies: 

(a) Use of estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and Iiabiiities and disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenue and 
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates. 

(b) Cash: 

Cash consists of balances with financial institutions which have an initial term to maturity of 
three months or less. 

(c) Property and equipment: 

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Amortization is computed based upon the 
estimated useful lives of the equipment. In the year of acquisition, one-half of the normal 
rate of amortization is used. No amortization on equipment is taken in the year of disposal. 

Amortization is provided using the following method and annual rates.



METIS NATION - SASKATCHEWAN SECRETARIAT INC. 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended March 31, 2012 

2. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

Asset Method Rate 

Equipmént 
I 

Declining Balance 20% 
Furniture Deciining Balance 35% 
Computers Declining Baiance 50% 

Contributions for equipment purchases are deferred and amortized on the same basis as the 
assets to which they relate. Amortization of deferred contributions for equipment is inciuded 
in revenue from federal funding sources. 

(d) Revenue recognition: 

The Métis Nation follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions. Externally 
restricted contributions are recognized as revenue in the year in which the reiated expenses 
are incurred. Unrestricted contributions are recognized when received or receivable if the 
amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured. 
Amounts receivable related to program funding are subject to approval by funding agencies 
and may change. 

(e) Accounts payable and accrued liabilities: 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities are recorded as incurred and when the Métis 
Nation has a constructive obligation to incur expenditures pursuant to the terms of funding 
agreements. 

(f) Deferred revenue: 

Deferred revenue relates to funds received which relate to the next fiscal year.



METIS NATION - SASKATCHEWAN SECRETARIAT INC. 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended March 31, 2012 

2. Significant accounting policies (continued):
I 

(g) Accounting for program activities: 

The statement of financial position and the statements of revenue and expenses, changes in 
net assets and cash flows are all prepared on a combined basis. Revenue and expenses 
related to administration activities and program delivery are reported as follows: 

Administration 
» 

Registry Engagement Workplan and Implementation 
Federa! Duty to Consult Program 
MERMAC 
Bilateral Program 
Tripartite Self Government Program 
Basic Organization Capacity Program 
Aboriginal Health Transition Program 
Harvesting Program 
Electoral Preparedness 
Management of Métis Harvesting Rights 
Public Health Agency of Canada — Surveillance 
Arbitration Appeals 
Child Welfare Review 
Children / Youth 
New Boundary Commission 
Appeals Tribuna} 
Harvesting Negotiations 
Environment 
Post Powley Component A 
Post Powley Component B 
Genealogical & Historical 
Community Engagement 
Boundary Consultation 
Sport & Recreation 
Health Director Initiative 
Health — Suicide Prevention 

GUCCIOOOIOOOCOOCOCOOOOOOOOC



METIS NATION - SASKATCHEWAN SECRETARIAT INC. 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended March 31, 2012 

2. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(h) Financial instruments: 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value and their 
subsequent measurement is dependent on their classification as described below: 

Cash and investments that may arise and bank indebtedness are classified as financial 
assets held for trading and are measured at fair value. 

Accounts receivable are ctassified as loans and receivabies and are recorded at amortized 
cost. 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities are classified as other liabilities and measured at 
amortized cost. « 

Transaction costs related to held for trading financial assets are expensed as incurred. 

3. Cash: 

Cash consists of amounts on deposit with financial institutions lessoutstanding cheques issued. 
The Métis Nation has availabie a tine of credit to the maximum amount of $300,000 with interest 
on any outstanding balances at Royal Bank prime plus 1.5%. The Métis Nation also has available 
a $20,000 line of credit secured by a Guaranteed Investment Certificate held by Provincial Métis 
Holdco Inc., a related party. 

4. Accounts receivable: 

2012 2011 

GST recoverable $ 25,058 $ 99.133 
Program funding and other 645,090 325,031 
Allowance for doubtful accounts (1 1,500) (11,500) 

$ 658,648 $ 412,664 

Accounts receivable for program funding include amounts related to prior years and current year 
holdbacks. ‘These amounts are subject to final approval by funding agencies and amounts may 
change.



METIS NATION - SASKATCHEWAN SECRETARIAT INC. 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended March 31, 2012 

5. Due from Provincial Métis Holdco lnc., a related party: 

Amounts due from Provincial Métis Holdco Inc. are non-interest bearing, unsecured and have no 
fixed terms of repayment. 

6. Due from (to) BTB Festival Days Inc., a related party: 

Amounts due from BTB Festival Days Inc. of $52 consist of expenses paid for BTB Festival Days 
Inc. ~ 

Amounts due to BTB Festival Days Inc. of $5.000 consist of an INAC funding holdback by the 
Métis Nation related to BTB Festival Days Inc. activities. 

Amounts due from (to), BTB Festival Days Inc. are non-interest bearing, unsecured and have no 
fixed terms of repayment. 

7. Property and equipment: 

2012 201 1 

Accumulated Net book Net book 
Cost amortization .va|ue value 

Land $ 99,405 $ - $ 99,405 $ 99,405 
Equipment 202.969 146,045 56,924 61,685 
Furniture 72,988 54,050 18.938 29.136 
Computers 155,918 86,858 69.060 26.458 

$ 531,280 $ 286,953 $ 244,327 $ 216,684 

8. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities: 

During the year, Métis Nation received funding of $91,054 for the Registry Intake Pilot Program. 
The program did not commence during the current year. As a resutt, the funding -received is 

repayable and $91,054 is included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities at March 31. 2012.



METIS NATION - SASKATCHEWAN SECRETARIAT INC. 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended March 31. 2012 - 

9. Deferred revenue: 

Deferred revenue is comprised of the following: 

2012 2011 

Métis Youth Suicide Prevention 2012/2013 $ 148,000 $ - 

MERMAC 54,198 - 

Sports and Recreation 5,000 - 

Health Director Initiative 2011/2012 - 160,000 
Harvesting Negotiations - 150,744 
Environment - 85,292 
Health Director Initiative 2010/2011 - 30,000 

$ 207,198 $ 426,036 

10. Deferred contributions for equipment: 

2012 201 1 

Accumulated Net book Net book 
Cost amortization value value 

Equipment $ 99,215 $ 46,827 $ 52,388 $ 56,015 
Furniture 68,664 50,705 17.959 27.629 
Computers 133,183 - 67,396 65.787 19,914 

$ 301,062 $ 164,928 $ 136,134 $ 103,558 

11. Related party transactions: 

During the year the Métis Nation incurred rent expense of $160,684 (2011 - $160,684) to 
Provincial Métis Holdco Inc., an organization with which it is related through common board 
members. This rent represents amounts agreed between the related parties. Amounts due from 
(to) BTB Festival Days Inc. consisting of $52 (2011 — $58,000) and accounts payable of $5,000 
(2011 - $24,755) are non-interest bearing, unsecured and have no fixed terms of repayment 
(note 6). Amounts due from Provincial Métis Holdco in the amount of $124 (2011 - $niI) are non- 
interest bearing. unsecured and have no fixed terms of repayment (note 5).

10



METIS NATION - SASKATCHEWAN SECRETARIAT INC. 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended March 31, 2012 

12. Financial instruments and risk management: 

The Métis Nation, through its financial assets and liabilities, has exposure to the following risks 
from its use of financial instruments: 

Credit risk 

The Métis Nation's principal financial asset is accounts receivable. which is subject to credit risk. 
The carrying amount of this financial asset on the ‘statement of financial position represent the 
Métis Nation's maximum credit exposure at March 31, 2012. The amounts disclosed in the 
statement of financial position are net of allowance for doubtful accounts, estimated by 
management of the Métis Nation based on previous experience and its assessment of the current 
economic environment. 

Interest Rate Risk 

|nterest—bearing bank indebtedness which may arise has limited exposure to interest rate risk due 
to it's short-term maturity. 

Fair Values 

The fair values of cash, accounts receivable and accounts payable and accrued liabilities 

approximate their carrying value due to their short-term period to maturity. The fair value of 
amounts due from BTB Festival Days |nc., due from Provincial Métis Holdco Inc. and due to BTB 
Festival Days Inc. all related parties, are not determinable ‘due to the non-arm's length of the 
relationships between the parties. \; 

13. Contingency: 

A claim has been filed by a former employee against the Métis Nation alleging wrongful 
dismissal. A statement of defence has been filed. The Métis Nations is in the process of 
determining the nature of the claim and their potential liability and will account for the final amount 
of settlement if any, upon final determination of any liability.

11



METIS NATION - SASKATCHEWAN SECRETARIAT INC. 
Scheduie 1 - Summary Schedule of Expenses 

Year ended March 31, 2012. with comparative figures for 2011 

2012 201 1 

Salaries and benefits 
_ $ 1,762,680 $ 1,131,768 

Contractors 233,702 — 

Administration 212,574 98,137 
Legal and professional fees 185,630 175,785 
Financial services 155,564 116,571 
Meetings 167.952 50.665 
Travel 140,118 280,183 
Consulting 139,063 446,935 
Reference materials 67,906 78,217 
Repairs and services 65,111 1,518 
Printing and postage 58,549 46,821 
Amortization 40,404 57,568 
Office rent (net of direct allocations) 35,475 66,921 
Training and development 1 33.798 17,108 

. Advertising 31,446 34,332 
Election 26,457 - 

Telephone and Internet 20,171 34,981 
Central registry enhancement 9,786 - 

Technical support 5,500 42,870 
Office supplies 4,532 26,157 
Equipment leasing 3,150 548 
Storage 2,284 4,512 
Bank charges and interest 2,284 10,878 
Insurance 2,056 1,547 
Ceremonial ' 369 51 1 

Annual General Assembly ~ 65,000 
Métis Nation Legislative Assembly - 65,000 
Strategic planning - 32.348 
Funding repayments - 32,196 
Sports and recreation - 31,742 
Green light program - 13,883 
Relocations expenses (recovery) 

' 

- (196) 
Goods and services tax (recovery) (10,000) 10,885 
Sundry (recovery) (13,114) (10,216) 

$ 3,383,447 $ 2,965,175

12



METIS NATIION - SASKATCHEWAN SECRETARIAT INC. 
Schedule 2 - Administration 

Year ended March 31. 2012, with comparative figures for 2011 

2012 201 1 

Revenue: 
Other $ 8,360 $ 29,887 
Green light program - 13,968 

8,360 43,855 
Expenses: 
Administration: 

Financial services 43,516 140 
Election 26,457 - 

Printing and postage 2,364 .
- 

Storage 2,284 4,512 
Office rent 1,933 4,433 
Amortization 1 .888 3,223 
Meetings 791 1,844 
Advertising ' 500 75 
Office supplies 458 - 

Ceremonial 369 511 
Bank charges and interest (249) 2,554 
Goods and services tax (recovery) (10,000) 10,885 
Sundry (recovery) (13,114) (10,216) 
Funding repayments - 32,196 
Green light program - 13,883 
Technical support - 2,258 
Insurance ' 347 
Relocation expense (recovery) - (196) 

57,197 66,449 
Professionai services: 

l_.§gal and professional fees 34,899 V 52,547 
34.899 52.547 

Salaries and contracted services: 
Executive and chief executive officer 19,618 - 

Other 1,063 - 

20,681 - 

Travel: 
Other . 667 4,314 
Executive - 2,695 

- 667 7,009 
Total expenses 113,444 126,005 

Deficiency of revenue over expenses before 
allocated administration $ (105,084) $ (82,150) 
Allocated administration 124,493 100,384 
Excess of revenue over expenses 19,409 18,234

13



METIS NATION - SASKATCHEWAN SECRETARIAT INC. 
Schedule 3 - Registry Engagement Workplan and Implementation 

Year ended March 31, 2012, with comparative figu_res for 2011 

2012 2011 

Federal funding including amortization of deferred 
contributions for equipment of $30,830 (2011 - 

$48,795) $ 117,771 $ 199,578 

Expenses: 
Contractors 45,641 - 

Amortization 31 ,127 49,386 
Salaries and benefits 15,677 76.342 
Allocated administration 10.720 - 

Trave! A 6,000 4.643 
Consulting 5.000 53.303 
Printing and postage 3,124 - 

Administration 779 19,585 
118,068 ' 203,259 

Deficiency of revenue over expenses $ (297) $ (3.681) 

Federal funding of $88,176 (excluding amortization of deferred contributions for equipment) is in 
excess of amounts expensed of $86,941 (excluding amortization) and the excess of $1,235 is 

included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities at March 31, 2012. 

See schedule 29 - Supplemental Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures for Funding Purposes 

Schedule 4 - Federal Duty to Consult Program 

Year ended March 31 , 2012, with comparative figures for 2011 

2012 ‘ 201 1 

Expenses: 
Salaries $ - $ 6,070 
Amortization 510 1 .020 
Travel - 413 

510 7,503 

Deficiency of revenue over expenses $ (510) $ (7.503)

14



METIS NATION - SASKATCHEWAN SECRETARIAT INC. 
Schedule 5 - MERMAC 
Year ended March 31, 2012, with comparative figures for 2011 

2012 201 1 

Provincial Funding $ 5,802 $ — 

- Expense: 
Salaries and benefits ’ 

4,130 - 

Advertising 1 ,435 - 

Consulting 237 - 

5.802 - 

Excess of revenue over expenses S - $ - 

Schedule 6 - Bilateral Program 

Year ended March 31, 2012, with comparative figures for 2011 

2012 201 1 

Provincial funding $ 92,352 $ 100.000 

Expenses:
» 

Travel A 21,791 8,983 
Salaries 21,660 55,392 
Printing and postage 14,410 1,279 
Telephone 8,317 3,917 
Audit, accounting and business services 7,140 2.700 
Meetings 4,586 1,833 
Office rent 4.267 - 

Financial services 3,103 - 

Bank charges and interest 2,533 - 

Insurance 2,056 1,200 
Office supplies 1,581 3,062 
Advertising 908 - 

Technical support - 18,412 
Legal — 2,738 
Equipment leasing - — 548 

92,352 100,064 

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses $ - - $ (64) 

Provincial funding of $100,000, is in excess of amounts expensed of $92,352 and the excess of $7,648 
is included In accounts payable and accrued liabilities at March 31, 2012.

15



METIS NATION - SASKATCHEWAN SECRETARIAT INC. 
Schedule 7 - Tripartite Self Government Program 

Year ended March 31, 2012, with comparative figures for 2011 
2012 2011 

Revenue: 
Provincial funding $ 285,000 $ 285,000 
Federal funding 285,000 276,503 

570,000 561,503 

Expense: 
Salaries and benefits 263,999 254,503 
Constitutional / legislative workshops 64,823 - 

Financial services 46,964 58,300 
Administration fee 41,362 - 

Meetings 36,475 4,000 
Consulting 32,987 . - 

Allocated administration 32,986 - 

Legal 13,541 8,620 
Repairs and services ' 

12,600 - 

Training and development 10,528 - 

Printing and postage 10,148 17,277 
Audit, accounting and business services 6,000 5,400 
Amortization 990 1,981

_ 

Annual General Assembly - 65,000 
Métis Nation Legislative Assembly ~ 65,000 
Travel - 34,937 
Telephone and internet - 14,000 
Office rent - 12,521 
Strategic planning - 10,000 
Office supplies - 6,046 
Advertising_ - 5,900 

573.403 563.485 

Deficiency of revenue over expenses ‘ $ (3,403) $ (1,982) 

Schedule 8 - Basic Organizational Capacity Program 

Year ended March 31, 2012. with comparative figures for 2011 

2012 2011 

Federal funding $ 460.000 $ 460.000 

Expenses: 
Salaries and benefits 438.244 323.055 
Financial services 22.021 33.131 
Travei - regional directors - 38.052 
Office rent 

‘ ‘ 24-250 
Telephone ' 12503 
Professional fees ‘ 10-333 
Bank charges ' 3-324 
Office supplies ‘ 7-222 
Meetiggs ' 2-678 

460,265 460,153 

Deficiency of revenue over expenses $ (235) 5 (153)
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METIS NATION - SASKATCHEWAN SECRETARIAT INC. 
Schedule 9 - Aboriginal Health Transition Program 

Year ended March 31. 2012, with comparative figures for 2011 

2012 2011 

Provincial funding $ — $ 85.654 

Expense: - 

Amortization - 1,958 
Consulting — 55,398 
Travel - 12.136 
Communicationl Dissemination - 10,000 
Administration - 7,654 
Office rent - 3,000 

- 90,146 

Deficiency of revenue over expenses ‘ $ — $ (4.492) 

Schedule 10 - Harvesting Program 

Year ended March 31 . 2012, with comparative figures for 2011 
. 

2012 201 1 

Provincial funding $ 49,500 $ 45.000 

Expenses: 
Consutting 47,633 44,010 
Allocated administration - 2,792 - 

Administration 214 - 

Travel - 1,253 
Office supplies — 59 

50,639 45.322 

Deficiency of revenue over expenses $ (1.139) $ (322)
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METIS NATION - SASKATCHEWAN SECRETARIAT INC. 
Schedule 11 — Electoral Preparedness 

Year ended March 31, 2012. with comparative figures for 2011 

2012 2011 

Federal funding ’ $ 62,273 $ - 

Expenses: 
Contractors 36,000 - 

Administration 8,123 - 

Travel 
‘ 

’ 6.959 - 

Meetings 5,000 - 

Salaries and benefits 3,150 - 

Advertising 2,500 - 

Printingand postage - 2,500 - 

64,232 - 

Deficiency of revenue bver expenses $ (1,959) $ — 

Schedule 12 - Management of Métis Harvesting Rights 

Year ended March 31, 2012, with comparative figures for 2011 

2012 2011 

Federal funding $ 32,916 $ - 

Expenses: 
Central registry enhancement 9,786 - 

Meetings 7,630 - 

Salaries and benefits 6,120 - 

Travel 4,280 - 

Allocated administration 4,047 — 

Administration - 1 ,053 - 

32.916 - 

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses $ - $ - 

Federal funding of $42,500 is in excess of amounts expensed of $32,916 and the excess of $9,584 is 
included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities at March 31, 2012.
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METIS NATION - SASKATCHEWAN SECRETARIAT INC. 
Scheduie 13 - Public Health Agency of Canada - Surveillance 

Year ended March 31, 2012, with comparative figures for 2011 

2012 2011 

Federal funding $ - $ 17.227 

Expenses: 
Consulting — 14.950 
Meetings - 2.000 
Travel . 

- 219 
Printing and postage - 84 

- 17,253 
(Deficiency) of revenue over expenses $ - $ (26) 

Schedule 14 - Arbitration Appeals 

Year ended March 31, 2012, with comparative figures for 2011 

2012 201 1 

Federal funding $ 27,888 $ - 

Expenses:
_ 

Training and development 15,250 - 

Professional fees 6.000 - 

Allocated administration 3,613 - 

Travel 3,000 - 

Administration 25 - 

27.888 — 

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses $ - $ -
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METiS NATION - SASKATCHEWAN SECRETARIAT INC. 
Schedule 15 — Child Welfare Review 

Year ended March 31, 2012, with comparative figures for 2011
3 

2012 2011 

Provincial funding $ 48,500 $ - 

Expenses: 
Professional fees 41,182 - 

Allocated administration 7,275 - 

48,457 - 

Excess of revenue over expenses 53 43 $ - 

Scheduie 16 - Children I Youth 

Year ended March 31, 2012, with comparative figures for 2011 

2012 201 1 

Provincial funding $ 15,000 $ - 

Expenses: 
Professional fees 1 1 .000 - 

Allocated administration 3,000 - 

Travel 995 - 

14,995 - 

Excess of revenue over expenses $ 5 $ -
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METIS NATION - SASKATCHEWAN SECRETARIATINC. 
Schedule 17. - New Boundary Commission 

Year ended March 31. 2012, with comparative figures for 2011 

2012 2011 

Federal funding $ 3,516 $ - 

Expenses:
_ 

Contractors 2,370 - 

Reference materials ‘ 665 - 

Allocated administration 481 ~ 

3,516 - 

Excess (deficiency) of revenue o_ver expenses . $ ' - $ - 

Provincial funding of $3,689 is in excess of amounts expensed of $3,516 and the excess of $173 is 
included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities at March 31. 2012. 

Schedule 18 - Appeals Tribunal 

Year ended March 31, 2012, with comparative figures for 2011 

2012 201 1 

Revenue:
_ 

Federal funding - 92,920 

Expenses: , 

Travel - 45.299 
Consulting - 36,121 
Allocated administration I - 12,120 

- 93,540 

Deficiency of revenue over expenses A $ - $ (620) 
Z. jj’ 1
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METIS NATION - SASKATCHEWAN SECRETARIAT INC. 
Schedule 19 — Harvesting Negotiations 

Year ended March 31, 2012, with comparative figures for 2011 

2012 2011 

Revenue: 
Provincial funding $ 269,300 $ 9.256 

Expenses: 
Salaries and benefits 108.870 - 

Travel 38,284 2.297 
Consulting 31,893 - 

Professional fees 26,179 3,931 
Office rent V 21,059 - 

Annual General Assembly 14,141 - 
' 

Tetephone and intemet 9,772 - 

Administration 9,690 28 
Allocated administration 7,886 - 

Advertising 1 ,053 - 

Printing and postage 453 - 

Trainigg and development ~ 20 3,000 
269,300 9,256 

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses $ - $ - 

Provincial funding of $270,744 is in excess of amounts expensed of $269,300 and the excess of 
$1,444 is included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities at March 31, 2012. 

Schedule 20 - Environment 

Year ended March 31, 2012, with comparative figures for 2011 

2012 201 1 

Revenue: . 

Provincial funding $ 95,292 $ 34,708 

Expenses: 
Salaries ' 72,802 16,404 
Professional fees 5,675 3,795 
Travel 4,490 12,703 
Reference materials 3.691 136 
Equipment leasing 3.150 - 

Printing and postage 2.472 152 
Telephone 2,082 923 
Office supplies 2.005 595 

96,368 34.708 

Deficiency of revenue over expenses $ (1,076) $ -
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METIS NATION - SASKATCHEWAN SECRETARIAT INC. 
Schedule 21 - Post Powley Component A 

Year ended March 31. 2012, with comparative figures for 2011 

2012 2011 

Revenue: 
Federal funding 890,937 623,379 

Expenses:
A 

Salaries 504.338 234.024 
Administration 89,597 59,285 
Contractors 51 ,904 - 

Financial services 
_ 

39,960 25,000 
Meetings 32,501 26,373 
Professional fees 27,066 48,181 
Reference materials 26,800 18,893 
Allocated administration 26,156 21,967 
Printing and postage ' 23.078 22.079 
Advertising 20,000 27,000 
Travel 19.985 32,105 
Consulting 18.000 73.913 
Training and development 8,000 14,108 
Technical support 5.500 29451 

892.885 623.379 

Deficiency of revenue over expenses $ (1,948) 
' S - 

_ 
U j 

Schedule 22 — Post Powley Component B 

Year ended March 31. 2012. with comparative figures for 2011 

2012 2011 

Revenue: 
Federal funding — 82.829 

Expenses: 
Salaries - 47,936 
Travel 4 

- 17,601 
Allocated administration - 8,949 
Printing and postage - 5,952 
Administration - 1,855 
Professional fees - L400 

~ 83,693 

Deficiency of revenue over expenses 
' 

$ - $ (864) —’
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METIS NATION - SASKATCHEWAN SECRETARIAT INC. 
Schedule 23 - Genealogical and Historicai 

Year ended March 31, 2012. with comparative figures for 2011 

2012 2011 

Revenue: 
Federal funding including amortization of deferred 
contributions for equipment of $4,641 (2011 - Nil) 434,299 100,068 

Expenses: 
Salaries 215,582 20,518 
Repair and maintenance 50,388 1,518 
Contractors 41 .696 - 

Administration 41.283 2,107 
Reference materials ‘ 36,750 49,187 
Travel 28,268 12,847 
Allocated administration 24,900 4 10.945 
Advertising 5.050 1 ,OOO 
Amortization 4,640 - 

Professional fees ‘ 3,000 600 
Technical support - 1,750 

451,557 100,472 

Deficiency of revenue over expenses 3; (17,258) $ (404) 

See schedule 30 - Supplemental Schedule of Revenue and Expenditures for Funding Purposes 

Schedule 24 - Community Engagement 

Year ended March 31, 2012. with comparative figures for 2011 

2012 201 1 

Revenue: 
Federal funding - 29,325 

Expenses: ' 

Travel 
_ 

- 10.500 
Professional fees - 15.041 
Allocated administration - 3,792 
Administration - 33 

- 
b 

29.366 

Deficiency of revenue over expenses $ - $ (41)
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METIS NATION - SASKATCHEWAN SECRETARIAT-INC. 
Schedule 25 - Boundry Consultation 

Year ended March 31, 2012, with comparative figures for 2011 

2012 201 1 

Revenue: 
Federal funding 7 55.200 

Expenses: 
Professional fees - 20.000 
Travel - 16,064 
Meetings - 1 1 ,936 
Allocated administration - 7,110 
Administration - - 90 

- 55,200 

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses $ - 
. $ - 

Schedule 26 - Sport and Recreation 

Year ended March 31, 2012, with comparative figures for 2011 

2012 2011 

Revenue: ‘

. 

Other income $ - $ 31.800 

Expenses: ~ 

Sports and recreation - 31.742 

Excess of revenue over expenses 
I 

S - $ 53
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METIS NATION -. SASKATCHEWAN SECRETARIAT INC. 
Schedule 27 - Health Director Initiative 

Year ended March 31, 2012, with comparative figures for 2011 

2012 201 1 

Revenue: 
Provincial funding $ 190,000 $ 90,000 

Expenses: 
Salary and benefits 

“ 

87,427 36,905 
Contractors 56.091 - 

Administration 20,448 7,500 
Office rent 8.216 13,434 
Travel 

’ 

5,399 7,293 
Professional fees 3,948 - 

Consulting 3,313 20,364 
Repairs and services 2,123 - 

Meetings 2,005 - 

Amortization 1 .249 - 

Allocated administration ' 637 5,500 
Offlce supplies 487 - 

191,343 90,996 

Deficiency of revenue over expenses $ (1 ,343) $ (996)
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METIS NATlON‘- SASKATCHEWAN SECRETARIAT INC. 
Schedule 28 - Health - Suicide Prevention 

Year ended March 31, 2012, with comparative figures for 2011 

2012 2011 

Revenue:
‘ 

Provincial funding $ - $ 300,000 

Expenses: . 

Consulting - 148,875 
Salary and benefits - 60.619 
Allocated administration - 30.000 
Travel 

' 

- 15,829 
Evaluation 

‘ 

- 14,948 
Office rent — 9,283 
Training and deveiopment - 6,355 
Equipment leasing - 5,780 
Office supplies - 3,393 
Telephone and Internet — 3,533 
Culturall ceremonial - 800 
Advertising and media awareness - 357 
Strategic planning_ - 

' 245 
- 300.017 

Deficiency of revenue over expenses $ - $ (17)
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METIS NATION - SASKATCHEWAN SECRETARIAT INC. 
Schedule 29 - Supplemental Schedule of Revenue and Expenditures for Funding Purposes 

Year ended March 31, 2012, with comparative figures for 2011 

Registry Engagement . 

Workplan and Implementation 
2012 2011 

Revenue (schedule 3) . S 117,771 $ 199,578 
Amortization of deferred contributions for equipment (30,830) (48,795) 

Revenue for funding purposes $ 86.941 $ 150,783 

Expenses (schedule 3) $ 118,068 $ 203,259 

Amortization expense (schedule 3) (31,127) (49,386) 

Expenditures for funding purposes $ 86,941 $ 153,873
, 

Schedule 30 - Supplemental Schedule of Revenue and Expenditures for Funding Purposes 

Year ended March 31, 2012, with comparative figures for 2011 

Generalogical and Historical 
2012 2011 

Revenue (schedule 23) $ 434,299 $ - 

Amortization of deferred contributions for equipment (4,641) - 

Amounts received and deferred related to purchase of 
equipment ~ 68,047 ~ 

Revenue for funding purposes $ 497.705 $ - 

Expenses (schedule 23) $ 451,557 $ - 

Capitalized equipment expenditurés 68,047 — 

Amortization expense (schedule 23) (4,641) - 

Expenditures for funding purposes $ 514,963 $ ~
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KPMG LLP 
’ 

Telephone . (306) 934-6200 
Oharferod Accountants - _' Fax . (306) 93445233

‘ 

500,- 475 Second Avenue South 
‘ 

Intemet w\I_v'\n/.kpmg.ca 

Saskatoon "Saskatchewan S7K 1P4 .

' 

Canada - 

INDEPENDENT AUDITVORSVREPORT 
To the me'r_n‘ber‘s' of Métis Nation - Saskatchewan Secretariat Inc. 
We have audited the accompanying financial ‘statements of Métis Nation - Saskatchewan Secretériat 
.lnc..'v{/hiAch comprise the statements of financial position as» at March 31, 2013, March 31, 2012 and - 

Apri! .1. 2011 and the statements of revenues and expenses, changes in nefassets, and cash flows for
' 

the years endedAMarch 31 , 2013 and March 31, 2012. and notes, comprising a summary of significant ' 

accounting policies and other explanatory information; 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Managemént is responsible’ for the ‘preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
, 
accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations, and for such internal 
control as.mar_1agement determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statementsthat 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

' 

. Auditors’/eespqnsibi/it;} V 

Our responsibility is to "express an opinion on these financial statements baséd on our:Qaudits._We 
b 

‘conducted _our audits in accbrdance with Canadian generally accepted. auditing standards.- Those 
‘ 

‘ 

. standards require that we -comply with ethical requirements and plan and perforrn an audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from materiarmisstatément. 

audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and ‘disclosures. -' 

inihe financial statements. The prbcedurés selecteddepend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether dueto fraud" or 4 

error. In making risk assessments, we consider internal control releyant to the entity's 

A 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to ‘design audit pfbcedures that 
are appropriate in the’ circumstancés. but not‘ for the purpose of expressirig an opinion on the 
‘effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used‘ and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as 

‘ 

- well as evaluating the overail preéentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis. 
' ’ 

for our audit opinion. 
‘ ‘ 

V
V 

Opinion 
I 

. In our opinion, the financial statements present féirly, in all material respécts, the financial position of
' 

Métis Nation - Saskatchewan Secretariat Inc. as at March 31 , 2013, March 31, -2012 and April 1, 2011 
and the results of its operations and its'cash flows’ for the yearsended March 31, 2013 and March 31, 
’2012»in accordance with Canadian accounting ‘standards for not-for-profit prganizations. 

_Chartere_c1 Accountants 

Saskatoon,’ Canada 
Au U84‘ 1 

- 3 KPMG LLP. is a Canadian lifnilnd Iiabmty partnership and a member firm of the KPMG . 

. 9 - network of Independent member firms affiliated with KPMG Intemaflonal Cooperafive’ 
» 

‘ ('KPMG lngemationaf). a Swiss entity. - 
‘ 

- 
. 

’ 

. 

‘
' 

KPMG Canada provides services to KPMG LLP.



~ Statements of Financial‘ Positi_6n - 

NATION - 

March 31, 2013, March 31,2012 and April 1, 2011 

_ 

March 31‘, March 31., April 1, 
‘ 2013‘ 2012 . 2011 

Assets 
Current assets: ' 

Cash (note'3) 
_ 

$ 498,060 $ 219,030 $ 559,647‘ 
Accounts receiva‘b|eV(n.0te 4) 659,549 ‘ 658,648. ' 412,664

_ 

Prepaid expenses and deposits 
’ 

. 
- ~ 11,632 - 

Due from related parties 
(ngte 5) 

_ 

. 
V 

I 

. 22 . 

_ 
176 

_ 
58,000 

4 

_’ 
' 

' 

V 

1,157,631 
‘ 

889,486 1,030,311 

Property and equipment (riote 6_) _ 
254,282 

' 

244.327- 
‘ 

216,684 

$. 
' 

1,411,913 $ _1,133',813;¥ ’$‘ -1,246,995. 

~Liat:)i_Iities and Net Assets (Deficiency) 
Curréntliabilitiesz 

. Accounts payable and 
‘ 

A 

I 
_

~ 

' 

accrued liabilities (‘note 7) . 
$ 1,250,475 S V 921,377 $ 760,801 

Due to related parties (note 8) 50.000 
‘ 

‘ 5.000 _. 82,755 
Deferred revenue (note 9) 

’ 

136.221 207.198. _ 
426,036 

A 

‘ 

1,436,696 . 
_ 1,133,575 4,269,592 

. 

. 

Due to related parties (note 8) 
_ 

. 100,000 - # 

. Deferred contributions for equipment (note 10) ‘ 146,850 136,134 103,558 

Net assets (deficiency) * — 

Op_enfating fund (379,065) (244,089)_ (239,281)
‘ 

Capital fund . _. _ .107~.,432' 108.193. 113.126 
’ 

' 
' 

' 

‘ (271,633) . (135,896) (126,155)- 
Nature of operations (hate 1) 
Contingency (note 13) 

1,411,913 $ £133,813 3; *1,246.99s



M|’=_T~|s NATiON mc. 
‘A 

-’ Statement of Rev'é_nue and Expenses 

Years ended March 31, 2013 ‘and 2012 

' 

A 
2013‘ ' 2012‘. 

Revenue (schedules 2 - 30) ’ 

' 

. 

- 
. j 

Federal funding $ 2,815,894 $ _2_,3.14,600 
Provincial funding 

_ 

— 

‘ 

_ 

994,341‘ 1,050,747 
Other 

_ 
. 32,903 I 8,359 

« 

' 
' 

3.843.138 
, 

3,373,705 

Expenses - Summary schedule of expenses
, 

(schedule 1) 
' 

3,978,875 3,383,447 

of revenue over expenses ~ $- (135',73_7) , $ 
‘ 

(9,741) 

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



‘ -Statement of Changes in Net Assets 

Years ended March 31. 2013 and-‘2o12 

2o13»» _'-. 2012 

‘ Operating Fund 

Balance, beginning of year 
' 

:5 (244,089) $ 
’ 

(239,281)
_ 

Deficieficy of revenue over expenéeé ‘ 
. . . (135,737) 

' 

(9,741) 
Transfer from capital fund for amortization 41,435 ' 40,404 4 

Transfer to capital fund for purchase of equipment (51,390) - .(68,047-) 
- Deferred contributions related to equipment_ V 

49,264 68,047 - 

‘Amortization of deferred c_ontribu'tions for equipment ' (38,548) (35,471) 
. 

Balance, ‘and 6f year . 

I 

A. ' 

V 

- 
A $ (379,065) $ 

H 

(244,089) 

. Capital fund 

Balance. beginning of year 
_ 

_ 
S 108,193 = $- 113,126 

‘Transfer to operating fund for’ amortization 
_ 

— (41,435) (40,404) 
. Transfer from operating fund for purchase of equipment , 

51 ,390’ ‘ 68,047 
' Deferred-contributions related to equipment (49,264) (68,047) 
Amortization of deferred contributions for equipment 38,548 35,471 

' 
- Balance, end of year . . 

' Q V 

. 

'$' 
- 107,432 $ 

' 108,193 

See accompanying notes to firiancial statements.



Years énded March,31, 2013 and 2012 

METIS NATION -SASKATCHEWAN SECRETARIAT 
Statefiaént of Cash Flows 

‘20‘i3. 
, 

A 

2012 

Cash flovys from (used in): 
‘ 

. Operations: . 

A A 
: . 

é 

- ~ 
' 

Deficiency of revenue over expenses ~ V 

‘ 

$ (135,737) ' 

‘ 

$ (9,741) 
Items not involving cash: . 

- 

.

- 

- Amortization] 
' 

, 41,435 . 40,404 
Amortization of "deferred contributions for . V 

' '
‘ 

' 

equip'n_1en_tf.‘ I 
' 

(38,548) (35,471) 
Change in non-cash operating working capital: '

_ 

Accounts receivable . 

' 

_ & 
(901) (245,984) 

Prepaid expenses ‘and deposits ~ 
' 

11.632 (11,632) 
Accounts payable and_ accrued liabilities 329,098 160,576 

~Due from related’-parties 
A 

. . .154 . 
. 

. (58,124) 
- Due to. related parties ‘ 

. 
V « 145,000 ' 

~ 38,193 
Deferred reve_nue ‘ 

' 

. 
. 

‘ (70,977) , (218,838) 
' 

' 
' 281,156 r(340,617) 

' 

Financing: .' 

4 
_ 

A 
b

_ 

Dgferred contributions for eqqipment ' 
A 

_ 
49,264 68,047 

lfivestingz 
- ‘ 

_ 

. . . 

. 

‘. V 

Purchase bf equipment (51,390) (68,047) 

Inckéége (decrease) in cash 
I 

4_ 
‘ ‘ 

279,030 ‘ '~(340,617) 

Cash, beginning ofyear 
" 

’ 

219,030 
‘ 

A 

559.647 

Cash‘, end of year 
' 

, 
_ A 

’ "s 4921050.‘ $ 4 

Cash consists of bank balance less outstanding 
cheques as follows: - 

, 
é

_ 

, 
Bank balances ' 

V 
679,178 $ 330,050 

_ 

Outstanding cheques , 
.- (181,118) (111,020) 

‘ 

$ 
V 

498,060 $ 
’ 

_ 219,030 

See accompanying notes to financial statéments.



- SASKATCHEWAN 
Notesfo .S_fatements' 

4 

March 31, 2013 and 2012 

- 

. Métis Nation - Saskatchewan Secretariat Inc. (the‘ 'fMétis Nation") is incorbéfifated __u~nder.thé7.N|'étié Act 
of Saskatchewan. The. Métis Nation's purpose is to undertake -‘activities that_s_trivé to recognize‘ the 

_ 
political," legal_an_d Tconstitutional rights or the Métis people-in’ Saskatchewan, 

'

. 

‘On Apru 1, 2011, the Métis ‘Nation adopted Can'adian AccountingStandérdsi.f§r‘Not§Fof-Profit 
Organizations in Parvtélll of the CICA Handbook, These ate the 'first-financial sgatements-prepared in’ ' 

accordance with Not-For-ProfitStand_ard_s. ~ 
' 

' 

. 
. 

‘ ‘ 
' ’ 

in’ accordance with the transitional. provisions in Not-For-Profit Standards, the Métis 
adopted the changes ,retrospective‘ly, -subject to,-certain exemptions allowed under these standards. 
The transition date i's~April 1, 2011 and an ‘comparative informationéprovjded has_—b§en presented by 

‘ 

; applying Not-For-Pr’ofit Standards. There were no adjustments arising on tfansitipn. 

1. Naturé of dpgrations: 
‘

. 

These financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, whiéh presumes that 
the Métis Nation will‘ continue in operation fora reasonable period of;time a'nd willrbe able to 

. realize its its liabilities in the normal course of operations. - - 

The Métis N'é1ior_1's' continuétion as a going concern is dependent ability tc_> -‘attain 

profitable opeiatiohs and obtaij1‘suffi<:_ient cash from external funding" to meet its |»iab.iIitie's and 
vco'mmi_tments‘. The outcome of these matters ‘cannot be determined at this time. ‘

‘ 

, 
‘These financial statements do notinclude any adjustments in the‘ Carrying values of assets and 

. liabilities, the reported deficiency of revenue over expenditures and the stateméntof financial. 7 

position classifications that would be necessary if the going concern ‘assumptions were not 
appropriate, should .the Méti's.N'ation‘ not be able to continue its normal course of business. 

'2'. Sighificant accounting policies: 

(a) Use of estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements requires management -tomake estimates. and . 

assumptions that affect thé _reported amounts of assets and liabilities ahd disclosure. df . 

contingent assets and "liabilities at thérdate of the financial statements and the reported 
amount of revenue and expensesduring the reportingperiodf Significant items ”subject'to « 

such estimates ‘and assumptions include estimatedhseful life of,propéi1,y,and equiprrie'nt,‘the ‘ 

V

1 

collectability of accounts receivable, the _estimates of deferred revenue and contingency. - 

_ 

'_
. 

Actual results could differ from‘ these estimates. 
' ' ‘

'

~



' 

Notes to Financial Stateh1ents« (continued) 

Yearsended March 31, 2013 and 2012 

b 

2. Significant accourifing poliE:ies(continued):_ 

(1)) Cash: 

Cash consists of balances with financial institutions which have ‘aunninitial term to maturity of 
three months or less. -

‘ 

(c_) Property and equipment: 

Property. énd equipment are stated at --cos‘t. _- Amortization is computed based uppn the- 
estimated useful Iives~of the'<-ziquipment. In the year of acquisition, one‘-half of the normal 
rate of amortization is used. No amortization on equipment is taken in the year of ‘disposal. 

' Amortization is provided using the following method and annual rates. 

Asset 
4 

_ _ 

. 

' 

‘ 
' 

_Mé_thod- 
_ 

V‘ Rate ‘ 

Equipment 
_ 

‘ Declining Balance’ 
I 

I 

20% 
_ 

Furniture . 
A 

-Declining,-Balance 
. 

~ 35% 
Computers. 

_ 

. x 
. 

' 

, 

« Declining Balance . 
_ 

50% ‘ 

.Contributidns'for equjpmeht purchases are deferred and amortized on‘ the same basis as the 
: 

assets to which. they relate; Amortization of deferred ‘contributions for equipment is included 
in revenue from federal funding sources.

’ 

(d) Revenue recdgnitionz 

The Nation follows the deferral method ‘of accounting for contributions. Externally 
' restricted contributions éije recognized as revenué in the year in which the related expenses 

. are incurred. Unrestricted contributions are recognized when received or‘ receivable if the 
amount to be receivedcan be reasohably estimated ‘and collection is reasonably assured. 

- Amounts receivable related to program fundirig are subject. to approval by funding agencies : 

‘and may change. A 

_ 

'
' 

‘ 

.(e) Accopnts payable and accrued liabilities: 

-Accounts payable and accrued liabilities are fecorded as incurred and when -t_he Métis 
Nation has a constructive obligation to‘ incur expenditures pursbuarit to the terms of funding" 
agreements- 5 

V

-
‘



L Mans . NATION sAs KATACH EWANS ; ; 
" 

Nqtes _fo‘Fina'n'cial_.Siafiements- '(_co'ntim.:ed)" 

'_ Yeafs énded March 31 ,'2o13_ ?.md_-"2012 

4 

4 

.2.‘ Significantaficbuhting policies (continued): 

(f)' Deferred‘revenué: ' 

‘ 

‘Deferred felates tofufids received in advance which relate it) the next fiscal year. 

(Q) -‘Accounting fo.r pr-ogram fictivities: 

The statement. bf finan_cia_l pkpsition énd the statements _of revenue éxnd expenses, changes in_ . 

, . net a'ss»e,ts*a'nd_ cash flbows are all prepared on a "combined basis. ‘Revenue and expenses
_ 

' 

related to administration activities and program delj\_/ery- are reported as follows: . . 

"A Ad_rmhist~ration 
‘I 

Registry.Engagem’ent Workplan and Implementation . 

'

- 

Métis Environment and»Resource Management Advisory Committee (MERMAC)
‘ 

' 

Bilateral Program - 

_ 

- 

' -' 

— Tripartitégsélf Governineint Program 
Basic Organization Capacity -Program 
Green Light-Program

" 

Harvesfing~Progra'm 
_ Eleotcjra|- Preparedness 

' 

Ma_nag'eme’nt of 'Méti_s Harvesting Rights 
Education Tésk Force - 

-

. 

Arbitration Appeals 
Child WeIfare'R_éview 
Children /Youth 
New ABoundary"Commission 

‘ .MNS Transition‘ _ 
. . . 

_. Harvestihg Negofiations 
Enyironment‘ 
Post Powley Component A 
Post Pomjléy Cornponent C 
Genealogical and, Histdrical 
Legislative Review 
Sport 8. Recreation" 
Health Directorslnitiative 
Health -._Suicide Prevention

V
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‘H 

V’ Notes"tq-'F.inah'¢izii..Sfafeménts¥(§ontlnuéd)
_ 

‘ 

' 

= ‘Years éhded Mar'c‘lA13'1-, 2013 and‘2012 

. 

‘ 

2.~ Signifigant accounting policiés (continued): 
V V I 

(h) Fina‘nciaIinst_rum:e’nts:. 

Financial instruments are ‘recorded at fai_r~value on initial reiyognition. Equity in_struments‘that»' 
. are bq;ioted~in'an’ac;tive market are supsequemly ‘measured at fairvalue. All other financial

_ 

instruments‘ are subsequently recorded at cost or amortized "9031; unless management has 
.' Velected to cariy the-instruments at fair~vaIu'e. -The‘ Métis Nation has hot eIected~tojcan_'y‘any 

' 

suchfinancial instrumedté at fair value... ’ ' 

‘ 
‘

' 

~Tra'nsaction. Costs ihcurred on the‘ - acquisition of finanbia! 
’ 

instruments measured 
_ 
subs}equentiy« at fair ‘\/al‘ue.are expensed as incurred, All other. financial. instruments are 
adjus.ted~b‘y transaction costs incurred on acquisition and ‘financinng "costs, which" are 
amortiz'ed~usingAthe straight"-line method. 

‘ 

- 

‘ ’ ' 

Financial assets are assessed .for impairment on an an'nual basis at the end of the fiscal, . 

year if there areindicators "of impairment. If there is-an indicator of impairment, the Métis
' 

Natiloh if ther'efis a significant adverse change in the expected amount or timing: ;

' 

of future 'cés'h' flows from the-financial~asset. .If there is a significanf adverse change in the 
expected cash flows, the carrying value or the financial asset is reduced to the highest of the 
present value’ of {he expected cash flows, th_e:amount’that could be realized from seiling the 

. financial asset or the amount the Métis Nation expects to re‘a|_i2e.by}exercising.its right "to any 
collateral. ~ If events arydcircumstances reverse in a future period, an impairmenfloss will be 

- reversed. to thelextent of the improvement. not exceeding the initialfcarrying’ value. 

.3. .Cash_: 

Cash cohsists of amounts on deposit with financial institutions less outstanding chequesjssued. 
The Métis Nati_oh has available a line ofjcredit-to the maximum amount of .$300,000’with" interest 
on any 9'utstanding- balances‘ at RQyal'Bank_prime plus 1.5%. The Métiés Nation also has available 

~ a $20,000 line ‘of credit st-:gcur'edIb_y'a Guaranteed lnvestment.Certificate held by Provincial Métis 
- Holdco Inc., a related party.~As at March 31,’ 2013, nd amounts were drawn uhder these credit . 

- facilities. ~ « 

’ 

.

' '



' Notes to Financial .Stateméntsv(cpntinued) 
M1’—:TIs NAT~|0N SASKATCHEWAN sEcRETARIAT7INc.~ 

Ff

1 

* Yearéénded March 31, 2013 and 2012 

4. Accdunts receivable: 

March 31_, 
'. 

AI\/Iar'ch.31, 
' " ‘April *1 

2013 .2012 
, 

2011 - 

Program funding and'other~ 
4 

' 

. 

$ 6'25~.'7"/2 $ 645,090 $: ‘ 

325,031 
Allowance for doubtful accounts 

' 

- (1-1,500) ‘ 
‘ 

(11,500) 
. 

A 

. 
33,777 ‘ ‘25.058 ' 99,133 

_$ . 
.'_659,'549~ $‘ ’_ 658.648 .$~ -$412,664 

'Ac,counfs receivable for prdgram funding include amounté related _to prior years_ and "current year"
I 

’ holdbacks. These amounts are subject to final approval. by funding agencies and amounts may 
change. 

_ 

~ 

7 
V 

' ' 

5. -Due from related parties: 

Amounts due" from BTB Festival Déys Inc. of $22 (2011 3- $52)-consist of expensespaid for BTB 
Festival Days lric.» _ 

. 

' 

; , 

. _Amounts due from Provincial Métis Holdco lnc'of Nil - (2011 -A $124) consist of expenses paid on 
behalf of Provincial Métis HoIdco.lnc. ' 

'
‘ 

Amounts due from BTB Festival Days Inc. and Provincial Métis Holdqo Inc. are non-interest 
bearing, unsecured and have no fixed terms of repayment. '



A 
V 

‘N.otes~fq Finan<_:ia1 Sfatements?(coi1tir_1ue_d)'_ 

‘‘ 7Ye‘ars‘'en_ded March 31, 2013 and‘2_O12_ 

6. Property and,equipfne'nt:- -

‘ 

- - 4 

. . Accumulated _Net'book 
March 31, 2013’, ~ 

, 
. 

b 

: 

‘ i 
, . ‘Cost amortization _ _. .va|ue . 

Land ‘ 

$ 99,405 $ 
_ 

- ‘ 

$ 99,405
_ 

Furniture v 
A 

‘ 

' 

_ 
_ 

. 

_ 
72,988 ' 60,678 ' 12,310- 

Equipment ‘ 

« 

V 

‘ 

. 
.202,969~ 157,430 45,539 

Computérs 
5 

A 

. 
_ 

_ 

- 

' 
’ 

' 

207,307 110,279’ 4 : 97.028 
'- 

V 

*3 ‘.'5a2,e59'$ 323,387 $_ 254,282
. 

V 

' 

. 
. 

- 
. "Accumulated Net book 

'-March 31,2012 . 

' 

. 
. 

_ 
, 

Cost amortization value 

‘Land 3 . 

" 
~ 7 ' 

‘ 
- $ 99,405 $ 

V 

- $ 93.405 
.‘ Equipment _. 

_ _ 202,969. 146,045 56,924 
-Furniture 

A 

’ 
A 

‘ 
‘ ~ ' 72.988 54,050 18,938 

_ 

Computers 
. 

: 
» 

’ 

155,918 86,858 A - 69,060 
I 

A ‘$ 
1 531,280 3$‘ r 286,953 $ -244,327,

> 

A 

. 

, 

~ 'AccQmuxa{ed Net.b_ook 
_‘ April 1, 2011 . _ _ 

. 
. 

V 
. 

' -Cost_ am_ortizationA 
V A 

value 

Léhd. 
" 

‘ 

‘ 

‘_.$ 
‘ 

99,405 $ - $ 99;4o5‘ 
Equipment . 1‘94,'552V 

' 

. _132,867 61,685 
Furniture . 

‘ 

_ 

- 

. 72.988 43,852 29136 
"Computers ' ' 96,288 59,830 

_ 
26,458 

$ 
' 

4'63-.233; ‘$ 2 2446,.5‘49’ $ ‘v_‘_‘216,6a4v

10



.N'otes't'o F»in4a“n‘cia4| siatéménts (éontinued)' 
H 

’ ‘H 

Year;s énded Marc'H31. 2013 and 2012 

. 

f Accounfs payable aynd aécfuned liabilities: . 

- The is,comri1itted.'to incur expehses for various prOgramé°in~future periods qtilizing 
unspent funding. These‘ c_:o.rnmitments have been‘ accrued ‘in 

March_31. 
V 

. 

—, 
March 

.. 

_ 

.ApriI1, 
. 2013 : 1 : 2012. .2011: 

A_ccour’1ts'.paya_l‘:I'e~ ] . 

’ 

$ 466,462 I 

Vs 
- 570231 _ 

$- - 

_ 

55.403 
Accrued liabilities; 

‘ 

- 784,013 ; 35.1,1_16 . 

, 705,398 
‘ 

4 4 

~ 41,250,475 . 2 

' 

-921.377 . 766,801 7 

. As'at MarCh"31:,V.2012. "the |\‘/létvis Nati.oAnA hascomlmittedv t_O.«in'cur 4e-xper.1ses fbr variéus programs 
J j subsequent tqsyear énd in order to ‘fully utilize the 'c_urrent~yéar _fu_nding. Commitménts totaling 

' 

$746,510 have been Jaccrued‘ .for.in the current year‘ and are refiegited in‘ the statement of 
‘revenue andexpe'n’s,es and Corfesponding schedules. 

' 

. 
8.V ‘ Due to reiated_parties_:

_ 

: Amounts due’to "Provincial Métis Holdco Inc. of $150,000 relate to an. advance made for.th_e — 

.' 

; purposes of assistihg with ih.e"Métis7NatiOn elections. This advance is secured by a "non-interest ~ 

bearing demand ‘promissory note toberepaid to‘ Provincial'Métis_.HoId'cO Inc. ‘in annual payménts~ 
- of $50,000,over- the next three years. The ad_va_nce.'was coriditiorial on;th‘e Office of the Federal -‘ 

. confiiming >a»$200,0'00 contributionio the election (s'che’duVle 10): 
‘ 

'

V 

' .11



' 

Notes" t'q-Fina"ncial_ statement; '(¢oi1tinued)’ 
A - 

Years ended March 3'1,"2o13 §§d_2o12 

’~ 
» 

Defe_rred reye'nhé:'_ 

Déferred ,revehue i's.comp'rise4d,o,f the following: 

»Maf¢h.31, .'March.31,' "'A_pru.1," 
2013. ;;__'_2_o12 -- 20.11 

‘ 

Health Directorlnitiative 201.2/24013 ~ 

. 
$- 

, 
38,079 $ 

‘ -' $ 1 A 

.- »
- 

' ‘Education Task Force . 
. . 

. 

V 

. 
» - 33,070 ' 

. 

' - -

V 

MERMAC_ « 

A 

‘_ 
. 

_ 

4 30,304. _'54,198 - V - 
- -‘ 

,Legi_s|ative‘Rev_ie’w . . . h‘ - 18,767 ‘ 

' -.- — - 
-‘ 

_ 

~ * 

Management ofMétis-Harves1ing'Rights - 

_ 

7 ~13,552* ’ - 
. 85,292~ ; 

. Green Light Program ‘ " * 

3 
' 

' 
A 

. 2,449 - ~ 

‘

- 

Health -ISuicide Prevention 20.12/2013 
‘

- 
_ . 

fl 148,000 - 

Sports and Recreation 4 

. 

' 

' 

- 5,000. - - 

Health-DirejctorInitiative 201,1/2012 - 

A 

. - T '- 
_ 

_' 1_60,000. 
A ‘ 

Harvesting Negotiations - ~ — - ~ 

' -- . 150,744 
*Hea|thADirectorInitiative 2o.1_o/2o'1'1* T 

_ 

- 
. 

- ‘3o.ooo 

_ 
$ ‘.1'36_,221f$'-_ 207,198 $ .42.6.cA>_36.~" 

12~



Notes to (continued) 

AMETIS NATION 

Years ~énded March. 31 ,‘2o13 and 2012 

11. 

' _1.0. ‘Deferred contribuiioris for equipment: 

‘Accumulated’ — 

_ 

Nét book 
March 31,2013 Cost amortization 

' value ' 

Equipment 
. $ 99,215 $ 57,305 ‘$ 

— - 41,§10 
_Furniture 

‘ 68,664 -56,991 ' '1'1.673 
Computers 182,447 89,180’ - 93,267 

Vs ' 

3~5o»,326- $. 203,476 '$ -446.850 

- Accumulated 
' 

~ Net book 
March 31:, 2012 Cost amortization value 

Equipment . “ $ 99,215 5 46,827 $‘ 52,388- 
. Furniture ‘ 68,664 50,705 17,959 
Computers’ 133,183 67,396 _’65,787 

$ ’301,062 $C~164,928. $:."136;’134. 

- Accumulated ‘ Netbook 
Apri| 1,2011 Cost amortization‘ . 

_ 
value . 

Equipment .$ 90,798 $ 34,783 s 
V 

56,015 
Furniture 

' 68,664 ' 41,035 27,629 
Computers 73,553 53,639 19,914 

$ ~12’9.'457 $ 103,558 '$ 
. 233,015 I 

Related party transactions; 

During the year the Métis Nationincurred rent expense of $210,025 (20i2 - $160,684) to. 
Provincial Métis Holdco Inc., an organization with which it" is related through commonbqard‘ ' 

members. This rent represents amounts agreed between the related parties. Amounts due from 
(td) BTB Festival Days _l'nc. consist of accounts receivable _of $22 (2012- $52).énd is‘non-interest" 
bearing, unsecured and has" no fixed terms of repayment. - Amounts due ‘to Provinciai Métis 

’ 

Holdco in the amount‘of $150,000" (2012 - receivable of $124) are bearing", secured 
by ’a demand “promissory note to be’ paid in annual payments of $50,000 over the nexfthree years 
(note 8). 

' 

. 

' ‘

' 

13.



sEcRETARiATINc.: 
Notes to 'Financia'i Statements (continued) 

Years’ ended March.31, 201.3 and -2012 

V12._ financial instruments and rjisk managerherit: 

The‘ Métis Nation, through its financial assets and |iabilifie_s, ‘has exposure to the following risks’ 
from its use of financial instruments: ‘ 

' 

Credit risk 

The Métis Nation's principa|'finan_ciaiI asset is" accounts receivable,‘ which‘ is subject to credit risk. 
The carfying amount of this financial asset» on the statemerit of financial position represent the 
Métis Nationfsmaximum credit'e'xposure.at March 31,, 2013; The amounts disclosed in the 

>statement_of ‘financial position are- nefof allowance for doubtful accounts, estimated by 
management-of the'Métis Nation based on previous experience_ andits assessmentof the current 
economic environment. 

‘ ' ' 
' 

- 

'

' 

Interest rate risk 

Interest-bearingAbankV indebtedness which may arise 'has.limited exposure to interest rate risk due 
‘to it's short-'terrn.matu‘riAty.

’ 

Liquidity risk 

The Métis Nation‘s objective isfto have sufficient liquidity. to meets its liabilities when due. The
’ 

Métis Nation mqnitors its cash balances and cash flows generated from operations to meet its 
requirements. As ‘of March 31. 2013,’ the most‘si_gn'ificant financia! liabilities are: accounts 
payabie and accrued liabilities and due to related parties. ‘ 

Fair values 

The’ fair values of cash, accounts receivable and accounts payable and accruedliabilities 
approximate their carryirig value due’ to their short-term period to maturity. The.fair value of‘ 

amounts due from BTB,Festi’vé| Days |nc., due from (to) Provincial Métis Holdco Inc. and due to . 

BTB Festival Days Inc. alt related parties. are not determinable due to the non-arm‘s«léngth of the 
relationships betweenthe parties; ' 

b

' 

- -.13. (;ontingency: 

/.\v claim was filed in 2011 by a «former employee againét the Métis Nation alleging wrongful 
dismissal. A statement of defence was filed in 2012. The Métis Nation has made an accrual to 
reflect the estimated maximum "exposure to this claim. .' 

. 14. Comparative figuresi 

~C_ertain comparative ‘figures have been reclassified to conform‘ with the finahcial statement 
"presentation adopted in the_ current year. ‘

14



Schedule 1 - bS'um‘ma'ry-Suchedule of Expenses 

Years ended Mérc'n31«, 2o'13 ah¢~2o12 - 

V2013. ‘ 2012"-" 

. Salaries "and benefits 
. 

& 

’ 

$ 1,815,699 .$ 1,748,771 
’ 

- Administration I 

' 
' 

' 
- 

' 

. 299,685 
‘ ' 

212,574‘ 
_ Professional fees. ‘ 

A ._ . f 
‘ 

. 252,807 V 

' 152,064 - 

Meetings ‘ 

' ' 

- 234,255 
V 

~ 
A '_229;832' ’ 

Consulting -' 
' 

» I 185,213 - A 5,000 
3 Election . 

A 

- 

_ 

' 

177.647 26.457‘
. 

Financial services . 

' 

. 

' 
' 

. 162-.113 ' 

V 

» 158.897_
V 

Travei 
' 

. 

b 

‘ ' 

. . 

‘ ' 

- 155.218 — 142,213» 
' Audit and legal fees 

‘ 

' 

87,400 ’ ' ' 

_ _ 

84,513 A

. 

‘ 

- 

. Métis_Nation‘ Legislative Assembly 87.338 _ 

» 

~ 

5,000. j 
Contractors 

' ‘ 

’ _83,218' ' 244,278 
- Communication : 

‘ 

_ V 

~ 
' 

’ 

. 
* 57,779 

‘ 
‘ 

A 

‘725 A 

_ 

_Tr_ai_ning and development ~ 

’ 

‘ 

48,949; 33,798 
' Office rent (net of direct allocations) ‘ 

‘ 

46,002 < 

' 

_ 
35,475 

. Reference materials ' 

; 
‘- 

V 

~45,8‘17 
_ 

- 

' 

~ 64,215 . 

_ 

Amortization‘ . 3 
. 

_ 

_ 

. 41,435‘ 
g 

. 

‘ 

v4o;4o4~ 
‘Advertising . .V 1 

. . 

‘ 

. 

, 

-41,ooo ' 31,446 
g - Annualgeneral assembly _ 

— 32,838 14,141 
' 

. . :

~ 

' 

3 .Technical support. 
' 

“ . 
, 

- 
— 

; 28.694 43,629 _-
~ 

Printing and postage ‘ 

V 

28,269 ' .48,401 
Strategic planning ~ 

- 
. 21;6_58- I - — 

. . Spo'rts~and'recreation' _' ~ 

. 
. 19,132 ‘- 

_ 
Telephone and internet . 

_ 

10,841 2_0,_171 
. Funding repayments ' 

» 

’ 
. 

_ 
10,833 ’ 

. ..- ' 

‘ 

Officeéupplies -V . 

"I ’ 

. _ 10.445 
‘ 

' 

~ 4,532 _
A 

. -Repairs and services". 
_ 

_ 
. 

‘ .2,243 
_ A 

. 

~ 26.982; . 

Bank c_ha‘rge's and interest ' ' 

. 21,116‘ ‘ 2,284 ‘ 

.

» 

Insurance . 

' 

' 

» 
. 

' 

_ 
4 1,500 : 2,(_)56f_ - 

Equipment leasing j 531 . 3,150 
Centrai registry enhancement V 

- . 9,786 
Storage ’ 

' 

A 

V 

' - -- 2,284 
_ 

VC_é-remonial 
_ 

' 

, 

' 

; ‘ .. 
. 

' 369 ' 

' 
' Goods and services tax (recovery) - - (10,000) 
Récovery of holdbacks receivable - (11,500) 

' 

» - 

.$ - 3,978,875 ‘_ $. .3,38.3,'447, . 

.15
.



_ 

Schedule 2 -_-Adrn‘ini'stAration 
’ 

’ 

Ye_ars‘ended Marcr.I4f_3A1,.20'1f3and,2()'12
_ 

‘ 

‘ 

.» Administration expense"s:'
_ 

; -x2013 4) * _éo12A~'~;_,'V 

Ruevénue-‘othe'r~" -» I. 
' 

* ' 

. $ _9,293 
'- "$ 

. 

~8’,:.s59' 

A Electioh‘ 
. 

. x » 

, _ 171,146 . 26,457 ' 

_Funding repayments » 

_ _ 

' 

A 

‘ ‘V 
»_ 210,833 -. — 

. , - T 

Office rent ~ : 
A 

s 
_ 

‘ 

_ 9,580 
_ 

. 1,933 '_ 

.-Amortization . ;' 
, . 

_ 

. 

_ 

“ 1,164 - - 1,888’ 
‘ Bank charges and interest ‘ 

, fl ' ’ 

- 

' 616 » 

. 

' 

(249) 
. ~Communications_ . . 

* 

_ 

' 

A 

' 218 ' 

-b 
j (13,114)' 

Administrationi. ~ 

_ V94 ‘ -»
. 

Financial services ; 
A 

_ 
. 

_ 

' 

- -z - ’ 43,516‘ 
~ Printing and postage " 

_ 

V 

' ' 

. 
- 

. 2,364 
‘.Storage ‘ 

. , 
- '. A 

_ 

'. 
4 V 

_ 

- 2,284 

: Profeésiona! ser:vice'sA:4 A 

Salaries and contracltédé seurvicesi :

‘ 

Meetings: 
_ 

" 7 ' 

_' 
, , 

' ' 

, 
. 

' 

7 , 
. 791 

‘Advertising ~‘ '- ‘_ 
I 

7 

_ 

_- . 

.' ~ 

' - 
b 

500 
«Office' supplies" . . 

- 

. 

- 

_ 

. 

‘ 

- 

. 
- "V 

« 

‘ 457 
V 

_.Ceremonia| , , 
. 

4 

« . I 
‘ 

. 
. . 

- 

4 
. 

- 
' 

. 

. _ 

-» 
A 

369 . 

Goods and,services,tax,(recovery) 
' 

. 

-’ 
' 

_ . (10,000) » 

Insurance » 4 

' “ ‘ 

» 

' 
‘ ‘ ' - 3 ' 

A 

' 

1953.651" - ~57.196" 

gggal ahd professional fees ‘ 

.. 
' 

4,718 
‘ 

34.899"- 
‘ 

« ~ ‘ ' 
’ 

'4,71-8~' 
‘ 

34,899 

.A ‘Executive and-‘chiéfexecutiveofficér 
V 

7 
I 

I 

. 
- 19,618 

_ 

Travel: . 

OthérW ,_ 
" 

- _. 1,063" 
5 

~ ' 20,681" 

“other ‘_ 

_ 

. 

' 

. 

b 

- 

' 

2;79o. 
' 

- .667‘? 
Executive : 

’ 

v 

. 
. f , 

' 

. 

' 

. . 

A 

' 

6.418‘ 
, 

. . 
. , 

-
. 

* 4 

‘ 
‘ 

' 
' 

‘ 

9.208 
’ 

‘ —- 

Recovery bf holdbacks receivable 
. 

. , (11,500) . 

'- 
I 

5 
_ 

~Tot_a| expenses
‘ 

196.077‘ " 

113,443 
‘

A 

Defic'§en’c'y;of revenue_b\.(ér expenses,be_fofe 
> 

. 
. 

. .- V‘ 
' 

allocated administration‘ 
‘ 

‘ 

_ 
_ 

~ '_ 
$_ I (186,784) $ (105,084), 

A 

Aillocg-xtédadministfation ' 

— 
. 

3 
‘ 123,396 

' ' 

124,493 
. Excess (deficiency) obf-‘r_e\_/ehue <»Jv_er‘expens_es_ 

‘ 

- _ - ~(63,388) 
‘ 

19,409
' 

16'



Mérusow - sAs KATCHEWANSERETARIAT‘I 
schedule -,Regi‘stry?Engagemen’t'Workplvan and 'lmplemehtatiqn 

. 

V 

:Yea,rs"ende_d .Mafch~31; 2oV13 and 2012 

2o13'.".' 
. 

.' : 20127
' 

Federal funding;in'cluding amortizatioh 'of deferred ‘

A 

' 

_ 
contributions for_equip‘ment‘of $20,22.7,(20'12'-' . 

-- : 
' 

. 

. . 

. 

-
- 

-$30,830) - A 
. » 

, A $9 20,227 $ 117,771 _.

‘ 

Expenses: - ‘_ « 

. . . g . 

‘ 

' 

~ 
. 3 

_ 
Amortization 

V 

I - 

. 

- 
- 20,630’ ‘ 

4 
, 

31.127‘ 
- Contractors . . 

- ». - 

' ‘ 
‘ 

-_- . I . 45.641 . 

salaries and benefits - 

_ 

. . 

_ 
b 

‘ 

-' L I, 
’ * _'15,67.7-' 

-'
- 

Allocated administration ‘ 9 
_. , 

' - _'.' 
. I ~ 10,720_ 5 

Travel. ‘ 

_ 

~ _' . 
. 

. 
. 

- 
, 6.000- 

Consulting 
' 

_ 

‘ 

, 

- 

A 

- 

. 

' 

_ 

- - 

‘ ‘ 

_« 5,000 
Printing and postage ‘ ' ‘ 

V 

. 
’ ' 

' 
‘ - 

. 
: 

3,124’ — 

” 

‘Administration 
‘ 

,- - 

. 
J 

’ 

_ 

' 

- 
" 

. .-. 
' 

-. _'/79 . . 

' 

» 

‘ ‘A ’ V v 
' ’ 

V. 20.630 . 

.. .4A18,;063. 

’-‘I.»DefiCiéfiCy~Qf_Fé§IeflU6 
V 

5 
" 

_ 

»V (‘403)~.- ’ 

_ 

‘(‘2‘9Z) 
. 

'~ 

~SeVe _Schedu|e 27 -’Supp|:er.nenta| _Sc~hedule bf F§_e.\_/enues and Expendituresfor Funding Pbrboseé . 
A

’ 

'_Schedule 4 - MERM_A_c 

‘vearé ended ~Nla:rch 3~1, 2o13~and 2012» - 

‘ ~2o13« I 2012” 

~PAr‘ovinci‘a_| funding 
' 

‘ 
' V$' -23,894" . $ "5.8o3_-~ 

Expense: . 
_- 

_

- 

' 

, 
Salariesand benefits , 

. 

~ 

‘ 

« 
4 8,260 A » 4,130 

' 

_ 
Consulting ' ' ' 

. 

' 
V 

' 

{ _ 5,686 . 238;‘ ~ 

Travel » 
- 

' 

V 
_ 

5,431 ' -
_ 

Telephone. _' . 

‘ 
- 

' 
‘ 

. 
3,379 A - 

"Printing an'd‘postage . 

V 

' 

V 

"690 A 

.

- 
‘- Office supplies 3 - 

_ 

. 

‘ '448 ‘ 

.- 
-' ' Advertising . 

- 

' 

. 
_ 

- 

, 

- A .-.~ « 

‘ 1,435 
- 

‘ 

- 

’ 

' ‘ ‘ - 
' 

23,394 ~ "V . 5.803 

~E‘x_cess‘of_revenu'e’overexpenses._' H 
_ 

. 
» 

' ~$ _ 

"-~ 

'~"Defer_red~ revenue. related to‘ .lV|‘E‘R|.\/IAC for the year ended :l\,/lar;:'.h 31, 20.13" is $30,304‘ (2012 
. 

7 
’ 3' 

_~$5.4,198)._7See’no_te 9 -’ Deferred revenue. 

17’
.



NATION INC? 
."S~¢hé'duIe 5 _- Bilateral Program 

V 
‘ 

- V 

. 

’ 

Yéarsl ended M§r¢n'31',_ and 2.012" 

2513.‘ 
' 

2012‘-» 
‘ 'Pr~ovinci'a|fundAing, ‘_ 

,~ 
_ 

' 

. $ 
‘ 

100,000’ $ 
‘ 

92,352 

Expenses: - 

, 
» « 

‘

' 

« vSalarie,s,ahd benefits . 
-_ 

' 

— 

. 

. 38,000 . 

~ 

’ 

2.1.660 
' 

’ 

Tfavel ._’ W I 
, 

17,000 21,791 ' 

Firiancialsewices‘ _ 
. 

. . 
. . 8,729‘ 

‘ 

* 
-. 3,103 

Telephone . 
» V 

g 

" 
A 

’ 

7,390 
’ 

’ 8,317 
Office rent . 

V » 
A 

A 
' 

- 6,670 
_ 

4,267 
V 

Printing and postage 
_ V 

~ 
- 

_ 
5,540 - 14,410" 

- 

_ 
Advertis_ing 

_ 

i 

- V" 
‘ 

. 5,000. . 908 
, AC'om‘mu.nications~f 

V 

: 
_ 

‘ ' ‘ 

' 3,115 -- 

Meetjngs ' ' 
' 

- 

' 
' 

‘ 

_ V 

. 2,642 . 44,586 .4 

-- xOffic'e_s_upp|ies 
' 

_ 

. I 
‘ ‘ 

' 7 - 

. '2,500 ' 
' 

1.58.1 
V 
"Ba'nk*charges and interest . 

é 

- — 2,533 
2 

- Jnsurance . 

‘ ‘ 

D 

_ 

A - 

" 1,500 » 

' ' 

I 
2,056» - 

‘.Legal— - 

. 

—j ' 

__ . 

> 
800 . 

-.. 
Technical support~ A ’ 

. 

' 

. 

’ 

_ 
. 

_ . 236 1 

‘ ‘ 
' 

‘ ‘ '— ‘ ‘ 

102,662 
' 

A 

92,352_ 
H‘ 

-V Deficie,n"cy._ofrevénu’e overyéuaipéensés» 
4 

" 
I 

$~ »_ (2,662) 
. 

- $ 
V 

-D
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M Ens NATION SASKATCHEWAN sE¢R:ETAR|AT =IN(2.i 
= Scheduleufi -'-Tr'ipartite'S'elf Gdvérnmént Program ' 

Yea'rs~ended March“31 .2013 and 2012 
' 20.1-3 2012 

Revenue: . 

' 

' " 
' 

‘ 

. , 

' '_ ..‘ 
Provinciai funding _. $ 282,8,’/5‘ 

' $ 285.000 
Federal fundinL ' ' 

' 

, 
. 282,87-5_ - 

' ' 285.000 
' 

" 
’ - - 565,750 

' 

. 570.000 

Expensé: b’ 
: V 

'

. 

Salaries andbenefits ' 199,082 
I 

263,999 " 

Prbfessional conéfilting 'contfac_ts: . 

I

- 

Contractors . 

' 59,108 - 

Financial services 
' 

_ 

46,200_ 46,964 
Legal 

. A 

15,000 ' 13.541 
Audit. accounting and business services A 

. . 
- 12,750. _ 

' 

. . 6.000 
- r 

’ 
‘ 

- 

' 

133,058 = 
> 

. 66,505 

Travel. meetingsand printing: . 

- 

'

. 

Meetings ' ' ' 76,829 36,475
, 

Consulting 
_ 

V 

. 

~ - 50,000 ' 32,987 . 

Travel - 

. 

' 

. 

‘ 

A 
9.000. 

' - 
' 

V 

- 
‘ 

' 
' 135,829 A 

’ 

69;462 

Administration:
1 

Administration fee - 

. 46,167 
‘ 

_» 
_ 
41,362 . 

Allocated ‘administration A 

. .28.610 . 

- 32,986 ' 

' 

' ‘ ‘ 

' ' 

74.777. « 74,348 

Other expenses: ' 

V 

- - 

Newsletter 
V 

"A 
_ 

8,500 . 10,148 
‘Repairs and services .7750 12,600 
Training’ and development ' 

6.642 10,528 
Constitutional and legislative workshops . 

1' 

' 

64,823 
V‘ 

V 22,892 
' 

. 98;099 

Amortization _ _ 

A 

.. 
-‘ 

496 990 ,.
. 

' 

- 

' 566,134" 
’ 

573,403 .

' 

Deficiency of revenue over expenses _- $ 4(~384.)- 
_ . 

_'(3,40d) 

Se_e échedule 28 L~S_upp|emental Schedule of Revenue and Expenditures» for Funding Purposes
_ 
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E:WAN VINC. 
'Sché‘dul'e 7- Basic Qrgarjizational_»Capaciiy Program -

b 

' 

~YearsAen'ded MVa.rch»31,201A3‘ a'nd2b12 

~,'2o13- g;2o'12_‘ 

‘- 

VFe‘d‘e‘ra‘l.funding 
_ 

‘ 

. 

v $‘' 460.000 
" 

V$ ~’_4so,ooo’ 

'_ Expensesi.» 
V 

» 

_ 

. 

v 

_ 

V » 

.

_ 

-Executive 
' 

, 
- 

: 308.077 V 310,000 
A 

: Salaries‘ ' 

j 
' 

. 
. 

' 

4 

75,203 . 
. 

. 

V - 52,185 
‘ 

.Meetings .' 

_ 

~ 

‘ 

57,176 
» 

_ 
A 

-- 
Benefits - 

’ ‘ 

- 

‘ 

- 
. . 20,170 ‘ 76,059 

Financial services’ 
‘ 

» 

' 

. 
» 

. 
_ 

-- X 22,021 ~ 

A 

- 

' 

460,626 460.265 
‘‘ 

‘Deficiency of revenube—over"e)‘(penses 
‘ 

.4 

I I 

$~ - (525), f 

-A 
5 " Q55)‘ «. 

Svchedusle‘ 8 - Green fligfit Program 

Ye‘e.1rs'e:hde~d' March_ 3'1,'2'd13 ahd 2012 

' 

;'.2o'13- " ' 

2012 
. 

, 

‘ 

$ 110,613 '$_ 
‘ -' 

Expensei - - 

A 

A 

'

» 

Salaries and benefits 
’ 

37,574 ' - 

Admihistrafion 
A 

> ‘ $29,964 .
- 

Community consultations 
‘ 

' 

« 11,377 ' 

‘ 

- — 

.EvaIuation 
" ' 

' 

. 

_ 

' 

. 

‘ 

A 
8,590 — 

Communication and dissemihation ' 

_ 
8.109 

‘ _

- 
~ 1Traihihgandvdevelopment .. ‘ 6,457 .

- 

Office supp|ies§_ 
‘ 

' 

~ 
' ' 

. 
6,349 — 

‘Travel 
. 

- 

. 

' 

2.1.93 . . . 

.- 
‘ 

-- 

' ‘ 110,613’ - — 

Exces‘s.of'_rev‘enue over" expenses 
> 

. 
A 

A 
$ - 

_ _ 
$ -‘ 

V 

I Deferréd revenue related, 16 Green Light Program for theyear ended March‘31, 2013 is $2,449 (2012 - $A _ni|). 
'S’ee~note Deferred revenue. A

' 
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~$che_dule - I.-larvesthinbg‘ Pfogram 
M ETlSi-NATIDN‘ - f 

. 

‘A 
‘H 

_-'Ye»ars‘e'nd'ed_March_ 2012 

f 
’ 

-' -'2o13~- ’ 

_ ‘2o12.~.~ 
I 

‘A 

. 

V’ ’_ 
H 

I 
‘ 

- $ ~ -. “49;50(')__' “ 
V. 

$ . 49,506 
' 

Ex"p_er‘1ses:V 

A 

ADefi¢ien¢y‘of,—‘reve'nu_éVoyés;-expenfiés‘ 
H 

_ I _ 

$«‘- ' 

- (224) & 

- '$,. 
_ 

-(1.~‘i39) 

V 

Consulting . 
. : 

' 

. 

_ 
, 

‘ ' 
‘ 46,478 , 

*4’/;633'
' 

Administration- 
_ 

” 
_ 

‘ 

. 
3,246" ' ' 

« 

_ 

, 214 
Allocated administration . U ~ -.'_ - 2,792 

‘ 
' 

‘ 
' 

- 

,_ .49;724, 
‘ ‘ 

- Q-"5o,6V39 

‘-Schledule 10'- Elécforfil Preparedness 

‘_ 

' 

Ye.:«_1Ar_s_e:r,1ded March 31, 201’3‘and_ 2012 
’ 

__‘2:o~1‘3~.~' f2o12~ 
In 

-‘ «'Fede‘ral.fun’ding . 

‘ 

' 

, 

' 

. -$ 200,675’ 
' 

'5 ‘-62,273" 

' 

.~ Expenses: "
I 

. -Professional fees - 

_ 

. j . 

' 

1'83;-00«0 ' —_ A

. 

. Administration . 

' 
' 

A 

~ 26,175 ' 8,123 I «. 

Travel 
' 

. 

“ 4 

. 
» 16,000 ' ’ ‘ 

. 6,959 ' 

Communication . . 

' 

A 

16,000 ' 
' - ' 

Election 
' 

‘ ' ' 

_- 

_ 

' 

H 

- 6;500 
A 

- -'
_ 

' Coritractors - 

I 

, 

'-' 
. 

~ 36,000’ 
‘Meetings ' 

_ 

. . 

' 

« H . « 
» - 

‘ 

4, -5,000 
Salaries’and-benefits 

_ 

- ‘ ' 

3,1A50_ 
Advertising . . 

b _ 

- 
' 

- -2,500 -. 

Printing and postage 
’ ’ 

- 

. 
_ 

I 
' 

; 7 . . . . 2,500 
‘ 

7 “ - 

’ -247,675 ' 

f 64,232 

[ .$L 
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‘ 

Schedule 11,-" M'a~r|a.ge'rn¢’nt_-of Mé_t’is Harvesting‘ Rights
‘ 

‘X -Year.eVn‘ded March 31, 2013 and 2012
_ 

2013‘ 
’ 

.2012
" 

-I-Fedéraufimaeng-' ‘ 

. 

' 

$ : 

' 

11573 
‘ 

s '32.9b1e 

~.E'x'pe_nse's:‘ 
V 

- . . 
. 

- 

' 
V 

‘ ’ 

.

- 

‘Salaries and_benefifs_ ' 
- 

- » 9.863 ‘ 6,120 
. ‘Administration .. V 

V W - 

A 1,710 . 

_ 

1,053 
» 

A , Central registry‘ en'ha_ncement 
A _ 

4 - 9,786 
3 Meetings _' I 

A 
_ 

V 

- 

; 
' 

_ 

‘ v- 7,630 
‘Travel ‘ 

- 
' 

. 
4 

. __ A- 4,280’ ~

‘ 

' 

Allocated administration 
_ 

_’ 
. 

. 
. ._ 

‘ -- 
b. 3 

' 4.047 
... 

V ; 
.. ‘ ‘ _f 11,573‘ '_ 

_ 32,916
' 

_E_xcess‘_<‘>fVrevenué oyer_expens9s_ » 

. ,_ V" 5 
‘ 

~- 
A 

b 

$. ‘- -~ . 

" 
. Deferréd revenuue related to Managément of"|\/létis, Harvesting Rights Pro.gr.a’m.for thé year ended March 31:; 2013 is 
$13552 (2012 -,$ 'ni|_). See note:9. -Deferred re'ven_ue.» 

Sc.h.edu~le 12 _- Ecyucationrask AFVo'rcé 
’ 

I Year ended Marcn~3i_;~2'o13 and. 2012 
’ 

2012 
‘ 

4 

‘ Provincial funding . 

4 

_' 

. 

' 

' $- - 116,930 _$ - 

~Exp.éns'es: 
_ 

'_ _- V 

' _ _ 

« 

H 
' 

_. _ 

. Salaries and benefits 
_ . _ 

~ 

. . 51,585 ’ 

,

- 

> 
- 

- Meetings and workshops 
. _ 

‘ 
' 

_ 
21,729. 

V

- 

. Administration fee . 

' 

19,501 - 

'

- 
" -‘ Office rent 

_ 
1 

. 

" 

' 

A 16.981 ‘ - 

Travel ,» 
. 

_ 

’ ’ 

- 

4 - 

' 

« 5,295 
‘ 

’ - - 

‘Professional fees » ., 
A _ 

. . 

' 956 
» 

‘ - 

4 
Office_suppI_ies 

' 

. 

_ 
. 

‘ 847 ~ 

.

~ 

: 

Communication. 
' 

. 
. 

- 208 
. 

. - 

' — 
' 

’ 

b 

' ..1>17,1o2_ 
‘

- 
' 

D4ef'gci‘en_cy’of;r‘e've_nue over,expeh‘se's 
_ 

' 
' 

I 
' 

' 

$ 
I I 

(172) ~ 

. 

‘ 

V 

V '.' 

Déferred revenue.re|éteci to Education Task Fofce forthe year’ ended March 31, 2013 is $33,070 (2o1'2 - $ nu).
’ 

I‘ "See 
_ 

' 

_

. 
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»NATl~ONj- SASKATCHEWAN INC; 
Schedule 13 - Arbifration Appeais 

. 

' 

March_.31,"2o13 and_éo1'2 

- .2o1_3-. 
_ 

2612 

. 

‘ 

a $ $~ ~ 27,888. 
'

A 

A 

Expenses: . 

- ‘ 
. 

. 

I 

, 

I

- 

_ 

Training and development 
’ 

- ‘ 15,250 
, 
‘Professional fees 

' 

. , .- . 

H 

6.000 
_ 

Allocated administiation 
A 

_- - 3.613 
fTravel . 

' 

- 

' 
- -. 

~ 3.000 " ' 

Administration . : , 
. 

‘ 
v 

. 

‘ 

_ 
-. 

, 25 ' 

‘ 

‘ — 

' 

"' 
~e_ 27,888 

.Ex6e.ss of revenue oyVer;expense‘s~ - 

4 

_ 

'~- 
' 

4 

’ $ 
' 

V‘ 
4' $ 

. 
_ 

-
» 

' Séhedule 14 -'chIIVd Welfare Review 

. Years ehdedlmarchfii, 20‘13,and 2012 

"2b1'3 -' 

A 

‘~2o1.‘2b 

jProvincia|funding' ' 

. 

. 

' 

'$ 
I 

' 

$ 48.500 

>E«xpe'_risés: 
' ' 

. 
_ , 

_- 

_ 
. 

V

' 

Professional fees . 
, 

- ' 

. 41 .132 
Allocated administration 0' A 

. 

_ 

V - 
. 7,275 

N : _. 

' 
‘ 

_.‘ 48,457
. 

Excess of revenue overéxpensés . . 

7 $ ‘ 

2 

’ 

- 
, , $ . 43_ ' 

HSch.eAduIe 15 - Childrén I Youth 
' 

. Yveafended March 31,2013 a_nd_ 2012 

20.13 7 
’ 

2012.
I 

Provincial funding" 
' $ 

_ 

1-. «$ 
' 

_ 

15,000 

Expenées: - 

‘ 
' - 

Professional fees. 
_ 

a 11,000 . 

U Allocated administration 
_ 

- 3,000 
Travel « 

‘ 

. . , 

—' 
_ 

. 
_ 

. 995 
. 

- __ . 

- ’14,995 
. EXce_ssof revenue ov_er'expenses‘ 

' ' ‘ 

4 . $ 
' ‘ V 

'

5 
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-Vs;AsKA'rcH mo. 
'. 

Schedulé 16 - New Boundary Commission 

Year ended March 31,_2013'and 2 

‘ '2013, ' .2012 

. "Federal funding 
_ 

' 

V 

' 

V — 
‘s - 

' 

$ 3,516 
» I Expenses: . V _ 

’ 

. 

‘ 
‘ 

-
. 

Contractors ’ 

r . 
. 

‘ 

. - 
j 2,370 -_ 

Reference materials A 

. 

. 

- 

- 

_ 
-. 665‘ 

Allocated administration‘ ‘ 

. 

- 

_ 

. 

‘ 

_- 
< 

r 481 . 

’ 

- 
' 

‘ ' 
’ ’ 

’ 

-. 

. 

.- 3,516‘ 

Excess-ofrevenue 0';/eréxper'1s'es - 

V 

' '$ 
.» 

-' 
I 

b’ $ »‘ 

‘ 

-' 

- Schedule 17 - MNS Ttansitidn 
I Years ended March 31, 2013 and 2012 

.2013 
» 

_ _ _ 

'2_01‘2~ 

Revenue: - 

'
' 

Federal funding 110,055‘ . 

' 

-
_ 

Expenses: ~

A 

Travel. meeting and printing; 7 

Wqrkshops and meetings ‘ 
‘ 45,000 

_ 

» - 

Facifitation‘ and strategic.p|anning . 

V _ 

21,658 - 
‘ 

. . 

Training and development - 
. 

. . 18,849 -
. 

— 

‘ 

. 
. 

‘ 

‘ 

’85,5_0_7 ‘ - 

Administration: » 

_

A 

Allocated administration » ~ 

’ 
b 

14,318 « 

‘ 4

- 

Administration . 

- 

, 

‘ 37 - 
‘ 

‘ 
' 

' 

14.355 . 

" ‘ 

Professional consulting contract 12,759 . 
. 

-
f 

‘ ' 

112.621 ‘ 

. -_ 

D'eflcien'c_y.ofrevénue over expens~e_s 
A $ (2,566) . $ 

_ A 
A. 

I 

—~ 
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METISINATION -SASKATCHEWAN SECRETARIAT IANCI. 
- 

. schedule 13"-Harvestinguegotsauons' 

Yéar ended March 3.1, 20.13 and 2012 

2013 ; 

' 

2012
' 

Revienuez ' 

v 

I

. 

Provincial funding . . 

‘ ‘ 

$ - $ 
’ 
269.300 - 

Exfienses; « 

. 

'
- 

- Offi(;e_rent - 2,387 ~ 21,059 
Travel U 946 ' 38,284 
Administration ' 

- 270 . 9;690 
Contractors.‘ ' 

" 255 
. 

V 

» 

.- 

Salaries and benefits, " 

_ 

4 127 . 108,870 
Telephone and internet ' 

_ 

73 ‘ ‘ .9,772 
Consulting . 

V - 31 .893 
Professional feeis 

‘ 

- 26,179 
- AnnuaI_General Assembly . 

- ~ 14,141 . 

Allocated administration‘ ~ '-, 
‘ 

' 

. 7.886 
Ad)/ertisin'g . 

. 

‘ 

- 

. 

' - 1,053. 
. 

Printing and postage - 
r 

453 
. Training anddevelopmeht - 

. 

' 

. 
.- 

_ 

.20 
‘ 

4,058 . 269,300 

‘Deficiency _of revenu.e ove_r—éxpen_s_es_ 
Q 4 : 

_‘ 
‘ 

_ 

$'_ (4,058)_ ~$A ’_ - 

Schedule 19 -- Enviroriment 

Yeérs~ended March '31, 2013 and 2012 

2013 . 
. 

« y 
‘ -2012 

Revenue: ' 

Provincial funding ‘ 
» 

‘ 

$ - 
. $ 95,292 

‘ 

Expenses:
_ 

Salaries and benefits - 72,802 
Professional fees .. - 5,675 
Travel . 

» - - 
‘ 

. 
4,490 

-Reference materials 
_ 

I - 3,691 
Equipment leasing 

_ 

- 3.150 
Printing and postage . 

- 
’ 

‘ 
2.472 

Telephone 
_ 

. 
- ' 2.082 - 

Officesupplies 4 

_ 

. 

_ 

_ 

- 
‘ 

2,006 , " 
' 

' ' 

-‘ 96.368 

, .'pefl¢iency.of revenué.over'expens.es 
‘ 

1 
A _$ 

_ . 

.- $ 
4 

.('1.076)'
. 
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: }MI'—:T|s. NATION:. INC. 
Schedule 20 -‘Post A 
Year ende_d.March>31, 2013 and 2012

' 

2013‘ f 

‘ 

, 
: 

- 2012 

Revenue: - - .' I ~ »
’ 

. . 

‘ 

. 975,782‘ - 890,937 

Expenses; 
_

f 
‘ 

Registry staff: ' 

3 
‘

* 

Salaries and benefits ‘ 

v 

4 

. 503,697 504,338 
Contractors . 

. 

- 

_ 67,637 ' 

. 51,904 
I 

' 

' 
- 

_‘ 

' 
* 571.334‘ 

. 556,242 
Professional feesz. . 

» - _‘ 

'

- 

‘ 

‘Financial services ‘ 

‘ 
' 70,224 . 39,960 A 

Professional fees 
_ 

29,980 27,066 
Card design and citizenship applications _ 

' 

23,078 ‘ 23,078 
Reférenée materials and vital stats 

. 
21 ,800_ . 

A 26,800 
Repairs and services 

’ 

, 

' 

_ _ 

. 
. 12,081 ' 

4- 

.-~ 
; 

' 

, 
» 

' 
‘ ' 

‘ 
’ 

157,163 . 

‘ 

116.904 
Administration: 

_ 

‘

_ 

Administration 
' 

' 

_ 

r 85,165 . 

V 

’ 

89_,597 
Allocated administration 

" 
‘ 

, 

- 

' 

44,430 
_ 

. 
— 26g56 

- 
~ 

- 

I 

' ' 
‘ 

- 

‘ 

V 

V 129,595= 415,753"- 
Meetings and workshops: 

‘ 

' 
. 

‘ 

— 

. 

'

' 

Geneology workshops 
_ V 

29,000 ' 

. 32;501 . 

Mobile intake ' 

- 
. . 26,988- A 18.000 . 

- - — 

Travel 
‘ 

f 
’ 

. 

V 
V 

, 

' 

. 
. 24,000 19,985 

Training and development ‘ 

j 

’ 

' 9.000 - 8,000
‘ 

‘ 

_ 

' 
' ’ 

88,988‘ 
; 78.486 

Communications 
A 

’ 20,000 20,000 
‘ 

. Information technology A .8,918 . 

' 975,998 - ~ 892.4885 

Deficiency of revenue over expenses‘ . 

_ 
$ 

' 

- 

_ (216) $ ' ("l,948)* 

See scheduIe'29 -_ Subptemental Schedule of" Revenue and Expenditures for Funding Pfirposes V

' 
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Mm-is NATION SASKATCHEWAN ir§JC,’. 
. sch'edu|e'21 

_- Post Ffowley Component C 

j _ 
Years ended |4\/Iarcuh 314. 2013 and 2012 

2013 ~ 

' 

2012}; 
'

’ 

Revenue: - 

' 

D V 

I‘ 

i 

. 
.

. 

TF_ede.ra|fund§ng - 

. 

‘ 

f 
- 

. 126,500 - «

' 

» Expehses: 
I 

. 

' ~- 

Prgfessional consulting contract 
_ 

» 

_ 
110,000 _ 

- ‘ 

Allocated administration . 

' 

_ 

16,198 - 
' 

_ 

Administration. . .. 
. 

- - 302, . 

- - 
« 

‘ ’ ‘ 

’ 
- 126,500 . - 

Excess of revenUe.ove’r<expenses 
, 

' 
’ 

. _$ _ 
V 

- 

H 

$ 
_ 

~ »

27



NATIOISJ. - SASKATCHEWAN SECRETARIAT 
" Schedule 22 - Genealogical anc} Historical 

‘Year erided March 31, 2013 and "2012 

-2013, 
' 

~ 
’ 

» ~2o12 

_ 

Reve_nu'e:‘ ’ ’ 

. 
‘

b 

Federal funding i_n_c|uding amortization of deferred . 
, 

.

' 

contributions foriequipment of $18,321 (2012-$4,641) 
' 

628,207‘ 434,299 

Expénses:
. 

Staff‘ éfid wages: . 

Salaries and benefits _. 

‘ 294,592 215,582 
Contractors 

_ 
. 

. 51 ,30O 1 1 ,880 
~ 

‘ 

~ ' - 345,892_ ’ 
' 

‘ 

227,462 

Administration t ‘ ‘ ‘ ' ' 

V
» 

Administration 
‘ ' 

» 62,938 '4_1,283 
‘ Allocatedfadministration . . 

' 

. 19,840 ‘ 24,900 
‘ _ 

_. 

‘ 

V 

' 
‘ 

' 

82,778 ‘ 
- 

. . 
66,183" 

Professional fees:~ 
_ 

- 

AA .

- 

Professional feesv _~ 

‘ 

» . 

* 74,160 - 32,816. 
_

- 

Reference materials. 24,017 
_ 

‘ 

36.750» 1' 
’

' 

Advertising and memberships - 

. 4;3OO ‘ - 

Training and development . 

- 

_ 8,000 ' - 
’ ' 

. 

' ' 
' 

11o;47.7 69.566 

Travelland meetihgsf - 

Travel‘ » 

- 35,000_ 
_ 

28.268 
Provincial Métis‘ council meetings . 

A 

. 
4 9,500. ' - 

' 

44,500‘ 
V 

. 28,268“ 

Amortization" 
' 

. 18,321 _5,151
5 

~lnformz.ation‘technolo_gy » 11,792 
V 

, 
25,528 - 

Equipment 
‘ 

- 

. 

» 

. 2,776 
' 

f 24,859~ 

Communications . 

h 

,A 
. 11,750 

I 

_ 

' 

5,050‘
1 

' ' 

. 
— 628,236 7 452,067 _ 

A 

Deficiency of revenue over expenses . 

_ _ 
(29) $ ‘(17,768). 

A 

See schedule 30 - Supplemental $chedu|e of Révenue and Expendjtuures for Funding Purposes 

__2'8’



NATION 
1 

-I 

sch’e‘duI‘e’23~- Lggisiagive Review 
- = 

j yeaks ended:-March 31, 2013 and 2012 

- 261.3‘ 3 *‘~2oi2~ .-

' 

~Re‘\'/enué:' 
‘

. 

Proyincialfundinfi - 

' '~ 3. 10,£_508’~ '$_' -‘ _-'" 

Expenses: ' 

_ 

- — 

. . . 

' m
V 

- .P'ro'fe'ssiona|'fees 
. 

_ 

' 

. . 

‘ 

J 
‘ ‘ 

, . 

- 8,-128 : 

_ V 

‘ 

j ,- 
Travel 

_ 

. _‘ 

" 
- 

' 
- 

. 
, 

' 

2 j 2,'362_. _ 

'

- 
' Administration : 

- 

. 

’ 

. 

- 

.- 
. 
-118 j . 

-
b 

Exc9ss_ofrevenUé_over‘éxpensés _- 

‘ 

_ 

' 

, S 

' 

, 

w $ 4. “ 

. 

'.$ 
. .- - 

" 
: Déferred revenfie' related-to Legis|a.tive Revievk/for thue year erided ‘Mar¢h'~31; 20,13 is $1~8,767 (2012 - 

. 
"$'niI). "See note 9- Deferred revenue.‘ 

S_c_hedu|e 24 -“ Sport~ah.d Recreation 
' 

VYe,ars éndeldlmarcn‘ _31,'2o13 an}: _2o'1é 

» .2o13_ V74‘; 
V 

2012 
‘' 

Revenue: 
'Cur|ingbo4ns_piel’ H, 

' “ 
I‘ 

' 

M 
t 

23,~610 
I. " .

- 

' 

Expenses: 
- ‘Sports and recfeation _= 

_ 

. 

' 

_ 

. 
~ » '19,‘13,2~ ' 

V 

‘ 

-. 

' 

Professiohaijees . . 

' 

‘ 

. 
_ _ , _ 

' 
- 

_ 

5 
13,200,-. . 

» 

' 

_- f 

x 
' 

. 

- 
» " 

' 

» .32,332 ‘ .-I 

Deficiency ofbrevenue o,ver~expenses-. 
‘ 

_ 

’ 
V 

_ 

. 

f ~ 

' l-‘ 

29-



-7 s~AS INC; 
'_schéquIg 2'5"-_ lflealth Difector In‘it'iafiv‘g‘ 

' ' 

“ _‘Ye‘a‘r.ehd'e¢‘ Ma_r¢_h é.1,'2o13 ‘and 2o'12
‘ 

'2.o1V3 
; I 

' 

'_ 2o“12~ 
.

‘ 

Revenué:~ .. 
A 

_ 
A 

_ 
. 

" ‘ 

. 

-
~ 

P|_'o_vinciaI“funding H. s 
" 

_ 
$ 151,921 

A 
$ 190,000 

‘ 

7 » Expenses:
_ 

‘ 
.Salary»and'benefitS 132,730 , 

b 

87,427 
Contractors - -' _ - 11,000 56,091 
Travel ‘ ‘ 

‘ * 3,338 
, 

— 5.399
A 

_- Office rent - - 2,023 ' 8.216 » 

Administration- 
' 

‘ 

. 

* 

. .1,o51‘ 
' 

I . 20,443" 

.— 

_ 

Deficiency of ‘revenue dve_r expe_ns_és‘ 
' 

. 
, 

' 

- 

_ . + 4 3.

V 

: Professional fees; . 

. 
955 

_ 

3.948 
Amortization 

_ 
. V 

< 

. 

- 
' 

_ 
824 ' 

- 1,248» - 

Consulting 
. 

- - 

, 

T A . 

' 

' 
‘ 

‘ 

- f3.313 
Repairs a‘nd.serv,icesV 

_ 
, . 

_ 

- 
’ 

' 

& -2,124 
Meetings ‘_ V’ » 

_. 4 _ 

A~ 
_ 

,-« ~ 

‘ A _ ; 
2,005 

Allocated administration . 

~ - 

. 
. 

. 
- ‘ .637 . 

Office supplies 
' 

' 
‘ 

- 

_ 
. 

« - 

; _ 
. 487 ’

— 

' 

151,921 » 

. 

‘ _ :191,,343’ 
5 (1.343) 

b A 

. Deférréd ruevenue-‘réla,ted td the.'Hea|fh Director Initiative foi' the_year endéd March 31: 2013 is 
’ 

$318,079 (2012 - $.hil). See noteA9.- Deferred 're\/.enue. 4 
- 

g 

‘ 
-

' 

‘ 

Schedule 26 - lP_re\.Ie.rit|on
_ 

» Yeafé,end§d Marc';_fi' 3152013 and 2052 . 

-:~2o_1'3' 
_ 

"2012 ‘ 

. 

~ 
'. 

.~Provi'ncialfundingA ' ' 

_ 

. 

' $' 148.000 $ _

- 

Expenses: 
..~SaIa_"ry and benefits . . 

_ 

- - 64.062 - 

Meetings and workshops L » 

' 

. 

- .30,000' 
_ 4 

- 
4 

.

. 

,Adr'ninistration 
A 

« 22,864 . 

' 

~ - 

Travel‘ ' 

— 

_ 
.12.000 - A -< 

.Office.rent- . 

‘ 

. . 

' 

_ 

- 8,361 Q- ' -
. 

Communicatfon.and dissemination « 

_ 
'.7,'O00 . 

- 
.

» 

Evaluation .- 

‘ 

‘ ' 

‘ ' 

. 

- 5.000 
' 

' 

-- 

Honorariums 
‘ 

‘ 

. I Z000 ' - 

I 

,Ppofession.ajfe_es. _. 
. 

_' 
__ 

‘ 

V » I » 2.000 '-V 

153,287-~ ‘. '- — 

.Deficiéficyofré\}ehue_bver"expénsés 
_ 

'. 

> 

'- $ . 
‘("5287)’ 4’ 

‘

- 

3.0



SASKATCHEWAN SECRETARIAT 
~Sdh’e:d'ule 27 - Sgipplemental~Schedulé of Revenue and 'E'xpe_nciiture_s .

‘ 

= 
_ 
Yéars ended March 31, 2013 and'2012 

‘. 

5 Registry Ehvgagement 
'b 

Workplan and ImpIe_mentatl_or_1
A 

V‘ :' 2013 _201_2 ‘ 

V.VRvev9‘nue-(schedule 3) 
A 

~ « 
. 

' " 
_$ -2o,227_ $ 

A 

1’17,'771
. 

‘Amortization of deferred contributions’forequjpmeht - 

' (20!227)‘ _. 
. I (30,830?) 

’RevenL'xe for~fun"ding purpQse~s" . 

' 

W -$. :4. 
$ 

_ 

. 86,941 

'.E$<_p¢’nses (schedule 3) 
, 

~ '$ 
_ 

20,630’ $'‘ 
' 

118,068 

Amortization expense(§chedu|e 3) ~ _.(2o,63o) 
.' 

V‘ 

; (31,127) 

~ E_xp~endi.tu_res.for féundjulwg ;A>urpc.>ses~'_ 
_ I _ 

v V‘ ~"$ 
_ 

.~- ' 

_’ $~ 
"H 

86.941 

4 

. 
Shhedlule 28 - Supplemental Schgdule’of Revenue and Expenditures for" Fund|nVg’P'ur_p_oses 

. Years ‘ended March 31,‘ 2013 2012
Q 

. Tripaftite Self Goverhment Program. 
.2013 . 

2012;‘ 
'

‘ 

Revenue (schedule 6) . 

‘ 7 ’ 

$ 
‘ 

565,750 ‘$» 
A 

$70,000 
H 

Amounts received and deferred felated to purchase of . 

V _ 

equipment 
_ 

' 

‘ 

, 

' 3 . 4,250 - 

'R'evenué_f6r‘fundi.ng pu.rposes’ - 

A 

. 
_ 

. 

‘ 

_ . 
570,000" 

. _ «_ 570;000 

Expenses (sdhedule 6) 
' 

. 566,134 . _573,403 

Capitalized 'equipmént expenditures 4,250 - - 

Amortization expense (‘schedule _6) . 

V 

‘ ' (496) . 

A - 

Expéhdifures for funding pLirposes- 
' 

_ I 

‘I 

_ 
$- 569,888 

_ 

’$ 573,403-

31



sAs:mcHEwAN sec RETARIAT 
AS'ch.e_dL‘lle~2,9 S_¢he"d‘qle of‘Reygnue and ;Expendit_ur'es fbr ‘Funding Puipbées . 

' 

' 

; ‘Year ended March 31', 2013 and 2012 

' ’ Post Powley 
z_2o1'3".- * ~ 2012'.

" 

'.R¢VénQé.(schedub|e20)‘~. ~ 
', *3; 975.782 I - 

'. 

5 AmAour”1t'?.~.‘. receivable Land deférred relaied to-p'urc;hase'of
I 

.'¢omputer.equipment"‘ ‘ 
" 

19,582 
V 

. 

— 

‘ - 

~.Re’ver‘1ue'f'orf'undi‘ng b.ur;.3AQses‘~.~_ 
A H’ 

, 

‘ 

~$ _9_9}5;364, 
’ 

. 

' 

‘_ 

_ 

H- .'
’ 

- 

Expenées'(s¢heHfilé.fiQ) 
V 

‘Z. ‘ 

‘ ‘ 

i. S ~9.7"5,998' 
V 

_- . 

‘ 
' 

-. 

Capitalized .e<‘:;uipmeh.t’e>gpenditures& b - - 

‘« 19.582 
‘ 

. . 

AV — 

- 
- E>k.pen<:.ii't.u’r‘és: f0|; ffifidihg p_u'fi)os.es. T , V. 

‘_ .$ 
‘ 

_9§5,580" 
.' I. 

‘ 

' Schetiule 30- Su;‘:_ple,mental&Sch‘ed'ul¢ of Revendé and éxpenditufes‘for Fu»nding' Purposes’ » 

‘ 

A 

, Year énded_ March 31, 2013 and 2oi2~ 

' ' 

Genéalogicéland Histf_Jric~aI 
2013 '_ 

‘I 
_ 

201-2 

'~'Revenu‘e(.sche’dule 22) 
‘ 

I 
‘ 

' 
' ‘ $ 628~207 

' 
' $ . 

'434,299
‘ 

Amorfizvafion of deferred 'con’tribu"tion'§ _fof equipment~ (18;321) 
' 

(4,641) _ 

~Amounts recVei‘ve-d:.4and defefred related‘ td purchase of 
infbnnatiorflechnolpsgy equipment ., ~ 

. 25,433 
A" 

~68,047 
‘ 

_'Rever‘u'iVeforfundii"ng pfifposes 
_ 

' 

$ V‘ 635,319, 
. 

' $» _ 497.705 

"Expens_es_(sc‘hedu|e 22)‘ 
' 

4‘ 
’ 

. 

f 
"H 

' $“ '628,236' $ _' 
" 

452,067. 

- Capitalized infor}natidn_{echnology equipment t-gxpevnditurnes 25,433 
4 

- 68.047 

Amoftizaiion expense (‘schedule 22) 
I h 

‘n 4‘ 
' 

(18,321) 
» 

(5,151) " .

‘ 

. Expénditures _fo_rfu_hd§ng purposes‘ 1 
_ 

b 
_ 

, _ 

<_ 
-‘ 

.$ '635A,,34‘8 
’ 

‘51f4,Q63 

32~
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